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Caution Regarding Forward-Looking Information

In addition to historical information, this Form 10-K contains certain "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995 (PSLRA). This statement is included for the express purpose of availing IsoRay, Inc. of the protections of the safe harbor provisions of
the PSLRA.

All statements contained in this Form 10-K, other than statements of historical facts, that address future activities, events or developments are forward-
looking statements, including, but not limited to, statements containing the words "believe,” "expect,” "anticipate," "intends," "estimate,” "forecast,"
"project,” and similar expressions. All statements other than statements of historical fact are statements that could be deemed forward-looking statements,
including any statements of the plans, strategies and objectives of management for future operations, any statements concerning proposed new products,
services, developments or industry rankings, any statements regarding future revenue, economic conditions or performance, any statements of belief; and
any statements of assumptions underlying any of the foregoing. These statements are based on certain assumptions and analyses made by us in light of our
experience and our assessment of historical trends, current conditions and expected future developments as well as other factors we believe are appropriate
under the circumstances. However, whether actual results will conform to the expectations and predictions of management is subject to a number of risks
and uncertainties described under Item 14 — Risk Factors beginning on page 23 below that may cause actual results to differ materially.

Consequently, all of the forward-looking statements made in this Form 10-K are qualified by these cautionary statements and there can be no assurance
that the actual results anticipated by management will be realized or, even if substantially realized, that they will have the expected consequences to or
effects on our business operations. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements as they speak only of the
Company's views as of the date the statement was made. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

PART I

As used in this Form 10-K, unless the context requires otherwise, “we” or “us” or the “Company” means IsoRay, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

ITEM 1 - BUSINESS

General

Century Park PicTURES CORPORATION (CENTURY) WAS ORGANIZED UNDER MINNESOTA LAWIS83. CENTURY HAD NO OPERATIONS SINCE ITS FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMB
30, 1999 through June 30, 2005.

On July 28, 2005, IsoRAY MEDIcAL, INC. (MEDICAL) BECAME A WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY OKCENTURY PURSUANT TO A MERGER. CENTURY CHANGED ITS NAME TO IsOR
Inc. (IsoRay or the Company). In the merger, the Medical stockholders received approximately 82% of the then outstanding securities of the Company.

MEDICAL,A DELAWARE CORPORATION, WAS INCORPORATED ON JUNE 15, 2004 TO DEVELOMANUFACTURE AND SELL ISOTOPE-BASED MEDICAL PRODUCTS AND DEVICES FOR T
treatment of cancer and other malignant diseases. Medical is headquartered in Richland, Washington.

IsoRay INTERNATIONAL LLC (INTERNATIONAL), A WASHINGTON LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, WEORMED ON NOVEMBER 27, 2007 AND IS A WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY O
the Company. International has not had any significant transactions since its inception.
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Available Information

The COMPANY ELECTRONICALLY FILES ITS ANNUAL REPORTS ON FORM 10-K, QUARTERLY REPORTFORM 10-Q, CURRENT REPORTS ON FORM 8-K, AND ALL AMENDMENTS TO TH
REPORTSAND OTHER INFORMATION WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE CommissioN (SEC).THESE REPORTS CAN BE OBTAINED BY ACCESSING THE SEC’S WEBSITE A
WWW.SEC.GOV. THE PUBLIC CAN ALSO OBTAIN COPIES BY VISITING THE SEC’s PuBLic REFERENCE Room AT 100 F STREET NE, WasHINGTON, DC 20549 OR BY CALLING
SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. In addition, the Company makes copies of its annual AND QUARTERLY REPORTS AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC AT ITS WEBSITBAAWW.isoray.com.
Information on this website is not a part of this report.

Business Operations

Overview

INn 2003, I[sORAY OBTAINED CLEARANCE FROM THE FDA FOR TREATMENT FOR ALL SOLID TUMIIRCATIONS USING CESiUM-131 (Cs-131). SuCH APPLICATIONS INCLUDE
prostate CANCER; OCULAR MELANOMA; HEAD, NECK AND LUNG TUMORS; AND BREAST, LIVER, BRANI® PANCREATIC CANCER. THE SEED MAY BE USED IN SURFACE, INTERSTITAL A
INTRACAVITY APPLICATIONS FOR TUMORS WITH KNOWN RADIO SENSITIVITWIANAGEMENT BELIEVES ITS Cs-131 TECHNOLOGY WILL ALLOW IT TO BECOME A LEADERthE
BRACHYTHERAPY MARKET. MANAGEMENT BELIEVES THAT THE ISORAY PROXCEIGABSIUM-131 BRACHYTHERAPY SEED REPRESENTS THE FIRST MAJOR ADVANCEMENT
brachytherapy technology in over 21 years with attributes that could make it the long-term “seed of choice” for internal radiation therapy procedures.

IsoRay BEGAN PRODUCTION AND SALES OF PROXCELAN CEsIUM-131 BRACHYTHERAPY SEEDS ®CTOBER 2004 FOR THE TREATMENT OF PROSTATE CANCER AFTER CLEARANCE
PREMARKET NOTIFICATION (510(k)) BY THE Foop AND DrRUG ADMINISTRATION (FDA)IN DECEMBER 2007, ISORAY BEGAN SELLING ITS PROXCELAN Cs-131 SEEDS FOR T
TREATMENT OF OCULAR MELANOMA. ON JUNE 1, 2009, THE COMPANY AGAIN EXPANDEDI'S APPLICATION OF Cs-131 WITH THE TREATMENT OF A HEAD AND NECK TUMOR T
COULDNOT BE ACCESSED BY OTHER TREATMENT MODALITIES. MORE RECENTLY THE COMPANXS FOCUSED ON OTHER APPLICATIONS WHICH REQUIRE REVISING THE DELIVE
system from those historically used by the Company.

IN Aucust 2009, ISORAY MEDICAL RECEIVED CLEARANCE FROM THE FDA FOR 1TS PREMARRMGTIFICATION (510(k)) FOR PROXCELAN™ CESIUM-131 BRACHYTHERAPY SEE
that are PRELOADED INTO BIOABSORBABLE BRAIDED STRANDS. THIS CLEARANCE PERMITS THE PRODUWIBE COMMERCIALLY DISTRIBUTED FOR TREATMENT OF LUNG, HEAD AND N
tumors as WELL AS TUMORS IN OTHER ORGANS. WHILE Cs-131 BRACHYTHERAPY SEEDEEMSELVES HAVE BEEN CLEARED FOR TREATMENT IN ALL ORGANS SINCE 2003, THis 511
ALLOWS Cs-131 SEEDS TO BE DELIVERED IN A CONVENIENT AND STERILE FORMAT THAT BRRMPLANTED WITHOUT ADDITIONAL SEED LOADING BY THE FACILITY. THE 510(&}so
clears the application of braided strands onto a bioabsorbable mesh matrix to further facilitate the implant procedure.

BRACHYTHERAPYSEEDS ARE SMALL DEVICES USED IN AN INTERSTITAL RADIATION PROCEDURE. TRROCEDURE HAS BECOME ONE OF THE PRIMARY TREATMENTS FOR PROST/
cancer. THE BRACHYTHERAPY PROCEDURE PLACES RADIOACTIVE SEEDS AS CLOSE AS POSSIBLE TO (DR NEAR) THE CANCEROUS TUMOR (THE WORD “BRACHYTHERAPY”” MEANS CI
THERAPY). THE SEEDS DELIVER THERAPEUTIC RADIATION THEREBY KILLING THNCEROUS TUMOR CELLS WHILE MINIMIZING EXPOSURE TO ADJACENT HEALTHMSSUE. THIS
PROCEDURE ALLOWS DOCTORS TO ADMINISTER A HIGHER DOSE RADIATION DIRECTLY TO THE TUMOR. EACH SEED CONTAINS A RADIOISOTOPE SEAMEITHIN A WELDED TITANIUM
capsule. When brachytherapy is the only treatment (monotherapy), approximately 70 to 120 seeds are permanently implanted in the PROSTATE IN AN OUTPATIEN'
PROCEDURE LASTING LESS THAN ONE HOUR. THE NUMBERF SEEDS USED VARIES BASED ON THE SIZE OF THE PROSTATE AND THE ACTIVITY LESBECIFIED BY THE PHYSICIAN.
WHEN BRACHYTHERAPY IS COMBINED WITH EXTERNAL BEAMRADIATION OR INTENSITY MODULATED RADIATION THERAPY (DUAL THERAPY), THERROXIMATELY 40-80 SEEDS ARE
USED IN THE PROCEDURE. THE ISOTOPE DECAYSOVER TIME AND EVENTUALLY THE SEEDS BECOME INERT. THE SEEDS MAY BE USED A% PRIMARY TREATMENT OR IN CONJUNCTIC
WITH OTHER TREATMENT MODALITIES, SUCH AEMOTHERAPY, OR AS TREATMENT FOR RESIDUAL DISEASE AFTER EXCISION OF PRIMAR¥ORS. THE NUMBER OF SEEDS FOR OTHE
treatment sites will vary from as few as 10-12 to as many at 80-100 depending on the location of the tumor being treated.

Source: IsoRay, Inc., 10-K, September 23, 2009 Powered by Momingstar® Document Research™

The information contained herein may not be copied, adapted or distributed and is not warranted to be accurate, complete or timely. The user assumes all risks for any damages or losses arising from any use of this information,
except to the extent such damages or losses cannot be limited or excluded by applicable law. Past financial performance is no guarantee of future results.



Brachytherapy Isotope Comparison

INCREASINGLY,PROSTATE CANCER PATIENTS AND THEIR DOCTORS WHO DECIDE ON SEED BRACHYTHERABYOOSE Cs-131 BECAUSE OF ITS SIGNIFICANT ADVANTAGES OVE
Palladium-103 (Pd-103) and Iodine-125 (I-125), two other isotopes currently in use. These advantages include:

Higher Energy
Cs-131 HAS A HIGHER AVERAGE ENERGY THAN ANY OTHER COMMONLY USED PROSTATE BRACHYTHERMOTOPE ON THE MARKET. ENERGY IS A KEY FACTOR IN HO

UNIFORMLY THERADIATION DOSE CAN BE DELIVERED THROUGHOUT THE PROSTATE. THIS QUALITY (BRASTATE IMPLANT IS KNOWN AS HOMOGENEITY. EARLY STUDIE
DEMONSTRATE Cs-13 1IMPLANTS ARE ABLE TO DELIVER THE REQUIRED DOSE WHILE MAINTAINING HOMOGENEITACROSS THE GLAND ITSELF AND POTENTIALLY REDUC
UNNECESSARY DOSE TO CRITICASTRUCTURES SUCH AS THE URETHRA AND RECTUM. (PRESTIDGE B.R., BicE W.S., Jurkdyief al. CESiuM-131 PERMANENT PROSTAT
Brachytherapy: An Initial Report. Int. J. Radiation Oncology Biol. Phys.2005: 63 (1) 5336-5337.)

Shorter Half-Life

Cs-131 HAS THE SHORTEST HALF-LIFE OF ANY COMMONLY USED PROSTATE BRACHYTHERAPY ISOT@PE9.7 DAYS. Cs-131 DELIVERS 90% OF THE PRESCRIBED DOSE I
JUST 33 DAYSCOMPARED TO 58 DAYS FOR PD-103 AND 204 DAYS FOR [-125. BY FAR THE MOSTOMMONLY REPORTED SIDE EFFECTS OF PROSTATE BRACHYTHERAPY A
IRRITATIVE ANDOBSTRUCTIVE SYMPTOMS IN THE ACUTE PHASE POST-IMPLANT (NEILL B, ET AL. THE NATURND EXTENT OF URINARY MORBIDITY IN RELATION
PROSTATE BRACHYTHERAPY URETHHM@SIMETRY. BRACHYTHERAPY 2007:6(3)173-9.). THE SHORT HALF-LIFE OF Cs-1BHDUCES THE DURATION OF TIME DURIN
which the patient experiences the irritating effects of the radiation.

Improved Coverage of the Prostate
Permanent PROSTATE BRACHYTHERAPY UTILIZING Cs-131 SEEDS ALLOWS FOR BETTER DOSE HOMOGENEAND SPARING OF THE URETHRA AND RECTUM WHILE PROVIDI!

COMPARABLE PROSTATECOVERAGE COMPARED TO [-125 OR Pp-103 SEEDS WITH COMPARABLE OR FEWER SEEDS ANWEEDLES. SEVERAL STUDIES HAVE DEMONSTRAT
DOSIMETRIC ADVANTAGES OF Cs-1310VER THE OTHER COMMONLY USED PROSTATE BRACHYTHERAPY ISOTOPES. (MUSMACHER JS, BKT. DOSIMETRIC COMPARISON OF
CEstuM-131 AND PALLADIUM-103 FOR PERMANENT PROSTATBRACHYTHERAPY. INT. J. RADIATION ONCOLOGY BIoL. PHys. 2007:69(3)S730-1(Y APARPALVI R, ET
AL. Is Cs-131 or I-125 or Pp-103 THE “IDEAL” ISOTOPE FEROSTATE BoOST BRACHYTHERAPY? A DoSIMETRIC VIEW POINT. INT. J. RADIATIE®NCOLOGY BioL
PHYs. 2007:69(3)S677-8) (SUTLIEF S, ET AL. Cs-131 PROSTABRACHYTHERAPY AND TREATMENT PLAN PARAMETERS. MEDICAL PHysics 2007:34(6)243Yang
R, ET AL. DoOSIMETRIC COMPARISON OF PERMANENT PROSTATE BRACHYTHERAPraNs UriLizING Cs-131, I-125 anp Pp-103 Seeps. MEbpicaL PHysic
2008:35(6)2734.)

Rapid Resolution of Side effects

STUDIES DEMONSTRATE THAT OBJECTIVE MEASURES OF COMMON SIDE-EFFECTS SHOWED AN EARLY PEAN SYMPTOMS IN THE 2-WEEK TO 1-MONTH TIME FRAME.
RESOLUTION OF MORBIDITYRESOLVED RAPIDLY WITHIN 4-6 MONTHS. (PRESTIDGE B, ET. AL. CLINICAL OUTCOMES OFPHASE-II, MULTI-INSTITUTIONAL CESIUM-13
Permanent Prostate Brachytherapy Trial. Brachytherapy. 2007: 6 (2)78.) (Moran B, et al. Cesium-131 Prostate Brachytherapy: An Early Experience.
BRACHYTHERAPY 2007:6(2)80.) (JoNES A, ET AL. IPSS TRENDS F€is-131 PERMANENT PROSTATE BRACHYTHERAPY. BRACHYTHERAPY 2008:7(2)194.) (DEFOE
ET AL. Is THERE DECREASED DURATION OF ACUTE URINARY AND BOWEL SymprOoMS ABERSTATE BRACHYTHERAPY WITH CESIUM 131 RaADIOISOTOPE? INT.
RADIATION ONcOLOGY BioL. Puys. 2008:72(S1)S317.) MORE STRINGENT STUDIES ARE UNDERWA® MORE FULLY CHARACTERIZE ANY ADVANTAGE IN SIDE EFF
resolution experienced by patients undergoing Cs-131 prostate brachytherapy versus brachytherapy with other isotopes.
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Higher Biologically Effective Dose

Another BENEFIT TO THE SHORT HALF-LIFE OF Cs-131 IS WHAT IS KNOWN AS THE “BIOLOGIGKEECTIVE DOSE” OR BED. BED IS A WAY FOR HEALTH CARE PROVIDERS
predict HOW AN ISOTOPE WILL PERFORM AGAINST CANCERS EXHIBITING DIFFERENT CHARACTERISH(EOR INSTANCE, SLOW VERSUS FAST GROWING TUMORS. STUDIES H2
SHOWN Cs-131 1S ABLE TO DELIVER A HIGHER BED ACROSS A WIDE RANGE OF TUMOR TYPES THAN EITHERS OR Pp-103. ALTHOUGH PROSTATE CANCER IS TYPICAL
VIEWED AS A SLOW GROWINGCANCER IT CAN PRESENT WITH AGGRESSIVE FEATURES. Cs-131°s HIGHER BED MAY BBRTICULARLY BENEFICIAL IN SUCH SITUATIONS
(ArmpiLiA CI, DALE RG, CoresIPet al. THE DETERMINATION OF RADIOBIOLOGICALLY OPTIMIZED HALF-LIVES FOR RADIONUCLIDES USEDN PERMANENT
Brachytherapy Implants. Int. J. Radiation Oncology Biol. Phys.2003; 55 (2): 378-385.)

PSA Control

Investigators tracking PSA in both single arm and randomized trials have concluded Cs-131’s PSA RESPONSE RATES SHOW SIMILAR EARLY TUMOR CONTROL
1-125, LONG CONSIDEREDTHE GOLD STANDARD IN PERMANENT SEED BRACHYTHERAPY. LONGITUDINAL PS#ASUREMENTS FROM ONGOING Cs-131 CLINICAL SERIE
DEMONSTRATE TRENDS VERY SIMILARD THOSE SEEN WITH OTHER ISOTOPES. (MORAN B, ET. AL. CESIUM-131 PROSTABRACHYTHERAPY” AN EARLY EXPERIENC
Brachytherapy. 2007:6(2)80.) (BicE W, ET. AL. RECOMMENDATIONS FOR PERMANENT PROSTATE BRACHYTHERAPY WITE3 1Cs: A CONSENSUS REPORT FROM TH
CEsiuM ApVisorRY GROUP. BRACHYTHERAPY2008:7(4)290-296.) (PLaTTA CS, ET AL. EARLY OUTCOMES OF PROSTATE SEED IMPLAWTEH 131Cs: ToxiCITY ANC
Initial PSA Dynamics from a Single Institution. Int. J. Radiation Oncology Biol. Phys. 2008:72(S1)S323-4.)

Industry Information
Incidence of Prostate Cancer

The prostate is a walnut-sized gland surrounding the male urethra, located below the BLADDER AND ADJACENT TO THE RECTUM. PROSTATE CANCER IS A MALIGNANT T
THAT BEGINS MOST OFTEN IN THE PERIPHERY OF THE GLAND AND, LIKE OTHER FORMSGAINCER, MAY SPREAD BEYOND THE PROSTATE TO OTHER PARTS OF THE BODACCORDING TC
THE AMERICAN CANCER SOCIETY, APPROXIMATELY ONE IN SIX MEN WILL BEDIAGNOSED WITH PROSTATE CANCER DURING HIS LIFETIME. IT IS THE MOST COMMONORM OF CANCE
IN MEN AFTER SKIN CANCER, AND THE SECOND LEADING CAUSE OF CANCBRATHS IN MEN FOLLOWING LUNG AND BRONCHUS CANCERS THAT ACCOUNT FOR 30% OF DEAfTam
CANCER IN MEN. THE AMERICAN CANCER SOCIETY ESTIMATES THERE WILL BEBOUT 192,280 NEW CASES OF PROSTATE CANCER DIAGNOSED AND AN ESTIMATED 27,3 6deaths
ASSOCIATED WITH THE DISEASE IN THE UNITED STATES IN 2009. BECAUSBF EARLY DETECTION TECHNIQUES (E.G., SCREENING FOR PROSTATE SPECIFIC ANTIGEN, BRA),
APPROXIMATELY NINE OUT OF TEN PROSTATE CANCERS ARE FOUND IN THE LOCAL ARHGIONAL STAGES (LOCAL MEANS IT IS STILL CONFINED TO THE PROSTATE; REGIONMIMNS IT HAS
spread from the prostate to nearby areas, but not to distant sites, such as bone).

PROSTATECANCER ACCOUNTS FOR ABOUT 9% OF CANCER RELATED DEATHS IN MEN. PROSTAMNCER INCIDENCE AND MORTALITY INCREASE WITH AGE. THE NATIONAL CAN
INSTITUTE HAS REPORTED THAT THE INCIDENCE OF PROSTATE CANCER INCREASRSMATICALLY IN MEN OVER THE AGE OF 55. AT THE AGE OF 70, THE CHANCEIO®VING PROSTATE
cancer is 12 times greater than at age 50.

The AMERICAN CANCER SOCIETY RECOMMENDS THAT MEN WITHOUT SYMPTOMS, RISK FACTORS ANWHO HAVE A LIFE EXPECTANCY OF AT LEAST TEN YEARS, SHOULD BEGIN REGL
annual MEDICAL EXAMS AT THE AGE OF 50, AND BELIEVES THAT HEALTH CARE PROVIDERS SHOWIHPER AS PART OF THE EXAM THE PROSTATE-SPECIFIC ANTIGEN (PSA) BLOOD T
AND ADIGITAL RECTAL EXAMINATION. THE PSA BLOOD TEST DETERMINES THE AMOUNT PROSTATE SPECIFIC ANTIGEN PRESENT IN THE BLOOD. PSA IS FOUND IN A PROTET
SECRETED BY THE PROSTATE, AND ELEVATED LEVELS OF PSA CAN BE ASSOCIATED WEIHHER PROSTATITIS (A NONCANCEROUS INFLAMMATORY CONDITION) OR A PROLIFERATIO!
CANCER CELLS IN THE PROSTATE. TRANSRECTAL ULTRASOUND TESTS AND BIOBRRESTYPICALLY PERFORMED ON PATIENTS WITH ELEVATED PSA READINGS TO CONFIRM TEKistence
OF CANCER. EARLY SCREENING HAS FOSTERED A DECLINE IN TRROSTATE CANCER DEATH RATE SINCE 1990. WHEN COMPARED TO MEN OF THE SAMEGE AND RACE WHO DO NO
HAVE CANCER (CALLED RELATIVE SURVIVAL), THE S5-YRERATIVE SURVIVAL RATE FOR MEN WHEN THE CANCER IS FOUND IN THE LOCAL RBMIONAL STAGES IS NEARLY 100%
DURING THIS PAST YEAR THE NATIONAL PRES8JBLICIZED A MEETING AMONG UROLOGISTS AT THE ANNUAL AMERICAN UROLOGY ASSOCIATIONEETING DEBATING THE NEED FOI
ANNUAL PSA TESTING. RESULTS OF THRJBLICITY MAY RESULT IN FUTURE RECOMMENDATIONS TO BEGIN TESTING AT A LATER A&G¥D NOT TEST ANNUALLY UNLESS THERE ARE
FACTORS. BASED ON ITS OWNNDUSTRY KNOWLEDGE, MANAGEMENT BELIEVES THIS COULD LEAD TO AN INCREASE BROSTATE CANCER, WHICH HAS NOT BEEN EXPERIENCED SINC
2000.
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Incidence of Lung Cancer

An ESTIMATED 219,440 NEW CASES OF LUNG CANCER ARE EXPECTED IN 2009, ACCOUNTING FA®% OF ALL CANCER DIAGNOSES IN THE UNITED STATES. LUNG CANCER ACCOU
for THE MOST CANCER RELATED DEATHS IN BOTH MEN AND WOMEN IN THE UNITED STATEAN ESTIMATED 159,390 DEATHS, ACCOUNTING FOR ABOUT 28% OF ALL CANCER DEA
are EXPECTED TO OCCUR IN 2009. THIS EXCEEDS THE COMBINED NUMBER OF DEATHS FROMTHE LEADING CAUSES OF CANCER (BREAST, PROSTATE, AND COLON CANCERS)aldo
ACCOUNTS FOR 6% OF ALL DEATHS FROM ANY SOURCE IN THE UNITED STAK(SANCER MANAGEMENT: A MULTIDISCIPLINARY APPROACH, 11TH EpITION (2008). RicHAR
Pazdur, Lawrence R. Coia, William J. Hoskins, Lawrence D. Wagman; American Cancer Society, 2009.)

Cigarette smoking is the most important risk factor for lung cancer. Risk increases with quantity and length of TIME A PERSON HAS SMOKED DURING HIS OR HER LIF
TIME. OTHER RISK FACTORRNCLUDE OCCUPATIONAL OR ENVIRONMENTAL EXPOSURE TO SECONDHAND SMOKE, RADOMSBESTOS (PARTICULARLY AMONG SMOKERS), CERTAIN META
(chromium, cadmium, arsenic), some organic chemicals, radiation, air pollution, and a history of tuberculosis. Genetic susceptibility plays a contributing role
in the development of lung cancer, especially in those who develop the disease at a younger age. (American Cancer Society, 2009)

The 1-YEAR RELATIVE SURVIVAL FOR LUNG CANCER INCREASED FROM 35% IN 1975-1979 10 4IN3001-2004, LARGELY DUE TO IMPROVEMENTS IN SURGICAL TECHNIQUES AN
COMBINED THERAPIES. HOWEVER, THE 5-YEAR SURVIVAL RATE FOR ALL STAGES COMBINE®NSLY 15%. THE 5-YEAR SURVIVAL RATE IS 50% FOR CASES DETECTED WHEN
disease is still localized, but only 16% of lung cancers are diagnosed at this early stage. (American Cancer Society, 2009)

Incidence of Head and Neck Cancers

IN 2008 IT WAS ESTIMATED THAT THERWERE A TOTAL OF 47,560 HEAD AND NECK CANCER CASES, WHICH INCLUDES 22,900 CASHS ORAL CAVITY CANCER, 12,250 CASES
LARYNGEAL CANCER, AND 12,410 CASES ®GHARYNGEAL CANCER, DIAGNOSED IN THE UNITED STATES. (CANCER MANAGEMENT:MULTIDISCIPLINARY APPROACH, 1 1TH EDITION
(2008). Richard Pazdur, Lawrence R. Coia, William J. Hoskins, Lawrence D. Wagman; American Cancer Society, 2009.)

Symptoms MAY INCLUDE A SORE IN THE THROAT OR MOUTH THAT BLEEDS EASILY AND DOES NOT HRALUMP OR THICKENING, EAR PAIN, A NECK MASS, COUGHING UP BLOOD,

and a red or WHITE PATCH THAT PERSISTS. DIFFICULTIES IN CHEWING, SWALLOWING, OR MOVIN@HE TONGUE OR JAWS ARE OFTEN LATE SYMPTOMS. (AMERICAN CANCER SoCIE
2009)

KNOWN RISK FACTORS INCLUDE ALL FORMS OF SMOKED AND SMOKELESS TOBACCO PRODUCTS ABXCESSIVE CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOL. MANY STUDIES HAVE REPORTED
SYNERGISM BETWEEN SMOKING AND ALCOHOL USE, RESULTING IN MORE THAN A 30-FOLD INCREASED RISKINDIVIDUALS WHO BOTH SMOKE AND DRINK HEAVILY. HPV
infection is associated with certain types of oropharyngeal cancer. (American Cancer Society, 2009)

Incidence of Ocular Melanoma
The AMERICAN CANCER SOCIETY ESTIMATES THAT 2,350 NEW CASES OF CANCERS OF THE EYE AGRBIT (PRIMARILY MELANOMA) WILL BE DIAGNOSED IN 2009 AND ABoUT 23!

DEATHS FROMCANCER OF THE EYE WILL OCCUR IN 2009. EYE CANCER CAN OCCUR AT ANY AGE BYPICALLY OCCURS IN PEOPLE OVER 50 YEARS OF AGE. (AMERICAN CANC
Society, 2009)
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Eye CANCER MAY NOT PRESENT SYMPTOMS UNLESS IT GROWS IN CERTAIN PARTS OF THE EYE ORIN AN ADVANCED STAGE. SOME SIGNS AND SYMPTOMS MAY INCLUDE DECREASED
ABILITY TO SEE, FLOATERS OR FLASHES OF LIGHT, VISUAL FIELD LOSS, A GLOWING SPORKON THE IRIS, CHANGE IN POSITION OF THE EYEBALL WITHIN ITS SOCKET, BULGINGF THI
EYE, AND/OR CHANGE IN THE MOVEMENT OF THE EYE WITHIN THE SOCKETKNOWN RISK FACTORS FOR OCULAR MELANOMA INCLUDE SUN EXPOSURE, CERTAIN OCCUPATIO(&.
WELDERS, FARMERS, FISHERMEN, AND CHEMICAL WORKERS), RACE/ETHNICITY/E¥®LOR, AND CERTAIN INHERITED CONDITIONS SUCH AS DYSPLASTIC NEVUS SYNDROMHAMerican
Cancer Society, 2009)

Prostate Brachytherapy

There is A LARGE POTENTIAL MARKET FOR THE COMPANY’S PRODUCTS. SEVERAL SIGNIFICENINICAL AND MARKET FACTORS ARE CONTRIBUTING TO THE INCREASING POPULARI
the BRACHYTHERAPY PROCEDURE. OVER 61,000 PROCEDURES WERE FORECASTED TO OCBURHE U.S. IN 2007 (SoURCE: IDATA RESEARCH, INC., 2008). In 1996 onLy 4%t
PROSTATE CANCER CASES WERE TREATED WITH BRACHYTHERAPY, OR ABOUT 8 RKAX'EDURES. THE NUMBER OF BRACHYTHERAPY CASES HAS CONSISTENTLY INCREASBIND IN 2007
approximately 61,000 brachytherapy procedures were performed to treat prostate cancer. (Source: iData Research Inc., 2008)

MINIMALLY INVASIVE BRACHYTHERAPY HAS SIGNIFICANT ADVANTAGES OVER COMPETING TREATMENTSCLUDING LOWER COST, EQUAL OR BETTER SURVIVAL DATA, FEWER
effects, faster RECOVERY TIME AND THE CONVENIENCE OF A SINGLE OUTPATIENT IMPLANT PROCEDURE THAENERALLY LASTS LESS THAN ONE HOUR (MERRICK, ET AL., TECHNI
in Urology, Vol. 7,2001; Potters, et al., Journal of Urology, May 2005; Sharkey, et al., Current Urology Reports, 2002).

Treatment Options and Protocol

IN ADDITION TO BRACHYTHERAPY, LOCALIZED PROSTATE CANCER CAN BE TREATED WRITATECTOMY SURGERY (RP FOR RADICAL PROSTATECTOMY), EXTERNAL BEAM RADI
THERAPY (EBRT), INTENSITY MODULATED RADIATION THERAPY (IMRT), DUAL ORMBINATION THERAPY, HIGH DOSE RATE BRACHYTHERAPY (HDR), CRYOSURGERY, HORMO
THERAPY, AND WATCHFUL WAITING. THE SUCCESS OF ANY TREATMENT IS MEASURED BHE FEASIBILITY OF THE PROCEDURE FOR THE PATIENT, MORBIDITIES ASSOCIATED WIthie
TREATMENT, OVERALL SURVIVAL, AND COST. WHEN THE CANCEROUS TISSUROIS COMPLETELY ELIMINATED, THE CANCER TYPICALLY RETURNS TO THE PRIMARY SOHTEN WITE
metastases to other areas of the body.

Prostatectomy Surgery Options. HISTORICALLY THE MOST COMMON TREATMENT OPTION FOR PROSTATE CANCRRPICAL PROSTATECTOMY IS THE REMOVAL OF THE PROST.
GLAND AND SOME SURROUNDINGTISSUE THROUGH AN INVASIVE SURGICAL PROCEDURE. RP IS PERFORMED UNDHRENERAL ANESTHESIA AND INVOLVES A HOSPITAL STAY OF TH
days on average for patient observation and recovery. Possible side affects of RP include impotence and incontinence. According to a study published in the
Journal of the American Medical Association IN JANUARY 2000, APPROXIMATELY 60% OF MEN WHO HAD A RP REPORTED ERECTILEYSFUNCTION AS A RESULT OF SURGER
THIS SAME STUDY STATED THARPPROXIMATELY 40% OF THE PATIENTS OBSERVED REPORTED AT LEAST OCCASIONRICONTINENCE. NEW METHODS SUCH AS LAPAROSCOPIC ANT
ROBOTIC PROSTATECTOMYSURGERIES ARE CURRENTLY BEING USED MORE FREQUENTLY IN ORDER TO MINIMIZE TNERVE DAMAGE THAT LEADS TO IMPOTENCE AND INCONTINENC
but these techniques REQUIRE A HIGH DEGREE OF SURGICAL SKILL. RP AND LAPAROSCOPIC PROSTATECTOMRE PROJECTED TO DECREASE APPROXIMATELY 31% IN THE U.S. FRC
the 2004 high 0of 66,567 to 20,838 procedures in 2014. However, robotic surgeries are PROJECTED TO MORE THAN REPLACE THE DECREASE IN THE RP AND LAPAROSCC
procedures (Source: iData Research Inc.,2008).

Primary External Beam Radiation Therapy. EBRT INVOLVES DIRECTING A BEAM OF RADIATION FROM OUTSIDETHE BODY AT THE PROSTATE GLAND TO DESTROY CANCER
TISSUE. EBRT TREATMENTS ARE RECEIVED ON AN OUTPATIENT BASIS FIVE DAYS PER WEEK USUALLY OVERERIOD OF EIGHT OR NINE WEEKS. SOME STUDIES HAVE SHOWN,
HOWEVER, THAT THEEN-YEAR DISEASE FREE SURVIVAL RATES WITH TREATMENT THROUGH EBRT ARE LESS THHAWISEASE FREE SURVIVAL RATES AFTER RP OR BRACHYTHE
TREATMENT. SIDEEFFECTS OF EBRT CAN INCLUDE DIARRHEA, RECTAL LEAKAGE, IRRITATED INTESTFREQUENT URINATION, BURNING WHILE URINATING, AND BLOOD IN THE URIN
AlSO THE INCIDENCE OF INCONTINENCE AND IMPOTENCE FIVE TO SIX YEARS AFTER EBRT ISOMPARABLE TO THAT FOR SURGERY. EBRT PROCEDURES ARE PROJECTED TO INCR
slightly from 22,000 procedures in 2006 to 24,900 in 2012 (Source: Millennium Research Group, 2008).
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Intensity Modulated Radiation Therapy. IMRT 1s CONSIDERED A MORE ADVANCED FORM OF EBRT IN WHICH SOPHISTICATED COMPUTER CONTROL IS USED TO AIM TH
BEAM AT THE PROSTATE FROMMULTIPLE DIFFERENT ANGLES AND TO VARY THE INTENSITY OF THE BEAM. THDSMAGE TO NORMAL TISSUE AND CRITICAL STRUCTURES IS MINIMIZ
BY DISTRIBUTING THEUNWANTED RADIATION OVER A LARGER GEOMETRIC AREA. THIS COURSE OF TREATMESIMILAR TO EBRT AND REQUIRES DAILY DOSES OVER A PERIOD (
SEVEN TO EIGHTWEEKS TO DELIVER THE TOTAL DOSE OF RADIATION PRESCRIBED TO KILL THE TUMBWRCAUSE IMRT IS A NEW TREATMENT, LESS CLINICAL DATA REGARD
treatment EFFECTIVENESS AND THE INCIDENCE OF SIDE EFFECTS IS AVAILABLE. ONEDVANTAGE OF IMRT, AND TO SOME EXTENT EBRT, IS THE ABILITY TO TREAT CANCERS "
HAVE BEGUN TO SPREAD FROM THE TUMOR SITE. AN INCREASINGLY POPULAR THERAFDR PATIENTS WITH MORE ADVANCED PROSTATE CANCER IS A COMBINATION OF IMRT wit
SEED BRACHYTHERAPY, KNOWN AS COMBINATION OR DUAL THERAPY. IMRT W THE U.$INCLUDING DUAL THERAPY) IS PROJECTED TO GROW 9% PER YEAR FROM 31,5
PROCEDURESIN 2007 10 48,500 PROCEDURES IN 2012 (SoURCE: MILLENNIUM RESEARCH GrROUP2008). IMRT IS GENERALLY MORE EXPENSIVE THAN OTHER COMMO?!
treatment modalities.

Dual or Combination Therapy. DUAL THERAPY IS THE COMBINATION OF IMRT OR 3-DIMENSIONAL CONFORMAEXTERNAL BEAM RADIATION AND SEED BRACHYTHERAPY
TREAT EXTRA-PROSTATEXTENSIONS OR HIGH RISK PROSTATE CANCERS THAT HAVE GROWN OUTSIDE TRROSTATE. COMBINATION THERAPY TREATS HIGH RISK PATIENTS WITH A FU
coURSEOF IMRT or EBRT OVER A PERIOD OF SEVERAL WEEKS. WHEN THIS INITIAIREATMENT IS COMPLETED, THE PATIENT MUST THEN WAIT FOR SEVERAL MORE WEEKS
months to have the prostate seed implant.

WITH THEARRIVAL OF PROXCELAN Cs-131, WITH ITS SHORT HALF LIFE, PATIENTS MAY NOW COMPLEHEIR COURSE OF TREATMENT SOONER AND HAVE SHORTER DURATIONidE-
effects. Management estimates that at least 30% of all prostate implants are now dual therapy cases.

High Dose Rate Temporary Brachytherapy. HDR TEMPORARY BRACHYTHERAPY INVOLVES PLACING VERYINY PLASTIC CATHETERS INTO THE PROSTATE GLAND, AND T
GIVING A SERIES OF RADIATION TREATMENTS THROUGH THESE CATHETERS. THE CATHETERS AREREMEXVED, AND NO RADIOACTIVE MATERIAL IS LEFT IN THE PROSTATE GLAND
computer-controlled machine inserts a single highly radioactive iridium seed into the catheters one by one. This procedure is typically repeated at LEAST THRE
TIMES WHILE THE PATIENT IS HOSPITALIZED FOR AT LEAST 24 HOURHDR IS PROJECTED TO GROW APPROXIMATELY 1.3% PER YEAR FROM 26,200 PROCEDURES IR007 THROUGE
2012 (Source: Millennium Research Group, 2008).

Cryosurgery. CRYOSURGERY INVOLVES PLACING COLD METAL PROBES INTO THE PROSTATE ARREEZING THE TISSUE IN ORDER TO DESTROY THE TUMOR. CRYOSURGERY PATI
TYPICALLY STAY IN THE HOSPITAL FOR A DAY OR TWO AND HAVE HAD HIGHER RATESMBOTENCE AND OTHER SIDE EFFECTS THAN THOSE WHO HAVE USED SEED IMPLAM
BRACHYTHERAPY. MARKET RESEARCH FIRMS PROJECT THAT CRYOSURGERY WILL &ROWILY THROUGH 2012. To DATE THE MARKET HAS REMAINED ALMOST HSaurce:
Millennium Research Group, 2008).

Additional Treatments. ADDITIONAL TREATMENTS INCLUDE HORMONE THERAPY AND CHEMOTHERAPHORMONE THERAPY IS GENERALLY USED TO SHRINK THE TUMOR OR M2
it grow more SLOWLY BUT WILL NOT ERADICATE THE CANCER. LIKEWISE, CHEMOTHERAPY WILL BRADICATE THE CANCER BUT CAN SLOW THE TUMOR GROWTH. GENERALLY, '
TREATMENT ALTERNATIVES ARE USED BY DOCTORS TO EXTEND PATIENTS’ LIVES ONCE CAMCER HAS REACHED AN ADVANCED STAGE OR IN CONJUNCTION WITH OTHER TREAT}
METHODS. HORMONE THERAPY CAN CAUSE IMPOTENCE, DECREASED LIBIDO, AND BREASENLARGEMENT. MOST RECENTLY, HORMONE THERAPY HAS BEEN LINKED TO isrereased
RISK OF CARDIOVASCULAR DISEASE IN MEN WITH CERTAIN PRE-EXISTINGONDITIONS SUCH AS HEART DISEASE OR DIABETES. CHEMOTHERAPY CAN CAUSENEMIA, NAUSEA, HAIF
loss, and fatigue.

Watchful Waiting. Watchful waiting is not a treatment but might be suggested by some HEALTHCARE PROVIDERS DEPENDING ON THE AGE AND LIFE EXPECTANCY OF T
PATIENT. WATCHFUL WAITING MAY BE RECOMMENDED IF THE CANCER IS DIAGNOSED AS.OCALIZED AND SLOW GROWING, AND THE PATIENT IS ASYMPTOMATIC. GENERALLthis
APPROACH IS CHOSEN WHEN PATIENTS ARE TRYING TO AVOID THE SIDE AFFECBSSOCIATED WITH OTHER TREATMENTS OR WHEN THEY ARE NOT CANDIDATES FOR CURRENIpies
DUE TO OTHER HEALTH ISSUES. HEALTHCARE PROVIDERS WILL CAREFWIONITOR THE PATIENT’S PSA LEVELS AND OTHER SYMPTOMS OF PROSTATE CANCER AND MDECIDE ON
active treatments at a later date.
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Comparing Cs-131 to I-125 and Pd-103 Clinical Results

Long-term SURVIVAL DATA IS NOW AVAILABLE FOR BRACHYTHERAPY WITH I-125 AND PD-103, WHISHPPORT THE EFFICACY OF BRACHYTHERAPY. CLINICAL DATA INDICATE T
BRACHYTHERAPY OFFERS SUCCESS RATES FOR EARLY-STAGE PROSTATE CANCER TREATMBNTARE EQUAL TO OR BETTER THAN THOSE OF RP orR EBRT. WHILE CLISITUDIES OF
BRACHYTHERAPY TO DATE HAVE FOCUSED PRIMARILY ON RESULTS FRBRACHYTHERAPY WITH I-125 AND PD-103, MANAGEMENT BELIEVES THAT THESE DATA ARESO RELEVANT Fi
BRACHYTHERAPY WITH Cs-131. IN FACT, IT APPEARS THAIS-131 OFFERS IMPROVED CLINICAL OUTCOMES OVER [-125 AND Pp-103, GIVEN ITSHORTER HALF-LIFE AND HIGH
energy.

Improved patient outcomes. A NUMBER OF PUBLISHED STUDIES DESCRIBING THE USE OF [-125 AND Pp-103 BRACHYTHERAPY IN THE TREATMENT OF EARLY-STAGE PROS
CANCER HAVEBEEN VERY POSITIVE. A RECENT STUDY OF 2,963 PROSTATE CANCER PATIENTS WHOUNDERWENT BRACHYTHERAPY AS THEIR SOLE THERAPEUTIC MODALITY A°
INSTITUTIONSACROSS THE U.S. CONCLUDED THAT LOW-RISK PATIENTS (WHO MAKE UP THE PREPONDERANOE LOCALIZED CASES) WHO UNDERWENT ADEQUATE IMPLAN
EXPERIENCED RATES OF PSARELAPSE SURVIVAL OF GREATER THAN 90% BETWEEN EIGHT AND TEN YEARS (ZELEFSKY BMIRAN DA, ET AL, “MULTI-INSTITUTIONAL ANALYSIS
LONG-TERM OUTCOME FOR STAGEY1-T2 PROSTATE CANCER TREATED WITH PERMANENT SEED IMPLANTATIONINTERNATIONAL JOURNAL OF RaDiaTION ONcCOLOGY BioLc
Physics, Volume 67, Issue 2, 2007, 327-333).

OTHERRECENT STUDIES HAVE DEMONSTRATED SIMILAR, DURABLY HIGH RATES OF CONTROILLOWING BRACHYTHERAPY FOR LOCALIZED PROSTATE CANCER OUT TO 15 vpasts
TREATMENT (SYLVESTER J, ET AL. “15-YEAR BIOCHEMICAL RELAPSE FREE SURVINACLINICAL STAGE T1-T3 PROSTATE CANCER FOLLOWING COMBINED EXTERNAL BE
RADIOTHERAPY AND BRACHYTHERAPY; SEATTLE EXPERIENCE”, INTERNATIONAL JOURNARAOFATION ONCOLOGY BioLoGy Puysics, VoL. 67, Issue 1, 2007, 57-64.). Tu
cumulative effect of these series has been the conclusion by leaders in the field that brachytherapy offers a disease control rate as high as surgery, though with
A LESSER SIDE-EFFECT PROFILE THAN SURGERY (CIEZKI JPPROSTATE BRACHYTHERAPY FOR LOCALIZED PROSTATE CANCER” CURRENT TREATMENT OPINANSCOLOGY, VOLUME 6,
2005, 389-393).

Reduced Incidence of Side Effects. SEXUAL IMPOTENCE AND URINARY INCONTINENCE ARE TWO MAJOBONCERNS MEN FACE WHEN CHOOSING AMONG VARIOUS FORMS OF
treatment for prostate CANCER. STUDIES HAVE SHOWN THAT BRACHYTHERAPY WITH EXISTING SOURGHSSULTS IN LOWER RATES OF IMPOTENCE AND INCONTINENCE THAN SURG
(Frank, BuroN). COMBINED WITH THE HIGH DISEASE CONTROL RATES DESCRIBED IN MANSTUDIES, THESE FINDINGS HAVE DRIVEN THE ADOPTION OF BRACHYTHERAPY Asfsont-
line therapy for localized prostate cancer.

It has been noted, however, that a significant proportion of patients who undergo I-125 or Pp-103 BRACHYTHERAPY EXPERIENCE ACUTE URINARY IRRITATIVE SYMPTO
FOLLOWINGTREATMENT — IN FACT MORE SO THAN WITH SURGERY OR EXTERNAL BEAM RADIATION THE@A®ANK SJ, PISTERS LL, ET AL, “AN ASSESSMENT OF QUALITY OF
following RADICAL PROSTATECTOMY, HIGH DOSE EXTERNAL BEAM RADIATION THERAPY, ABRACHYTHERAPY IODINE IMPLANTATION AS MONOTHERAPIES FOR LOCALIZED PROST?
CANCER” JoURNAL oF UroLoGY, VOLUME 177, 2007, 2151-2156). It HAS BERSSTULATED THAT Cs-131, WITH THE SHORTEST AVAILABLE HALF-LIFE FOR A LOW{BtS
THERAPY ISOTOPE, WILL RESULT IN A QUICKER RESOLUTION OF THESE IRRITAFIWMPTOMS BASED ON THE SHORTER TIME INTERVAL OVER WHICH NORMAL TISSUE RECEIVEadiation
from the implanted sources.

Preliminary DATA DRAWN FROM SEVERAL CLINICAL STUDIES SUGGEST THAT PATIENTS TREATED WEei31 DO IN FACT EXPERIENCE A FASTER RESOLUTION OF THESE SIDE EFFECT!
COMPARISON TO SIMILAR STUDIES PUBLISHED FOR OTHER ISOTOPES (DEFOE SG, ET AL, “ISHERE A DECREASED DURATION OF ACUTE URINARY AND BOWEL SYMPTOMS AFTER PROf
BRACHYTHERAPY WITH CESIUM 131 1S0TOPE?", INTERNATIONAL JOURNAL OF RADIATIONCOLOGY BioLoGy PHysics, VOLUME 72 (SUPPLEMENT 1), S317; JONES A, ET AL
"IPSS TRENDS FOR Cs-131 PERMANENT PROSTATE BRACHYTHERAPY" BRACHYTHERAPY, VOLUMISSTE 2, 194; PLATTA CS, ET AL, “EARLY OUTCOMES OF PROSTATE S
Implants with 131Cs: Toxicity and Initial PSA Dynamics from a Single Institution" International Journal of Radiation Oncology Biology Physics, Volume 72
(Supplement 1),2008, S323-4).

A Cs-131 monotherapy trial for the treatment of prostate cancer was fully enrolled in FEBRUARY 2007. THE TRIAL WAS A 100 PATIENT MULTI-INSTITUTIONAL STUDY
SOUGHT TO (1) DOCUMENT THE DOSIMETRIC CHARACTERISTICS OF Cs-131, (2) SOMMARIZE THE SIDE EFFECT PROFILE OF Cs-131 TREATMENT, AND (3) To TRAxmchemical
(PSA) results in patients following Cs-131 therapy.
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The INVESTIGATORS RESPONSIBLE FOR CONDUCTING THE STUDY HAVE CONCLUDED BASED ON TRESULTS OF THE MONOTHERAPY TRIAL THAT Cs-131 IS A VIABLE ALTERNATIVE
ISOTOPE FOR PERMANENT SEED PROSTATE BRACHYTHERAPY (PRESTIDGE BR, BicE WSCLINICAL OUTCOMES OF A PHASE 1I, MULTI-INSTITUTIONAL CESIUM-131 PERMANE!
prostate brachytherapy trial”. Brachytherapy, Volume 6, Issue 2, April-June 2007, Page 78).

Some of the significant and specific findings were as follows:
"  PATIENTREPORTED IRRITATIVE URINARY SYMPTOMS (IPSS SCORES) WERE MILD TO MODERAWHTH RELATIVELY RAPID RESOLUTION WITHIN 4-6 MONTHS. THE FIGU

below DEPICTS THE SYMPTOM SCORES IN THE Cs-131 STUDY AS COMPARED TO PUBLISHED REPORTS OF PATIENTS WHO UNDERWENT I-125 BRACHYTHERAPY. ESPECIAL
NOTABLE IS THE STEEP DROP IN THE Cs-131 GROUP SCORES (PURPLE LINE) ASPPOSED TO THE MORE GRADUAL DROP IN THE [-125 GROUP SCORES (GREEN AND BL

lines).
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= PROSTATESPECIFIC ANTIGEN, OR PSA, RESPONSE OVER 36 MONTHS HAS BEEN VERYENCOURAGING TO DATE WITH SIMILAR TUMOR CONTROL RATES TO THARFI®S.
(PresTipGE BR, BicE WS, “CLINICAL OUTCOMES OF A PHASE IMULTI-INSTITUTIONAL CESIUM-131 PERMANENT PROSTATE BRACHYTHERAPY TRIA
Brachytherapy, Volume 6, Issue 2, April-June 2007, PAGE 78). THE GRAPH BELOW DEPICTS THE MEDIAN PSAsTO DATE FROM THE 100 PATIENT Cs-13
BRACHYTHERAPY SERIES AS COMPARED T®REVIOUSLY PUBLISHED I-125 SERIES. THERE HAVE BEEN NO PSA FAILURESIN THE Cs-131 MONOTHERAPY STUDY TO DATE
(A PSA failure is a rise in the blood level of PSA in prostate cancer patients after treatment with radiation or surgery.)

saeum PRA for Cohort

"l oL u 3 A i s
onite Post imoland

= Gland COVERAGE WAS EXCELLENT AND THE DOSE DELIVERED TO CRITICAL STRUCTMRESDE THE PROSTATE WAS WELL WITHIN ACCEPTABLE LIMITS. (BicE W®restidge
BR, “CEesiuM-131 PERMANENT PROSTATE BRACHYTHERAPY: THE DOSIMETRIANALYSIS OF A MULTI-INSTITUTIONAL PHASE II TRIAL”. BRACHYTHER2097(6); 88-
89.).

Several OTHER SERIES HAVE BEEN REPORTED THAT HAVE COMPARED DOSIMETRIC PARAMETEKENDICATORS OF DOSE) AMONG Cs-131, Pp-103, AND I-125. THESE COMPARATIVE
STUDIES HAVE SHOWN A CLEAR ADVANTAGE TO CESIUM-131 FROM A DOSIMETRROINT-OF-VIEW, IN TERMS OF SUCCESSFUL GLAND COVERAGE OBTAINED (TYPICALIMEASURED BY
D90) WHILE KEEPING UNNECESSARY GLAND OVER-DOSING (TYPICALLY MEASUREBY V150 or V200) To A MINIMUM (MUSMACHER JS, ET AL, "DOSIMETRIC COMPARISON OF
Cesium-131 AND PALLADIUM-103 FOR PERMANENT PROSTATE BRACHYTHERAPY" INTERNATIQMARNAL OF RaDpIATION ONcoLoGY BiorLogy Paysics, VOLUME 6
(SuppLEMENT 3), 2007, S730-1; YararraLvI R, ET AL, "Is Cs-131 or I-125 or Pp-103 THE IDEAL ISOTOPE FBROSTATE BoOST BRACHYTHERAPY? A DOSIMETRIC VIE
PoINT." INTERNATIONAL JOURNAL BRDIATION ONCOLOGY BioLoGY PHysics, VOLUME 69 (SUPPLEMENT 3), 2007, S677-8; SUTLIEF S AND WALLNER K, "Cs-131 Prost.
BRACHYTHERAPY ANDIREATMENT PLAN PARAMETERS." MEDICAL PHysics, VoLumE 34, 2007, 2431; KurrzmaN "B)oSIMETRIC EVALUATION OF PERMANENT PROSTA
Brachytherapy Using Cs-131 Sources" International Journal of Radiation Oncology Biology Physics, Volume 66 (Supplement 3), S395).

THE MONOTHERAPY Cs-131 TRIAL WILL CONTINUE TO FOLLOW PATIENTS WITH ANNUAL UPDATESSOMPTOMS AND PATIENT LONG-TERM SURVIVAL DATA. THE COMPANY
anticipates maintaining this ongoing monitoring over several years to prove the long-term effectiveness of Cs-131.

The PROSPECTIVE RANDOMIZED MONOTHERAPY TRIAL HEADED BY DR. BRIAN MORAN OF TiEHICAGO PROSTATE CANCER CENTER DIRECTLY COMPARED Cs-131 10 I-125 P
response AND TREATMENT RELATED MORBIDITIES FOLLOWING BRACHYTHERAPY FOR LOCALTARRINOMA OF THE PROSTATE IN LOW TO INTERMEDIATE RISK PATIENTS. DR. Mol
CONCLUDED THAT PROSTATE BRACHYTHERAPY WITH Cs-131 IS EFFECTIVE AWBLL-TOLERATED; BOTH PSA RESPONSE AND THE ACUTE MORBIDITY PROFILE WERE \
encouraging. Dr. Moran will continue to track these patients in order to collect long-term outcomes.
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RECENTLYACCEPTED FOR PUBLICATION WAS THE Cs-131 Apvisory Groupr’s (CAG) ARTICLE ENTITLEIRECOMMENDATIONS FOR PERMANENT PROSTATE BRACHYTHERAPY WI1
131Cs: A CONSENSUS REPORT FROM THE CESIUM ADVISORY GROUP”. THE OBJECTIVE OF THEARTICLE WAS T(PROVIDE CONSENSUS RECOMMENDATIONS FOR Cs-131 PROSTAT
BRACHYTHERAPY BASED ON EXPERIENCE TO DATEOR PHYSICIANS STILL UNFAMILIAR WITH Cs-131. THE RECOMMENDATIONS ARE BASEDN THREE CLINICAL TRIALS, ONE OF WHI
HAS COMPLETED ACCRUAL AND HAS BEERUBLISHED IN THE PEER REVIEWED LITERATURE, AND COMBINED CAG EXPERIENCE OF MORETHAN 1,200 Cs-131 mMpLANTS. THE
RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE GROUP AREDESIGNED TO AID PRACTITIONERS IN THE SAFE AND EFFECTIVE DELIVERY OF Cs-1BROSTATE BRACHYTHERAPY. THE CONSENSUS PAPE
was published in Brachytherapy in the fourth quarter of calendar year 2008. The CAG is sponsored by the Company.

THE COMPANY HAS ALSO COMMISSIONED A DUAL THERAPY PROTOCOL. THISMULTI-INSTITUTIONAL TRIAL OBSERVES THE DOSIMETRIC CHARACTERISTICS OF Cs-131 hmmlth
RELATED QUALITY OF LIFE (HRQOL) RESULTS FOLLOWING COMBINED Cs-1BRANSPERINEAL PERMANENT PROSTATE BRACHYTHERAPY AND EXTERNAL BEAM RADIOTHERA]
PATIENTS WITH INTERMEDIATE TO HIGH RISK PROSTATE CANCER. THIS PROTOCOL BEING CONDUCTED TO CONFIRM CLINICALLY WHAT RADIOBIOLOGICAL DATA SUGGESERarding
THIS TREATMENT MODALITY. THE QUANTIFIED DOSIMETRIC VARIABLE®LLECTED WILL BE CORRELATED TO THE REPORTED HRQOL DATA AND ULTIMATELY COMPAREBXISTING
DATA IN THE LITERATURE FOR SIMILAR INVESTIGATIONS USING I-125 ARD-103. PATIENT ENROLLMENT FOR THIS STUDY BEGAN IN APRIL 2007 AND GATIENTS HAD BEEN
enrolled through June 30, 2009.

In ADDITION TO ESTABLISHING THE DOSIMETRIC AND QUALITY OF LIFE IMPACT OF PROXCEL&ESIUM-131 BRACHYTHERAPY SEEDS IN DIFFERENT TREATMENT MODALITIES, ALL TF
have been designed to collect ongoing PSA results for the purposes of establishing long-term survival rates using Cs-131 seed implant brachytherapy.

Lung Cancer Treatment Options

Lung CANCER HAS HISTORICALLY BEEN TREATED BY SURGERY AND CHEMOTHERAPY BUT IN RECEBARS VARIOUS FORMS OF RADIATION HAVE ALSO BEEN USED. SURGERY GENERA
INVOLVES REMOVING A PORTION OF THE LUNG OR THE ENTIRE LUNG. CHEMOTHERAMAY BE USED EITHER AS A PRIMARY TREATMENT OR A SECONDARY TREATMENT DEPENDING
THE TYPE AND STAGE OF THE LUNG CANCER. EXTERNAL BEAM RADIATION THERAROMETIMES USED AS THE PRIMARY TREATMENT IF THE TUMOR CANNOT BE REMOVED BSUrgery
due to the tumor’s location or the patient’s health.

Brachytherapy 1s NOW BEING USED IN CONJUNCTION WITH SURGERY TO KILL SMALL AREAS OF CANCER TMAGHT BE MISSED DURING SURGERY. THE COMPANY BELIEVES THAT
Cs-131, WITH ITSSHORTER HALF-LIFE AND HIGH ENERGY, IS BETTER SUITED FOR TREATING LUNG CANDER EITHER [-125 orR Pp-103. THE BIOABSORBABLE MESH USED IN TH
procedure GENERALLY DISSOLVES AFTER ABOUT 45 DAYS. Cs-131 DELIVERS 90% OF ITS D@SE33 DAYS AND IS THEREFORE WELL-SUITED TO USE WITH THE BIOABSORBABLE ME
in this procedure.

Head and Neck Cancer Treatment Options

MOST HEADAND NECK CANCERS ARE TREATED WITH SOME COMBINATION OF SURGERY, CHEMOTHERAPY, ARBDIATION THERAPY. SURGERY IS THE MOST COMMON OPTION AN
TAKES MANY DIFFERENT FORMS IN AN EFFORT TO REMOVE ANY CANCEROUS TISSUE. CHEMOTHERA®YOFTEN USED IN CONJUNCTION WITH SURGERY OR RADIATION THERA
DEPENDING ON THE TYPE AND STAGE OF THE CANCER. EXTERNAL BEAM RADIATION THERAPY ARACHYTHERAPY HAVE BEEN USED TOGETHER OR IN COMBINATION WITH SURGE
or chemotherapy.

Ocular Melanoma Treatment Options

IN ADDITION TO BRACHYTHERAPY TO TREAT OCULAR MELANOMA, OTHER TREATMENT OPTNONSDE SURGERY, EXTERNAL BEAM RADIATION, AND LASER THERAPY. SURGERY C
INCLUDE REMOVAL OF PART OF THE IRIS, A PORTION OF THE OUTER EYEBALL, OR REMIOVAL OF THE ENTIRE EYEBALL. EXTERNAL BEAM RADIATION (INCLUDING PROb@am
RADIATION THERAPY AND STEREOTACTIC RADIOSURGERY) INVOLVES SENDING RADIATHR®OM A SOURCE OUTSIDE THE BODY THAT IS FOCUSED ON THE CANCER BUT HAS NOT BEE}
WIDELY USED TO DATE FOR OCULAR MELANOMA. LASER THERAPY BURNS THE CANCERUBSUE BY USING A HIGHLY FOCUSED, HIGH-ENERGY LIGHT BEAM AND IS EFFECTIVE FC
small melanomas near the optic nerve as it causes less nerve damage. (American Cancer Society, 2009)
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Brachytherapy usiNg Cs-131, I-125, or Pp-103 1S DONE BY PLACING THE SEEDS IN A PLAQUE (SHAPED LIKE A SMALL CAP) THAT IS ATTACHED TO THE EYEBALL WITH MIN
STITCHES FOR 2 TG DAYS. THE PATIENT GENERALLY STAYS IN THE HOSPITAL UNTIL THE PLAQUEREMOVED FROM THE EYE. BRACHYTHERAPY CURES APPROXIMATELY 9 OUT OF
small tumors and can preserve the vision of some patients. (American Cancer Society, 2009)

Our Strategy
The key elements of IsoRay’s strategy for fiscal year 2010 include:

= Continue to introduce the Proxcelan Cs-131 brachytherapy seed into the U.S. market. UTILIZING OUR DIRECT SALES ORGANIZATION, ISORAY INTENDS
CONTINUE EXPANDING THE USE OF PROXCELAN Cs-131 SEEDS IN BRACHYTHERAPY PROCEDURHXR PROSTATE CANCER BY INCREASING THE NUMBER OF TREATMI
centers offering Cs-131 AND INCREASING THE NUMBER OF PATIENTS TREATED AT EACH CENTER USIKI$-131. ISORAY HOPES TO CAPTURE MUCH OF THE INCREMENTA
market growth in seed implant brachytherapy and take market share from existing competitors.

= Work with our distribution partner, BrachySciences, to increase prostate market penetration. WITH BRACHYSCIENCE’S ADDITIONAL SALES PERSONNE
ISORAY EXPECTS TO REACH ANNCREASING NUMBER OF CENTERS AND PHYSICIANS ACROSS THE COUNTRY THAT HANBT HAD ACCESS TO A SALES REPRESENTATIVE IN TH
area. IsoRay RECEIVED ITS FIRST ORDER FROM BRACHYSCIENCES IN AUGUST 2009. THRCREASES FROM THIS DISTRIBUTION CHANNEL HAVE BEEN SLOW DUE TO MA?}
OF THESAME ISSUES THAT ISORAY’S DIRECT SALES FORCE ENCOUNTERS (E.G. FACILITCENSE AMENDMENTS). HOWEVER, MANAGEMENT BELIEVES THAT DISTRIBUTIO
sales will become an important sales channel in the future.

= Increase utilization of Cs-131 in treatment of other solid tumor applications such as head and neck and lung cancers. ISORAY MEDICAL HAS RECEIVEL
CLEARANCE FROM THEDA FOR ITS PREMARKET NOTIFICATION, (510(k)) FOR PROXCELAN™ BRACHYTHERSEBDS THAT ARE PRELOADED INTO BIOABSORBABLE BRAID
STRANDS. THIS ORDERLEARS THE PRODUCT FOR COMMERCIAL DISTRIBUTION FOR TREATMENT OF LUNGHBWD AND NECK TUMORS AS WELL AS TUMORS IN OTHER ORGA
IsoRay has RECEIVED INTEREST FROM SOME PHYSICIANS WHO WISH TO USE Cs-131 FOR OTHERUMOR SITES INCLUDING LUNG, AND HEAD AND NECK, DUE TO THE SH(
HALF LIFETHAT MAY POTENTIALLY HELP REDUCE THE MIGRATION OF THE RADIOACTIVITY TO GHHER PARTS OF THE BODY BEFORE THE TREATMENT DOSE HAS Bl
DELIVERED TOTHE TUMOR. WHILE Cs-131 BRACHYTHERAPY SEEDS THEMSELVES HAVE BEENLEARED FOR THESE APPLICATIONS SINCE 2003, THIS CURRENT 510
allows CEsiuM-131 SEEDS TO BE DELIVERED IN A CONVENIENT AND STERILE FORMAT TH&AN BE IMPLANTED WITHOUT ADDITIONAL SEED LOADING BY THE FACILIT
THE 510(K) ALSO PERMITS THE APPLICATION OF THE BRAIDED STRANDS ONTOBMOABSORBABLE MESH MATRIX TO FURTHER FACILITATE THE IMPLARROCEDURE. THE
MATERIAL (MESH) USED TO HOLD THE FLEXIBLE SUTURRTERIAL IN PLACE DISSOLVES WITHIN 45 DAYS. WITH THE TREATMENT DO$ROM Cs-131 BEING DELIVERED IN
33 days, many physicians feel confident THAT THE TREATMENT DOSE NEEDED TO TREAT THE TUMOR WILL BE DELIVERED PRIGREE MESH DISSOLVING. ISORAY WILI
CONTINUE TO EXPLORE JOINVENTURES WITH OTHER COMPANIES TO DEVELOP THE APPROPRIATE TECHNOLOGIES ANTHERAPEUTIC DELIVERY SYSTEMS FOR TREATMENT
other solid tumors such as breast, liver, pancreas, and brain cancers.

= Continue to develop an enriched barium manufacturing process. WORKING WITH LEADINGSCIENTISTS, ISORAY IS WORKING TO DESIGN AND CREATE
PROPRIETARY PROCESSFOR MANUFACTURING ENRICHED BARIUM, A KEY SOURCE MATERIAL FOR Cs-13THIS WILL ENSURE ADEQUATE FUTURE SUPPLY OF Cs-131 At
greater efficiencies in producing the isotope.

= Continue to develop data on Cs-131 for treatment of ocular melanoma. THE COMPANY’S FIRST SALE FOR OCULAR MELANOMA OCCURRED IN LATE 2007
periodic sales HAVE OCCURRED SINCE THEN. ISORAY IS SPONSORING A PROSPECTIVE REVIEWOF THE PATIENTS TREATED WITH Cs-131 To DATE. THIS CLINICAL DAT.
EXPECTED TO BE AVAILABLE FOR THE AMERICAN BRACHYTHERAPY SOCIETY ANNUMEETING IN THE SPRING OF 2010. ALTHOUGH THE OCULAR MELANOMA MARKHS
not a large one, this application of Cs-131 shows potential viability for other solid tumors.
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= Support clinical research and sustained product development. THE COMPANY PLANS TO STRUCTURRND SUPPORT CLINICAL STUDIES ON THE THERAPEUT
BENEFITS OF Cs-131 FOR THEREATMENT OF SOLID TUMORS AND OTHER PATIENT BENEFITS. WE ARE ANIL CONTINUE TO SUPPORT CLINICAL STUDIES WITH SEVER
leading radiation ONCOLOGISTS TO CLINICALLY DOCUMENT PATIENT OUTCOMES, PROVIDE SUPPORT FORUR PRODUCT CLAIMS, AND COMPARE THE PERFORMANCE OF Ol
SEEDS TO COMPETING SEEDS. ISORAY PLANS TO SUSTAIN LONG-TERM GROWTH BY IMPLEMENTINRESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS WITH LEADING MEDIC/
institutions in the U.S. and other countries to identify and develop other applications for IsoRay’s core radioisotope technology.

e Introduce Proxcelan Cesium-131 brachytherapy seeds to the Canadian and Russian markets. Health Canada’s Therapeutic Products Directorate has
APPROVED IsORAY’s CLaSS 3 MEbpicAL DEVICE LICENSE APPLICATIONS FOR MODEL CS-1 ProXCELAN TYCESIUM-131) BRACHYTHERAPY SEEDS AND TH
PrROXCELAN™ STERILE IMPLANDEVICES CONTAINING MODEL CS-1 SEEDS. THIS ALLOWS ISORAY TO MARKEITS BRACHYTHERAPY SEEDS AND RELATED PRELOAL
BRACHYTHERAPY SEEDSTHROUGHOUT CANADA. ISORAY WILL CONDUCT A SEARCH TO LOOK FOR A VINBIRIBUTION PARTNER IN CANADA. APPROVAL TO MARK
CEesiuM-131 SEEDS IN RUSSIA WAS ALSO OBTAINED IN 2009; HOWEVER, THE ECONOMIC DOWNTURN INRUSSIA HAS SLOWED THE COMPANY’S MARKET PENETRATIO
EFFORTS. THECOMPANY IS NOW FOCUSING ON THE CANADIAN AND RUSSIAN MARKETS AND IS NOLONGER PURSUING SALES IN THE EuropEaN Union (EU)
MANAGEMENT NOLONGER BELIEVES A STRATEGIC ALLIANCE WITH IBT, SA, A BELGIAN COMPANY, WBELCONSUMMATED NOR WILL MANAGEMENT LEVERAGE IBT
distribution channels in the EU.

= Maintain ISO 13485 certification. IN August 2008, THE CoMPANY OBTAINED ITS ISO 13485 CERTIFICATION. THIS WAS AN IMPORTANT STEP TO ALLOW T
Company TO REGISTER AND EVENTUALLY SELL ITS PROXCELAN Cs-131 BRACHYTHERAPY SBEE®\NADA AND Russia. THE COMPANY COMPLETED ITS REGISTRATION
of Proxcelan Cs-131 brachytherapy seeds in Canada and Russia during fiscal year 2009.

Products

IsoRay MARKETS THE PROXCELAN Cs-13Brachytherapy SEED FOR THE TREATMENT OF PROSTATE CANCER, OCULAR MELANOMAS, AND HEAD AND NBMYCERS, AND INTENDS T
MARKET Cs-131 FOR THE TREATMENT OF OTHER MALIGNBISEASE, SUCH AS LUNG, IN THE NEAR FUTURE. ADDITIONALLY, THE COMPANY ISVESTIGATING ITS ABILITY TO MARKE
other radioactive isotopes.

Competitive Advantages of Proxcelan Cs-131

Management believes that the Proxcelan Cesium-131 brachytherapy seed has specific clinical advantages for treating cancer over I-125 and Pd-103, the other
isotopes CURRENTLY USED IN BRACHYTHERAPY SEEDS. THE TABLE BELOW HIGHLIGHTS THE KIFFERENCES OF THE THREE SEEDS. THE COMPANY BELIEVES THAT THE SHORalf-
LIFE, HIGH-ENERGY CHARACTERISTICS OF Cs-131 WILL INCREASE INDUSTRY GROWNH FACILITATE MEANINGFUL PENETRATION INTO THE TREATMENT OF OTHER FORMSAMFCER SUCH

as lung cancer.

Isotope Delivery Over Time

Isotope Half-Life Energy 90% Dose Total Dose
Cs-131 9.7 days 30.4 KeV 33 days 115 Gy
Pd-103 17 days 20.8 KeV 58 days 125 Gy
I-125 60 days 28.5 KeV 204 days 145 Gy

Cs-131 Manufacturing Process and Suppliers

Product Overview. Cs-131 1S A RADIOACTIVE ISOTOPE THAT CAN BE PRODUCED BY THE NEUTRON BOMBARDMENT dBARIUM-130 (BA-130). WHEN PLACED INTO A NUCLEA
REACTOR AND EXPOSED TO KLUX OF NEUTRONS, BA-130 BECOMES BA-131, THE RADIOACTIVE MATERIAL THAT IS PARENT ISOTOPE OF Cs-131. THE RADIOACTIVE 1SOTOPE CS
131 1S NORMALLYPRODUCED BY PLACING A QUANTITY OF STABLE NON-RADIOACTIVE BARIUM (IDEALLY BARIUBNRICHED IN ISOTOPE BA-130) INTO THE NEUTRON FLUX OF
NUCLEAR REACTOR[HE IRRADIATION PROCESS CONVERTS A SMALL FRACTION OF THIS MATERIAL INRABIOACTIVE FORM OF BARIUM (BA-131). THE Ba-131 DECAYS BY ELECTR(
capture to the radioactive isotope of interest (Cs-131).
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To PRODUCE THE PROXCELAN SEED, THE PURIFIED Cs-131 ISOTOPE IS ADSORBED ONTO @ERAMIC CORE CONTAINING A GOLD X-RAY MARKER. THIS INTERNAL CORE ASSEMBLY
SUBSEQUENTLY INSERTED INTO A TITANIUM CAPSULE THAT IS THEN WELDED SHUT ABBECOMES A SEALED RADIOACTIVE SOURCE AND A BIOCOMPATIBLE MEDICAL DEVICE. THE
DIMENSIONAL TOLERANCES FOR THE CERAMIC CORE, GOLD X-RAY MARKER, AND THE TITANIUFSULE ARE EXTREMELY IMPORTANT. TO DATE THE COMPANY HAS USED SOLE-SOUR
PROVIDERS FOR CERTAIN COMPONENTS SUCH AS THE GOLD X-RAY MARKER AND THE TITANIOMPSULE AS THESE SUPPLIERS HAVE BEEN VALIDATED BY OUR QUALITY DEPARTME!
and they have been cost effective.

Barium Enrichment Device. THE COMPANY HAS RETAINED AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR TDEVELOP AN ENRICHMENT DEVICE TO PRODUCE “ENRICHED BARIUM” HAVING #
higher CONCENTRATION OF THE BA-130 ISOTOPE THAN IS FOUND IN NATURALLY OCCURRBM®IUM. IRRADIATING ENRICHED BARIUM WILL RESULT IN HIGHER YIELDS €@i5-131.
THE COMPANY ANTICIPATES THE USE OF ENRICHED BARIUM WILL ALSOSTREAMLINE THE MANUFACTURING PROCESS AND REDUCE Cs-131 proDUCTION cOSTEHE COMPANY’S
prototype enrichment device has experienced development delays, is Now 18 MONTHS BEYOND ITS ORIGINAL COMPLETION DATE AND IS NOW EXPECTED TO BETESTED I
the Fall 0f2009, but there is no assurance this testing will occur by then or whether it will be successful. The Company will owe an additional $56,610 To THI
CONTRACTOR UPON COMPLETION OF A SUCCESSFUL DEMONSTRATION OF TEWRICHMENT PROCESS AND WILL DETERMINE FOLLOWING THE DEMONSTRATION WHETHER pH@totype
MODEL WILL BE CAPABLE OF PRODUCING SUFFICIENT QUANTITIES OF ENRICHEBARIUM. IF THE PROTOTYPE MODEL WILL NOT PRODUCE SUFFICIENT QUANTITIERJEN THE COMPANY
will need to spend $100,000 to $150,000 for a larger production model.

Isotope Suppliers. DUE TO THE SHORT HALF-LIFE OF BOTH THE Ba-131 AND Cs-131 1SOTOPES, POTENTIARPLIERS MUST BE CAPABLE OF REMOVING IRRADIATED MATERIAL
FROM THE REACTOR CORIN A ROUTINE BASIS FOR SUBSEQUENT PROCESSING TO PRODUCE ULTRA-PURE Cs-13 IN ADDITION, THE SUPPLIER’S NUCLEAR REACTOR FACILITY MUST H.
SUFFICIENTIRRADIATION CAPACITY TO ACCOMMODATE BARIUM TARGETS AND THE NUCLEAR REACTORS MIME SUFFICIENT NEUTRON FLUX TO ECONOMICALLY PRODU
COMMERCIALLY VIABLEQUANTITIES OF Cs-131. IDEALLY, THE IRRADIATION FACILITY WILL ALSO HAVRARIOCHEMICAL SEPARATION INFRASTRUCTURE TO CARRY OUT THE IN
SEPARATION STEPS. THE COMPANY HAS IDENTIFIED KEY REACTOR FACILITIES IN THE U.S. ANDN RUSSIA THAT ARE CAPABLE OF MEETING THESE REQUIREMENTS. IN ORDER
MANAGE THE RUSSIAN SUPPLY MORE EFFECTIVELY ISORAY ENTERED INTO AN AGREEMENT WITHRALDIAL, LLC (A Russian LLC) o PrROVIDE Cs-131 1S0TOPE FROM Russia -
the CoMPANY’S FACILITY IN RicHLAND, WA. URALDIAL 0BTAINS Cs-131 FROM TWOUPPLIERS. THE COMPANY ALSO CONTINUES TO RECEIVE IRRADIATED BARIUM FROMhe
MURR REACTOR LOCATED IN THE UNITED STATES. FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENE 30, 2009, APPROXIMATELY SIXTY-FIVE PERCENT (65%) OF OUR Cs-131 was SUPPLIED by
one of two Russian supply sources and 35% from domestic sources.

The CoMPANY PLANS TO EXPAND Cs-131 MANUFACTURING CAPABILITY AT THE MURR REACTOR BU¥ILL CONTINUE TO OBTAIN Cs-131 FROM MULTIPLE SUPPLIERS. FAILURE °
obtain DELIVERIES OF Cs-131 FROM AT LEAST ONE OF ITS RUSSIAN SUPPLIERS COULD HAVEMATERIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON SEED PRODUCTION. MANAGEMENT BELIEVES IT W
continue to rely solely on its existing suppliers in the near future and shutdowns from these suppliers could cause delays in deliveries and production.

Quality Controls. WE HAVE ESTABLISHED PROCEDURES AND CONTROLS TO COMPLY WITH THE FDA’s QUALITY SYSTREGULATION. THE COMPANY CONSTANTLY MONITOR
THESE PROCEDURES AND CONTROITD ENSURE THAT THEY ARE OPERATING PROPERLY, THEREBY WORKING TO MAINTAINIGH-QUALITY PRODUCT. ALSO, THE QUALITY, PRODUCTIC
AND CUSTOMER SERVICEDEPARTMENTS MAINTAIN OPEN COMMUNICATIONS TO ENSURE THAT ALL REGULATOREQUIREMENTS FOR THE FDA, DOT, AND APPLICABLE NUCLE
radiation and health authorities are fulfilled.

In July 2008, IsoRay had its baseline inspection by the FDA at its manufacturing and ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES IN RICHLAND, WA. THIS INSPECTION WAS CARRIED OU

OVER A FIVE DAY PERIOD OF TIME DURING WHICH THE INVESTIGATOR PERFORMED @OMPLETE INSPECTION FOLLOWING QUALITY SYSTEMS INSPECTION TECHNIQUES(QSIT). AT
the end of the inspection no report of deviations from Good Manufacturing Practices or list of observations (form FDA 483) was issued to IsoRay.
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Order Processing. The COMPANY HAS IMPLEMENTED A JUST-IN-TIME PRODUCTION PROCESS THAT IS RESPONSIVE TO CUSTOMER INPUT AND ORDERS TO ENSURE THAT INDIVIDU
CUSTOMERS RECEIVE A HIGHERLEVEL OF CUSTOMER SERVICE THAN RECEIVED FROM OUR COMPETITORS WHO HAVE THE LUXORYLONGER LEAD TIMES DUE TO LONGER HALF-
PRODUCTS. TIME FROM ORDERCONFIRMATION TO COMPLETION OF PRODUCT MANUFACTURE IS REDUCED TO SEVERAL WORKINGYS, INCLUDING RECEIPT OF IRRADIATED BARIU!
(FROM A SUPPLIER’S REACTORBEPARATION OF Cs-131, ISOTOPE LABELING OF THE CORE, AND LOADING OF CORES INPRE-WELDED TITANIUM “‘CANS” FOR FINAL WELDING, TESTIN
quality assurance and shipping.

IT 1S UP TO EACH PHYSICIAN TO DETERMINE THE DOSAGE NECESSARY FOR IMPLANTS AND ACCEPTABDEDSAGES VARY AMONG PHYSICIANS. MANY OF THE PHYSICIANS WHO ORDEI
our seeds order more seeds than necessary to assure themselves that they have a sufficient QUANTITY. UPON RECEIPT OF AN ORDER, THE COMPANY EITHER DELIVERS T
SEEDS FROM ITS FACILITY DIRECTLY TO THE PHYSICIAN OR SENDS THE ORDER TO AN INDEPENDPRELOADING SERVICE THAT DELIVERS THE SEEDS PRELOADED INTO NEEDLES
cartridges JUST PRIOR TO IMPLANT. IF THE IMPLANT IS POSTPONED OR RESCHEDULED, TISHORT HALF-LIFE OF THE SEEDS MAKES THEM UNSUITABLE FOR USE AND THEREFORE
must be re-ordered.

DUE TOTHE LEAD TIME FOR OBTAINING AND PROCESSING THE Cs-131 ISOTOPE AND THE SHORIALF-LIFE, THE COMPANY RELIES ON SALES FORECASTS AND HISTORICAL KNOWLI
to estimate the proper inventory levels of isotope needed to fulfill all customer orders. Consequently, some portion of the isotope is lost through decay and is
NOT USED IN AN END PRODUCT. MANAGEMENT CONTINUES TO REDUCE THRARIANCES BETWEEN ORDERED ISOTOPE AND ISOTOPE DELIVERIES AND IS CONTINUALIMPROVING ITS
ordering process efficiencies.

Automated Manufacturing Process

IN F1scAL2009, ISORAY AUTOMATED CERTAIN ASPECTS OF ITS MANUFACTURING LINE IDENTIFIED BMANAGEMENT TO PROVIDE PROCESS EFFICIENCIES, COST SAVINGS ANL
consistent MANUFACTURING QUALITY. THE COMPANY WILL CONTINUE TO EVALUATE AND IMPLEMENAUTOMATION IN THE FUTURE THAT SUPPORTS PROCESS IMPROVEMENT AN
resource MANAGEMENT. IN ADDITION, MANAGEMENT PLANS TO IMPLEMENT PROCESSES AND AUTOMATION IN SUPPORT OF ADDITIONAL TREATMENT SITES SUCH AS HEAD AND NE
and lung in 2009-2010. The Company also has a contract with a third party to outsource certain sub-processes.

Manufacturing Facility

THE COMPANY MAINTAINS A PRODUCTION FACILITY LOCATED AT APPLIED PROCESS ENGINEERINGLABORATORY (APEL). THE APEL FACILITY BECAME OPERATIONAL
September 2007. THE PRODUCTION FACILITY HAS OVER 15,000 SQUARE FEET AND INCLUDSIACE FOR ISOTOPE SEPARATION, SEED PRODUCTION, ORDER DISPENSING, A CLEA’
r0Om FOR RADIOPHARMACY WORK, AND A DEDICATED SHIPPING AREA. A DESCRIPTION OFHE LEASE TERMS FOR THE APEL FACILITY IS LOCATED IN THE OTHER COMMITMENTS .
CONTINGENCIES SECTION OF ITEM 7 BELOW. MANAGEMENT BELIEVES THAT THE APEEACILITY WILL BE UTILIZED FOR MANUFACTURING SPACE THROUGH FISCAL YEAR 2016 wt
IS THE ORIGINAL LEASE TERM PLUS THE TWO THREE-YEAR RENEWAL opTIOMRnagement currently anticipates exercising both three-year renewal options to EXTEND THI
APEL facility lease through April 2016.

MANAGEMENTNO LONGER BELIEVES THAT THE SHUTTLE SYSTEM AT IDAHO'S ADVANCED TEST REACHORR) WILL PROVIDE THE CONDITIONS NECESSARY FOR Cs-13

PRODUCTION. THE FACILITY'S CAPACITY IS FULLY ALLOCATED TO THE NAVY AND MANAGEMENT BELIEVESMOULD BE DIFFICULT TO HAVE ISORAY'S COMMERCIAL OPERATIONS /
the same facility as these military operations, even if the shuttle was certified for use in IsoRay operations, which has not occurred.
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Repackaging Services

MOSTBRACHYTHERAPY MANUFACTURERS OFFER THEIR SEED PRODUCT TO THE END USER PACKAGEBIVE PRINCIPAL CONFIGURATIONS PROVIDED IN A STERILE OR NON-STERI
package depending on the customer’s preference. These include:

= Loose seeds

= Pre-loaded needles (loaded typically with three to five seeds and spacers)

= Pre-loaded Mick cartridges (fits the Mick applicator)

= Strands of seeds (consists of seeds and spacers in a biocompatible “shrink wrap”)
= Preloaded Strands (strands loaded into the needle)

IN 2008, THE MILLENTUM RESEARCH GROUP REPORTED THAT THE ESTIMATED MARKET SHARES FOR EAICHHE FIVE PACKAGING TYPES ARE: LOOSE SEEDS AND PRELOADED LOO
seeds (8%), MICK CARTRIDGES (26%), AND ALL STRAND CONFIGURATIONS INCLUDING PRELOABERANDS (66%). MARKET TRENDS INDICATE SIGNIFICANT MOVEMENT TOWARD
stranded configuration, as there are some clinical data suggesting less potential for post-implant seed migration when a stranded configuration is used.

The role OF THE PRELOADING SERVICE IS TO PACKAGE, ASSAY AND CERTIFY THE CONTENTS OF THEEAL PRODUCT CONFIGURATION SHIPPED TO THE CUSTOMER. A COMMONLY USEI
METHOD OF PROVIDING THIS SERVICE IS THROUGH INDEPENDENT RADIOPHARMACIES. MANUFACTURERS SEND LOOSE SEEDS ALONG WITH THE PHYSICIAN'S INSTRUCTIONS the
RADIOPHARMACY WHICH, IN TURN, LOADS NEEDLES AND/OR STRANDS THE SERIEXCORDING TO THE DOCTOR'S INSTRUCTIONS. THESE RADIOPHARMACIES THERERILIZE THE PRODUC
and certify the final packaging prior to shipping directly to the end user.

IsoRay CURRENTLY HAS AGREEMENTS WITSEVERAL INDEPENDENT RADIOPHARMACIES TO ASSAY, PRELOAD, ANSTERILIZE LOOSE SEEDS. SHIPPING TO INDEPENDENT PHARMACIES
creates ADDITIONAL LOSS OF OUR ISOTOPE THROUGH DECAY. WHILE THE COMPANY PRE-LOABBANY OF ITS CURRENT ORDERS, WE HAVE CONTINUED TO UTILIZE LOADING SERVI
to supplement our own custom preloading operation and to meet the requests of the ordering physicians.

We CURRENTLY LOAD APPROXIMATELY 95% OF MICK CARTRIDGES IN OUR OWN FACILITY WHICHHSCAL YEAR 2009 ACCOUNTED FOR APPROXIMATELY 60% OF SEEDS soLD. T
REMAINING APPROXIMATELY 40% OF SEEDS SOLD ARE STRAND CONFIGURATIONS INCLUDINERELOADED STRANDS. DURING FISCAL YEAR 2008, THE COMPANY BEGAN OFFERIN!
100% CONFIRMATION ASSAY PERFORMED BY IN-HOUSE ANALYTICAL SERVICESPROVIDING THE ASSAY AND ULTIMATELY THE PRELOADING SERVICES IN-HOUSE ALLOWS ~
Company to eliminate approximately 25% loss in isotope activity due to RADIOACTIVE DECAY. THE COST OF PRIORITY OVERNIGHT SHIPMENT OF EACH ORDBR SEEDS TC
A THIRD-PARTY PROVIDER IS ALSO ELIMINATED. HOWEVER, WE WIAONTINUE TO UTILIZE THE INDEPENDENT RADIOPHARMACIES TO BACK UP OUR OWRRELOADING OPERATION, T(
handle periodic increases in demand, and to cater to certain doctors’ preferences.

With a CLEARANCE FROM THE FDA FOR PRELOADING FLEXIBLE BRAIDED STRANDS AND BIOABSORBAMESH, [SORAY WILL BECOME THE SECOND COMPANY IN THE INDUSTRY THA’
has 510(k) clearance to preload both the strands and the mesh. This will allow IsoRay To KEEP THESE SERVICES IN HOUSE, REDUCE COSTS AND PROVIDE THESE SERVICE
directly to our customers.

Independent radiopharmacies usually provide the final packaging of the product delivered to the end user thereby eliminating the opportunity for reinforcing
THE"BRANDING" OF OUR SEED PRODUCT. BY PROVIDING OUR OWN REPACKAGINGBERVICE, WE WILL PRESERVE THE PRODUCT BRANDING OPPORTUNITY AND ELIMINAT&NY
concerns related to the handling of our product by a third party prior to delivery to the end user.

PROVIDING CUSTOM PACKAGING CONFIGURATIONS ENHANCES OUR PRODUCT WHILE PROVIDING ANADDITIONAL REVENUE STREAM AND INCREMENTAL MARGINS TO THE COMPA’
THROUGH PRICING PREMIUMS CHARGED TO OUR CUSTOMERS. THE END USERS OF THESE PACKAGIN@®PTIONS ARE WILLING TO PAY A PREMIUM BECAUSE OF THE SAVINGS THEY
REALIZE BYELIMINATING THE NEED FOR LOOSE SEED HANDLING AND LOADING CAPABILITIES ON SITELIMINATING THE NEED FOR ADDITIONAL STAFFING TO STERILIZE SEEDS ¢
needles, and eliminating the expense of additional assaying of the seeds.
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Marketing and Sales
Marketing Strategy

The COMPANY IS MARKETING PROXCELAN CESIUM-131 BRACHYTHERAPY SEEDS AS THE ““SEED OEHOICE” FOR PROSTATE BRACHYTHERAPY. BASED ON CURRENT AND PRELIMIN,
CLINICAL STUDIES, MANAGEMENT BELIEVES THERE IS NO APPARENT CLINICAL REASON USE OTHER ISOTOPES WHEN Cs-131 IS AVAILABLE. THE ADVANTAGES ASSOCIATEWITH A
HIGHER ENERGY AND SHORTER HALF-LIFE ISOTOPE ARE GENERALLY ACCEPTED WITHIN CLINICAL COMMUNITY AND THE COMPANY INTENDS TO HELP EDUCATE POTENTIApatients
about the clinical benefits from Cs-131 for their brachytherapy seed treatment.

IsoRay has chosen to identify its proprietary Cs-131 seed with the trademarked brand of “PrROXCELAN.” MANAGEMENT IS USING THIS BRAND TO DIFFERENTIATE Cs-1
SEEDS FROM SEEDS USING THE OTHER ISOTOPES. WE CONTINUE TO TARGET THE COMPETINSOTOPE PRODUCTS OF IODINE AND PALLADIUM RATHER THAN THE VARIO
MANUFACTURERSAND DISTRIBUTORS OF THESE ISOTOPES. USING THIS STRATEGY, THE CHOICE BRACHYTHERAPY ISOTOPES SHOULD BE LESS DEPENDENT ON THE NAME AN
distribution strengths of the various iodine and palladium manufacturers and distributors and more dependent on the therapeutic benefits of Cs-131.

THE PROFESSIONAL AND PATIENT MARKET SEGMENTS EACH PLAY A ROLE IN THE ULTIMATE CHOIOE CANCER TREATMENT AND THE SPECIFIC ISOTOPE CHOSEN FOR SE
BRACHYTHERAPYTREATMENT. THE COMPANY HAS DEVELOPED A CUSTOMIZED BRAND MESSAGE FOR EACHUDIENCE. IN 2009, THE COMPANY’S WEBSITE WWW.ISORAY.COM
WAS SUBSTANTIALLYUPDATED TO INCLUDE SECTIONS FOR CLINICIANS, PRODUCT INFORMATION, ANRESOURCES. ISORAY ALSO MAINTAINS PRINT AND VISUAL MEDIAS (INCLUDIN
PHYSICIAN BROCHURES DISCUSSING THE CLINICAL ADVANTAGES OF Cs-131, CLINICAINFORMATION BINDERS, INFORMATIONAL DVDs, SINGLE SHEET GLOSSIES WITH TARGE1
CLINICAL DATA, ETC.), AND ADVERTISEMENTS IN THE LEADING MEDICAL JOURNAILS. ADDITION, THE COMPANY ATTENDS NATIONAL PROFESSIONAL MEETINGS, INCLUDING TI
following:

= American Brachytherapy Society (ABS);

=  American Society for Therapeutic Radiation and Oncology (ASTRO);

=  Association of American Physicists in Medicine (AAPM); and

=  Various local chapter meetings.

THE COMPANY ALSO CONTINUES TO CONSULT WITH NOTED CONTRIBUTORS FROM THE MEDICALYSICS COMMUNITY AND WILL HAVE ARTICLES SUBMITTED TO PROFESSIONA
JOURNALS SUCHAS Medical Physics, the Brachytherapy Journal, aND THEInternational Journal of Radiation Oncology, Biology, and Physics REGARDING TH
benefits of and clinical trials involving Cs-131.

BEGINNING IN JANUARY 2008, ISORAY IMPLEMENTED A VARIETY OF PHYSICIAN Cs-131 TRAININGOUTREACH PROGRAMS INCLUDING THE FOLLOWING: A TWO DAY TRAIN
course held APPROXIMATELY THREE TIMES PER YEAR AT CHICAGO PROSTATE CANCER CENTER (CPCE@R)CTORING AND MENTORING PROGRAMS LED BY STEVE KURTZMAN, M
IsoRAY’s MEDICALDIRECTOR; AND A TRAINING DVD FOR PHYSICIANS WHO CHOOSE NOT TO LEAVE THERRCTICES TO ATTEND A TRAINING COURSE. THE OBJECTIVE OF ~
training programs is to increase the physician’s confidence in using the product.

IN TODAY’s U.S. HEALTH CARE MARKET, PATIENTS ARE MORE INFORMED AND INVOLVED IN TMHANAGEMENT OF THEIR HEALTH THAN IN THE PAST. MANY PHYSICIANS REL.

INCIDENTS OF THEIR PATIENTS COMING FOR CONSULTATIONS ARMED WITH ARTICLRESEARCHED ON THE INTERNET AND OTHER SOURCES DESCRIBING NEW TREATMENTS
medications. In many cases, these patients are demanding a certain therapy or drug and the physicians are complying when medically appropriate.
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Because OF THIS CONSUMER-DRIVEN MARKET FACTOR, WE ALSO PROMOTE OUR PRODUCTS DIRECTLYHB GENERAL PUBLIC. WE TARGET THE PROSTATE CANCER PATIENT, HIS SPOU
FAMILY AND CARE GIVERS. WE EMPHASIZE TO THESE SEGMENTS THE SPECIFICADVANTAGES OF THE PROXCELAN CESIUM-131 BRACHYTHERAPY SEED THROUGH OUR WEBS
(LOCATED AT WWW.ISORAY.COM AND WWW.PROXCELAN.COM), PATIENT ADVOCACY EFFORTSFORMATIONAL PATIENT BROCHURES AND DVDSs WITH PATIENT TESTIMONIALS, PATIE
FOCUSED INFORMATIONAL WEBSITE (WWW.PROXCELAN.COM), AND ADVERTISEMENTS ISPECIFIC MARKETS SUPPORTING BRACHYTHERAPY. NONE OF OUR WEBSITES SHOULD B
considered a part of this report.

IN ADDITION, THE COMPANY CONTINUES TO PROMOTE THE CLINICAL FINDINGS OF THE VARIOUSROTOCOLS THROUGH PRESENTATIONS BY RESPECTED THOUGHT LEADERS.
Company will continually review and update all marketing materials as more clinical information is gathered from the protocols and studies.

APART FROM CLINICAL STUDIES AND PAPERS SPONSORED BY THE COMPANY, SEVERAL PHYSICIANSACROSS THE COUNTRY ARE NOW INDEPENDENTLY PUBLISHING PAPERS AN
studies extolling the benefits of Cs-131.

Sales and Distribution

ACCORDING TO A RECENT INDUSTRY SURVEY, APPROXIMATELY 2,000 HOSPITALS AND FREE STANDINGINICS ARE CURRENTLY OFFERING RADIATION ONCOLOGY SERVICES IN

United STATES. NOT ALL OF THESE FACILITIES OFFER SEED BRACHYTHERSHRWICES. THESE INSTITUTIONS ARE STAFFED WITH RADIATION ONCOLOGISTS AMBDICAL PHYSICISTS
who provide expertise in radiation therapy treatments and serve as consultants for urologists and prostate cancer patients. We TARGET THE RADIATION ONCOLOGI¢
and the medical physicists as well as urologists as key clinical decision-makers in the type of radiation therapy offered to prostate cancer patients.

ISORAY HAS A DIRECT SALES ORGANIZATION TO INTRODUCE PROXCELAN CESIUM-131 BRACHYTHERSHBDS TO RADIATION ONCOLOGISTS AND MEDICAL PHYSICISTS. CURRENT
IsoRay HAS FOUR DIRECT SALES PERSONS AND A VP oF BUsINESs DEVELOPMENT. THESALES PEOPLE INCLUDE THOSE EXPERIENCED IN THE BRACHYTHERAPY MARKET AND 1
MEDICAL DEVICE MARKET. IN 2008, THE COMPANY HAD SIX DIRECT SALES PERSONS\ND A NATIONAL SALES DIRECTOR; HOWEVER, THE COMPANY HAS EXPERIENCED SO!
TURNOVER IN THE SALES FORCE DUE TO CHANGES IN THE SALES COMPENSATION PROGRAMRMINATION OF THOSE WHO FAILED TO SELL SUFFICIENT AMOUNTS OF PRODUCTS, AND
travel demands required by the position. The Company is currently actively recruiting one to two additional sales persons.

In 2009, IsoRay entered into an exclusive distribution agreement with BrachySciences to MARKET Cs-131 sEeDs IN THE U.S. BRACHYSCIENCES HAS A SALES FORCE
APPROXIMATELY 6 SALES PERSONS AND A MANAGER BRINGING THE TOTAL SALES PERSONNSHLLING PROXCELAN Cs-131 BRACHYTHERAPY SEEDS IN THE U.S. TO APPROXIMATE
12. THE BRACHYSCIENCES SALES FORCE SOLD ITS FIRST Cs-131 PROSTATE IMPLANTAUGUST 2009; BUT IT HAS TAKEN LONGER THAN ANTICIPATED FOR BRACHYSCIENC
customers to obtain the license amendments required for the Cs-131 product.

THE COMPANY EXPECTS TO CONTINUE TO EXPAND ITS CUSTOMER BASE OUTSIDE THE U.S. MARKETTHROUGH USE OF ESTABLISHED DISTRIBUTORS IN THE KEY MARKETS OF OT
COUNTRIES. THIS STRATEGY SHOULD REDUCE THE TIME AND EXPENSES REQUIRED identify, train and penetrate the key implant centers and establish RELATIONSHIPS WITE
THE KEY OPINION LEADERS IN THESE MARKETS. USINGESTABLISHED DISTRIBUTORS ALSO SHOULD REDUCE THE TIME SPENT ACQUIRING THE PRORERDIATION HANDLING LICENSE
and other regulatory requirements of these markets.

Reimbursement

PAYMENT FOR ISORAY PRODUCTS COMES FROM THIRD-PARTY PAYERS INCLUDING THE CENTERS FOREDICARE AND MEDICAID SERVICES (CMS) AND PRIVATE INSURANC
COMPANIES. THESE PAYERS REIMBURSE THE HOSPITALS AND CLINICS VIA WELL-ESTABLISHED PAYMENTPROCEDURES. IN 2003, THE COMPANY WAS APPROVED FOR AN INITIA
HCPCS code rFor Cs-131 BRACHYTHERAPY SEEDS. IN Jury 2007, CMS pivipeEp THE HCPCS CODINTO TWO CODES FOR ALL MANUFACTURERS OF BRACHYTHERAPY SEEDS.

current METHOD HAS ASSIGNED ONE HCPCS coDE FOR LOOSE SEEDS AND A SECOND HCPCS CODE FORTRANDED SEEDS. MEDICARE IS THE MOST SIGNIFICANT U.S. PAYER Fc¢
prostate brachytherapy services, and is the payer in approximately 65% of all U.S. prostate brachytherapy cases.
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PROSTATEBRACHYTHERAPY IS TYPICALLY PERFORMED IN AN OUTPATIENT SETTING, AND AS SUCH, ®VERED BY THE CMS OUTPATIENT PROSPECTIVE PAYMENT SYSTEM
CURRENTLY, WHEN'HARGES FOR THE SEEDS ARE CORRECTLY SUBMITTED TO CMS, THE TOTAL COST OSEEBE IS REIMBURSED TO THE HOSPITAL OR CLINIC BY CMS. CM!
proposed in July 2009 TO IMPLEMENT A FIXED PRICE PER SEED REIMBURSEMENT FOLLOWING THE HCPCSMETHODOLOGY. ITS PROPOSAL IS TO PAY ONE PRICE FOR LOOSE SEET
AND ANOTHEROR STRANDED SEEDS. [ODINE, PALLADIUM AND CESIUM WOULD EACH HAVE THEIR OWRRICING. IN 2008, CMS PREVIOUSLY PROPOSED THAT A FIXED PRICE PER
SEED BE USED FOR REIMBURSEMENT; HOWEVER, CONGRESS (AFTER POSTPONING A DECISION ON THMWIEDICAL BILL WHICH INCLUDED BRACHYTHERAPY SEED REIMBURSEMEN
VOTED ON JuLy 15,2008 TO CONTINUE THE PASS-THROUGH REIMBURSEMENT FOR BRACHYTHERAPY SEEDS THROUDHCEMBER 31, 2009. MANAGEMENT BELIEVES THA
CONGRESS WILL AGAIN INTERVENEO MAINTAIN CURRENT REIMBURSEMENT PRACTICES. OTHER INSURANCE COMPANIHSAVE HISTORICALLY FOLLOWED CMS’S REIMBURSEME!
policies.

Other Information
Customers
Customers representing ten percent or more of total Company sales for the twelve months ended June 30,2009 include:

Various Northern California facilities (1) 22.6% ofrevenue
Chicago Prostate Cancer Center Westmont, IL 12.4% ofrevenue

(1)  The FOLLOWING FACILITIES LOCATED IN NORTHERN CALIFORNIA ARE USED BY ONE DOATAE CoMPANY’S MEDICAL DIRECTOR): CommunITY HOSPITAL OF Lo:
Gatos (8.0% of total revenue), Fremont Surgery Center (5.9%), Mills Peninsula HEALTH SERVICES (3.6%), EL CaMINO HospITAL (3.6%) AND ALL OTHI
used by this doctor combined (1.5%).

THE LOSSOF ANY OF THESE SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMERS WOULD HAVE AN ADVERSE EFFECT ON KBBMPANY’S REVENUES, WHICH WOULD CONTINUE UNTIL THE COMPANY LOCATEI
new customers to replace them.

Proprietary Rights

TuEe COMPANY RELIES ON A COMBINATION OF PATENT, COPYRIGHT AND TRADEMARK LAWS, TRABECRETS, SOFTWARE SECURITY MEASURES, LICENSE AGREEMENTS ¢
NONDISCLOSUREAGREEMENTS TO PROTECT ITS PROPRIETARY RIGHTS. SOME OF THE COMPANYBROPRIETARY INFORMATION MAY NOT BE PATENTABLE. THE COMPANY HAS 2
registered U.S. trademark for Proxcelan.

THE COMPANY INTENDS TO VIGOROUSLY DEFEND ITS PROPRIETARY TECHNOLOGIES, TRADEMARKSYD TRADE SECRETS. MEMBERS OF MANAGEMENT, EMPLOYEES, AND CERTA
EQUITY HOLDERS HAVE PREVIOUSLY SIGNED NON-DISCLOSURE, NON-COMPETE AGREEMENTS, ANDUTURE EMPLOYEES, CONSULTANTS, ADVISORS, WITH WHOM THE COMPAN
ENGAGES, AND WHOARE PRIVY TO THIS INFORMATION, WILL BE REQUIRED TO DO THE SAME. A PATENDR THE CESIUM SEPARATION AND PURIFICATION PROCESS WAS GRANTED C
May 23,2000 By THE U.S. PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE (USPTO) UNDER PATENT NUMBER 6,066,302I1TH AN EXPIRATION DATE OF MAY 23,2020. THE PROCESS WA
developed by Lane Bray, CHIEF CHEMIST AND A SHAREHOLDER OF THE COMPANY, AND HAS BEEN ASSIGNEBXCLUSIVELY TO ISORAY. ISORAY’S PREDECESSOR ALSO FILED F
patent protection in four European countries under the Patent Cooperation Treaty. Those patents have been assigned to IsoRay.

OURMANAGEMENT BELIEVES THAT CERTAIN ASPECTS OF THE ISORAY SEED DESIGN ANDONSTRUCTION TECHNIQUES ARE PATENTABLE INNOVATIONS. THESE INNOVATIONS HA\
BEEN DOCUMENTED IN ISORAY LABORATORY RECORDS, AND A PATENT APPLICATION WAS FILBDITH THE USPTO oN NoveEMBER 12, 2003. INn AuGust 2008, THIS PATENT WA
GRANTED BY THE USPTO UNDER PATENT NUMBER 7,410,458, WITH AN EXPIRATION DATE NDVEMBER 12, 2023. CERTAIN METHODOLOGIES REGARDING ISOTOPE PRODUCTION
SEPARATION, AND SEED MANUFACTURE ARE RETAINED AS TRADE SECRETS AND ARE EMBOOMISORAY’S PROCEDURES AND DOCUMENTATION. IN JUNE 2004, JuLy 2004, ANI
FEBRUARY 2007, FIVE PATENT APPLICATIONS WERE FILED RELATING TO METHODS DERIVING Cs-131 DEVELOPED BY ISORAY EMPLOYEES. THE COMPANY IS CURRENTLY
working on developing and patenting additional methods of deriving Cs-131 and other isotopes.
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THERE ARESPECIFIC CONDITIONS ATTACHED TO THE ASSIGNMENT OF THE Cs-131 PATENT FROM LANBRAY. IN PARTICULAR, THE ASSOCIATED ROYALTY AGREEMENT PROVIDES
1% OF GROSS PROFIT PAYMENT FROM SEED SALES TO LANE BRAY AND 1% OF GROSS PROFIT FRAMY USE OF THE Cs-131 PROCESS PATENT FOR NON-SEED PRODUCTS. IF ISOR.
REASSIGNS THE ROYALTY AGREEMENT TO ANOTHER COMPANY, THESE ROYALTIES INCREASE2PG. THE ROYALTY AGREEMENT HAS AN ANTI-SHELVING CLAUSE WHICH REQUIR
ISORAY TO RETURN THE PATENT IF ISORAY PERMANENTLY ABANDONS SALES OF PRODUUBNG THE INVENTION. DURING FISCAL YEARS 2009 anD 2008, THE ComMpaNYecorded
royalty expense of $20,063 and $21,219, respectively, related to this patent.

THE TERMSOF A LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH THE LAWRENCE FAMILY TRUST (SUCCESSOR TO DBNWRENCE) FOR A PATENT APPLICATION AND RELATED “KNOW-HOW” REQUIRE '
PAYMENT OF A ROYALTY BASED ON THE NET FACTORY SALES PRICE, AS DEFINED IN THE AGREEMENTIOENSED PRODUCT SALES. BECAUSE THE LICENSOR’S PATENT APPLICATIC
WAS ULTIMATELY ABANDONED, ONLY A 1% “KNOW-HOW” ROYALTY REMAINS APPLICABLE. TO DATHANAGEMENT BELIEVES THAT THERE HAVE BEEN NO PRODUCT SAL
INCORPORATING THEKNOW-HOW;” AND THEREFORE BELIEVES NO ROYALTY IS DUE PURSUANT TO THE TERMSIBE AGREEMENT. MANAGEMENT BELIEVES THAT ULTIMATELY
royalties should be paid under this agreement as there is no intent to use this “know-how” in the future.

The LAWRENCE FAMILY TRUST HAS DISPUTED MANAGEMENT’S CONTENTION THAT IT IS NOT USINKHIS “KNOW-HOW”. ON SEPTEMBER 25, 2007 AND AGAIN ON OCTOBER 31
2007, THECOMPANY PARTICIPATED IN NONBINDING MEDIATION REGARDING THIS MATTER; HOWEVER, NO SETTLEMENT WAS REACHED WITH THE LAWRENCE FAMILY TRUST. Al
ADDITIONALSETTLEMENT DISCUSSIONS, WHICH ENDED IN APRIL 2008, THE PARTIES FAILED TO REACH SETTLEMENT. THE PARTIES MAY DEMAND BINDING ARBITRATION AT AN
time.

Research and Development

DURING THE THREE-YEAR PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2009, ISORAY AND ITS PREDECESSOR COMPANIESNCURRED MORE THAN $3.7 MILLION IN COSTS RELATED TO RESEARCH
development activities. The Company expects to continue ongoing research and development activities for the foreseeable future.

WHETHERSUCCESSFUL OR NOT, THE COMPANY ANTICIPATES ENDING ITS MAJOR RESEARCH ANDEVELOPMENT PROJECT TO DEVELOP A PROPRIETARY SEPARATION PROCESS
manufacture ENRICHED BARIUM DURING FISCAL YEAR 2010. DURING FISCAL YEAR 2009, T@OMPANY INCURRED APPROXIMATELY $39,000 ON THIS PROJECT. THE REMAINING
PROJECT COSTS ARE ANTICIPATED TO BE APPROXIMATELY $100,000 To $150,000 FORPRODUCTION MODEL (IF REQUIRED) IN ADDITION TO THE $56,610 PAYMENT TO BE MAD
for the prototype if the demonstration is successful.

Government Regulation

THE COMPANY'S PRESENT AND FUTURE INTENDED ACTIVITIES IN THE DEVELOPMENT, MANUFACTUREND SALE OF CANCER THERAPY PRODUCTS ARE SUBJECT TO EXTENSIVE L.
REGULATIONSREGULATORY APPROVALS AND GUIDELINES. WITHIN THE UNITED STATES, TE®MPANY'S THERAPEUTIC RADIOLOGICAL DEVICES MUST COMPLY WITH THE U.S
FepErRALFOOD, DRUG AND COSMETIC ACT, WHICH IS ENFORCED BY THE FDA. THE COMPANY IS ALSO REQUIRED TO ADHERE TO APPLICABLE FDA QuALITY Sys1
Regulations, also known As THE GOOD MANUFACTURING PRACTICES, WHICH INCLUDE EXTENSIVE RECORD KEEPING ARBRIODIC INSPECTIONS OF MANUFACTURING FACILITIES.
THE COMPANY'S PREDECESSOR OBTAINED FDA 510(k) CLEARANCE IN MARCH 2003 TO MARKET THE PROXCEIAs¥13 1 SEED FOR THE TREATMENT OF LOCALIZED SOLID TUM
and other malignant disease and IsoRay obtained FDA 510(k) clearance in November 2006 to market preloaded brachytherapy seeds.

In the UNITED STATES, THE FDA REGULATES, AMONG OTHER THINGS, NEW PRODUCT CLEARANCES AREROVALS TO ESTABLISH THE SAFETY AND EFFICACY OF THESE PRODUCTS.
are also subject to other federal and state laws and regulations, including the Occupational Safety and Health Act and the Environmental Protection Act.
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The FEpERAL FooD, DRUG, AND COSMETIC ACT AND OTHER FEDERAL STATUTES AND REGULAGIONERN OR INFLUENCE THE RESEARCH, TESTING, MANUFACTURE, SAFETY, LABE
storage, record keeping, approval, distribution, use, reporting, advertising and PROMOTION OF SUCH PRODUCTS. NONCOMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS CAl
RESULT IN CIVIL PENALTIES, RECALL, INJUNCTION OR SEIZURE OF PRODUCTS, REFUSATHEFGOVERNMENT TO APPROVE OR CLEAR PRODUCT APPROVAL APPLICATIONSisqualification
FROM SPONSORING OR CONDUCTING CLINICAL INVESTIGATIONSPREVENTING US FROM ENTERING INTO GOVERNMENT SUPPLY CONTRACTS, WITHDRAWAL RREVIOUSLY APPROVED
applications, and criminal prosecution.

In the UNITED STATES, MEDICAL DEVICES ARE CLASSIFIED INTO THREE DIFFERENT CATEGORIEER WHICH THE FDA APPLIES INCREASING LEVELS OF REGULATION: CLASS I, CLAS¢
AND Crass III. Most CLasS I DEVICES ARE EXEMPT FROM PREMARKET NOTIFICATI@ON] O(k)); MOST CLASS Il DEVICES REQUIRE PREMARKET NOTIFICATION (510(K)); ANmost
Class Il devices require premarket approval. Our Proxcelan Cs-131 seed is a Class Il device and received 510(k) clearance in March 2003.

Approval oF NEw CLAss Il MEDICAL DEVICES IS A LENGTHY PROCEDURE AND CAN TAKE A NUMBER OEARS AND REQUIRE THE EXPENDITURE OF SIGNIFICANT RESOURCES. TH
1S A SHORTER FDA REVIEW AND CLEARANCE PROCESS FOR CLASS II MEDICAL DEVICES, THREMARKET NOTIFICATION OR 510(K) PROCESS, WHEREBY A COMPANY CAN MARKE
CERTAINCLASS II MEDICAL DEVICES THAT CAN BE SHOWN TO BE SUBSTANTIALLY EQUIVALENT GDHER LEGALLY MARKETED DEVICES. SINCE BRACHYTHERAPY SEEDS HAVE BE
classified by the FDA as a Class Il device, we have been able to achieve market clearance for our Cs-131 seed using the 510(k) process.

AS AREGISTERED MEDICAL DEVICE MANUFACTURER WITH THE FDA, WE ARE SUBJECT IRSPECTION TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH THEIR CURRENT GOOD MANUFACTURI
PRACTICESOR CGMP. THESE REGULATIONS REQUIRE THAT WE AND ANY OF OUR CONTRAKNUFACTURERS DESIGN, MANUFACTURE AND SERVICE PRODUCTS, AND MAINTA
DOCUMENTS IN A PRESCRIBED MANNER WITH RESPECT TO MANUFACTURING, TESTING, DISTRIBUTIOSLORAGE, DESIGN CONTROL, AND SERVICE ACTIVITIES. MODIFICATIONS
ENHANCEMENTS THAT COULD SIGNIFICANTLY AFFECT THE SAFETY OR EFFECTIVENESS DEVACE OR THAT CONSTITUTE A MAJOR CHANGE TO THE INTENDED USE OF THE DEVI€gUuire
anew 510(k) notice for any product modification.

The MEepicAL DEVICE REPORTING REGULATION REQUIRES THAT WE PROVIDE INFORMATION TO THDA ON DEATHS OR SERIOUS INJURIES ALLEGED TO BE ASSOCIATED WITH THE
of our DEVICES, AS WELL AS PRODUCT MALFUNCTIONS THAT ARE LIKELY TO CAUSE OR CONTRIBOTBEATH OR SERIOUS INJURY IF THE MALFUNCTION WERE TO RECUR. LABELING
promotional activities are regulated by the FDA and, in some circumstances, by the Federal Trade Commission.

As a MEDICAL DEVICE MANUFACTURER, WE ARE ALSO SUBJECT TO LAWS AND REGULATIANMINISTERED BY GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES AT THE FEDERAL, STATE AND LAGAIELS. Fo
EXAMPLE, OUR FACILITY IS LICENSED AS A MEDICAL PRODUCMANUFACTURING FACILITY IN THE STATE OF WASHINGTON AND IS SUBJECT TO PERIODSTATE REGULATOI
inspections. Our customers are also subject to a wide variety of laws and regulations that could affect the nature and scope of their relationships with us.

IN suPPORT OF ISORAY’S GLOBAL STRATEGY TO EXPAND MARKETING TO CANADA AND RUSSIA, WETIATED THE PROCESS IN FISCAL YEAR 2008 TO OBTAIN THE EUROPEAN (
Mark, CANADIAN REGISTRATION, AND CERTIFICATION TO ISO 13485, AN INTERNATIONAREQYOGNIZED QUALITY SYSTEM. EUROPEAN LAW REQUIRES THAT MEDICAL DEVICES SC
IN ANY EU MEMBER STATE COMPLY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE EUROPEAN MEDICADEVICE DIRECTIVE (MDD) oR THE ACTIVE IMPLANTABLE MEDICAL DEViIC
DIRECTIVE(AIMDD). IsoRAY’s PRODUCTS ARE CLASSIFIED IN EUROPE AS AN ACTIVBIPLANTABLE AND ARE SUBJECT TO THE AIMDD. CompLIANCE WITH AIMDD AN
OBTAINING A CE MARK INVOLVES BEING CERTIFIED TO ISO 13485 AND OBTAINING APPROVAIOF THE PRODUCT TECHNICAL FILE BY A NOTIFIED BODY THAT IS RECOGNIZED
competent AUTHORITIES OF A MEMBER STATE. COMPLIANCE WITH ISO 13485 1S ALSO REQUIRHIDR REGISTRATION OF A COMPANY FOR SALE OF ITS PRODUCTS IN CANADA. M.
of THE RECOGNIZED EU NoTIFIED BODIES ARE ALSO RECOGNIZED BY HEALTH CANADA @aonDUCT THE ISO 13485 INSPECTIONS FOR CANADIAN REGISTRATION. DURING FIS(
YEAR 2009, THE COMPANY RECEIVED ITS CERTIFICATION TO ISO 13485 AND OBTAINERPPROVAL FROM HEALTH CANADA FOR ITS CANADIAN REGISTRATION. THE COMPANY
NOW FOCUSING ON THE CANADIAN AND RUSSIAN MARKETS AND IS NO LONGER PURSUING SALRS$ THE EUROPEAN UNION (EU). MANAGEMENT NO LONGER BELIEVES A STRATEC
alliance with IBt, SA, a Belgian company, will be consummated nor will management leverage IBt’s distribution channels in the EU.
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In the UNITED STATES, AS A MANUFACTURER OF MEDICAL DEVICES AND DEVICES UTILIZING\DIOACTIVE BYPRODUCT MATERIAL, WE ARE SUBJECT TO EXTENSIVE REGULATION BY
ONLY FEDERAL GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITIES, SUCH AS THE FDA, BUT ALSO BY STATE ANIAL GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITIES, SUCH AS THE WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMEN
Health, To ENSURESUCH DEVICES ARE SAFE AND EFFECTIVE. IN WASHINGTON STATE, THE DEPARTMESF HEALTH, BY AGREEMENT WITH THE FEDERAL NUCLEAR REGULA
Commission (NRC), REGULATES THE POSSESSION, USE, AND DISPOSAL OF RADIOACTIVE BYPRODUCT MATERIAL WELL AS THE MANUFACTURE OF RADIOACTIVE SEALED SOURCE
ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH STATE AND FEDERAL LAWS AND REGULATIONS. OUR Cs-131 BRACHYTHERAPY SEEDSTITUTE BOTH MEDICAL DEVICES AND RADIOACTIVE SEAL
sources and are subject to these regulations.

MOREOVER,OUR USE, MANAGEMENT, AND DISPOSAL OF CERTAIN RADIOACTIVE SUBSTANCES AND WASTBRE SUBJECT TO REGULATION BY SEVERAL FEDERAL AND STATE AGE!
depending on the nature of the substance or waste material. We believe that we are in compliance with all federal and state regulations for this purpose.

Seasonality

The COMPANY BELIEVES THAT SOME SEED IMPLANTATION PROCEDURES ARE DEFERRED AROUNPHYSICIAN VACATIONS (PARTICULARLY IN THE SUMMER MONTHS), HOLIDAYS, ANI
MEDICAL CONVENTIONS AND CONFERENCES RESULTING IN A SEASONAL INFLUENCE ON THE COMPANYBWSINESS. THESE FACTORS CAUSE A MOMENTARY DECLINE IN REVENU
WHICH MANAGEMENT BELIEVES IS ULTIMATELY REALIZED LATER. BECAUSE ALMOST THIRERCENT (30%) oF THE COMPANY'S BUSINESS RELIES ON THREE PHYSICIANS
simultaneous vacations by these three physicians could cause significant drops in the Company's productivity during those periods.

Employees

As of SEPTEMBER 14, 2009, ISORAY EMPLOYED 37 FULL-TIME INDIVIDUALS AND ONE PART-TIME INDIVIDUAL. THE COMPANY'S FUTURE SUCCESS WILL DEPEND, IN PART, ON IT¢
ABILITY TO ATTRACT, RETAIN, AND MOTIVATE HIGHLY QUALIFIED SALES, TECHNICAL MAWAGEMENT PERSONNEL. FROM TIME TO TIME, THE COMPANY MAY EMPLOY
INDEPENDENT CONSULTANTS OR CONTRACTORS TO SUPPORT ITS RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMBNSRKETING, SALES, AND ADMINISTRATIVE ORGANIZATIONS. NONE OF THE COMPANY
EMPLOYEES ARE REPRESENTED BY ANY COLLECTIVE BARGAINING UNIT. THE COMPANESTIMATES THAT SUCCESSFUL IMPLEMENTATION OF ITS GROWTH PLAN WILL RESULT IN UT
three to five additional employees by the end of fiscal year 2010.

In 2008, THE COMPANY HAD SIX DIRECT SALES PERSONS AND A NATIONAL SALES DIRECTOR; HOWEVERE COMPANY HAS EXPERIENCED SOME TURNOVER IN THE SALES FORCE DU
to changes in THE SALES COMPENSATION PROGRAM, TERMINATION OF THOSE WHO FAILED TO SERIFFICIENT QUANTITIES OF PRODUCT, AND THE TRAVEL DEMANDS REQUIRED BY
position. The Company currently has four direct sales persons and a VP, Business Development and is actively recruiting one to two additional sales persons.

Competition

THE COMPANY COMPETES IN A MARKET CHARACTERIZED BY TECHNOLOGICAL INNOVATIONEXTENSIVE RESEARCH EFFORTS, AND SIGNIFICANT COMPETITION. IN GENERAL, '
PROXCELAN CESIUM-131 BRACHYTHERAPY SEED COMPETES WITH CONVENTIONAL METHODS OFREATING LOCALIZED CANCER, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ALL FORN
PROSTATECTOMY SURGERY AND EXTERNAL BEAM RADIATION THERAPY WHICH INCLUDEBENSITY MODULATED RADIATION THERAPY, AS WELL AS COMPETING PERMANE
BRACHYTHERAPY DEVICES. SURGERY HAS HISTORICALLY REPRESENTED THE MOSMMON MEDICAL TREATMENT FOR EARLY-STAGE, LOCALIZED PROSTATE CANCER BUT RAI
PROSTATECTOMIES HAVE DECLINED IN RECENT YEARS. EBRT IS ALSO WELL-ESTABLISHED METHOD OF TREATMENT AND IS WIDELY ACCEPTED FOR PATIENTS WREPRESENT A POO
SURGICAL RISK OR WHOSE PROSTATE CANCER HAS ADVANCED BEYOND THFAGE FOR WHICH SURGICAL TREATMENT IS INDICATED. MANAGEMENT BELIEVES THATGENERA
CONVERSION FROM THESE TREATMENT OPTIONS (OR OTHER ESTABLISHED@RVVENTIONAL PROCEDURES) TO THE PROXCELAN CESIUM-131 BRACHYTHERAPY SEED DGBSCUR, SUCH
CONVERSION WILL LIKELY BE THE RESULT OF A COMBINATION OF EQUIVALENR BETTER EFFICACY, REDUCED INCIDENCE AND DURATION OF SIDE EFFECTS ARDMPLICATIONS, LOWER
cost, better quality of life outcomes, and pressure by health care providers and patients.
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History HAS SHOWN THE ADVANTAGE OF BEING THE FIRST TO MARKET A NEW BRACHYTHERRRYDUCT. FOR EXAMPLE, THERAGENICS CORP., WHICH INTRODUCED THE ORIGIN.
Pp-103 SEED, CURRENTLY CLAIMS OVER 59% OF THE PD-103 MARKET SHARE (THROUGH BRRD, OTHER DISTRIBUTORS, AND DIRECT DISTRIBUTION). (Sourd¥illennium
Research Corp, 2008). Although factors other than being first to market contribute to becoming a market leader, the Company believes it has THE OPPORTUNITY
to obtain a similar and significant advantage by being the first to introduce a Cs-131 seed.

The CoMPANY’s PATENTED Cs-131 SEPARATION PROCESS IS LIKELY TO PROVIDE A SUSTAINABLECOMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE. PRODUCTION OF Cs-131 ALSO REQUIRES SPECIALIZE
FACILITIES THAT REPRESENT HIGH COST AND LONG LEAD TIME IF NOT READIWKILABLE. IN ADDITION, A COMPETITOR WOULD NEED TO DEVELOP A METHOD Fasotope
ATTACHMENT AND SEED ASSEMBLY, WOULD NEED TO CONDUCT TESTING TO MEET NR&D FDA REQUIREMENTS, AND WOULD NEED TO OBTAIN REGULATORY CLEARANCES BE
marketing a competing device.

Several COMPANIES HAVE OBTAINED REGULATORY CLEARANCE TO PRODUCE AND DISTRIBUTE PD-103p I-125 SEEDS, WHICH COMPETE DIRECTLY WITH OUR SEED. IT IS POSSIBLI
that THREE OR FOUR OF THE CURRENT [-125 or Pp-103 SEED MANUFACTURERS (E.G., CR BARDYRA, THERAGENICS, ETC.) ARE CAPABLE OF PRODUCING AND MARKETING A (
131 seed, BUT NONE HAVE REPORTED EFFORTS TO DO SO. BEST MEDICAL OBTAINED A SEED CAREENT IN 1992 THAT NAMED TEN DIFFERENT ISOTOPES, INCLUDING Cs-131, F
use in THEIR SEEDS. BEST MEDICAL RECEIVED FDA 510(K) CLEARANCE TO MARKET A Cs-1$ED oN JUNE 6, 1993 BUT TO DATE HAS NOT PRODUCED ANY PRODUCTS FOR SA
IN appITION TO THE FDA AND THE NRC, BEST MEDICAL WOULD BE REQUIRED TO SUBMITCS-131 SEED TO THE TG-43 TASK GROUP OF THE AMERICAN ASSOCIATION C
Physicists in MEDICINE TO DETERMINE THE SEED’S CHARACTERISTICS SUCH AS ANISOTROPY, DOSE RATINSTANT, ETC. TO DATE THERE HAS BEEN NO SUBMISSION TO THE TG~
task group for a competing Cs-131 seed.

Additional Growth Opportunities

Management oF THE COMPANY SEES GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES THROUGH EXPANSION INTO INTERNATIONAMARKETS AND ADDITIONAL TREATMENT APPLICABILITY TO CANCERS O
than PROSTATE. THE COMPANY PLANS TO INTRODUCE Cs-131 FOR PROSTATE BRACHY THERARPMITIALLY INTO CANADA AND RUSSIA AND LATER INTO OTHER INTERNATIONAL MA
through partnerships and strategic alliances with channel partners for manufacturing and distribution.

Cs-131 HAs FDA CLEARANCE TO BE USED FOR TREATMENTS FOR A BROAD SPECTRUM OF CANDERSUDING BREAST, BRAIN, LUNG, AND LIVER CANCER, AND THE COMPANY BELIEV
THAT AMAJOR OPPORTUNITY EXISTS AS AN ADJUNCT THERAPY FOR THE TREATMENT OF RESIIUUNG, HEAD AND NECK, AND OTHER CANCERS. THE COMPANY HAS ALREADY BEG
TREATING OCULAR MELANOMA AND IS JUST BEGINNING TO TREAT LUNG AND HEAD AND NEUKIORS. THE COMPANY HAS HAD DISCUSSIONS WITH PROMINENT PHYSICIANS AND IS
looking at treatments for other cancer sites.

There is ALSO AN OPPORTUNITY TO DEVELOP AND MARKET OTHER RADIOACTIVE ISOTOPES TO THMITED STATES MARKET, AND TO MARKET Cs-131 ISOTOPE ITSELF, SEPARATE FI
its use in our seeds. The Company is also in the preliminary stages of exploring ALTERNATE METHODS OF DELIVERING OUR ISOTOPES TO VARIOUS ORGANS OF THE BODY
it may be advantageous to use delivery methods other than a titanium-encapsulated seed to deliver radiation to certain organs.

ITEM 1A - RISK FACTORS

Our Revenues Depend Upon One Product. UNTIL SUCH TIME AS WE DEVELOP ADDITIONAL PRODUCTS, OUREVENUES DEPEND UPON THE SUCCESSFUL PRODUCTION
MARKETING, AND SALES OF THPROXCELAN Cs-131 BRACHYTHERAPY SEED. THE RATE AND LEVEL OF MARKETEPTANCE OF THIS PRODUCT MAY VARY DEPENDING ON THI
PERCEPTION BY PHYSICIANS AND OTHER MEMBERS OF THE HEALTHCARE COMMUNITY OF ITS SAFETY AND EFFICACYCABPARED TO THAT OF COMPETING PRODUCTS, IF ANY; TH
CLINICAL OUTCOMES OF THIPATIENTS TREATED; THE EFFECTIVENESS OF OUR SALES AND MARKETING EFFORTS INURHED STATES, CANADA, AND RUSSIA; ANY UNFAVORAB
PUBLICITY CONCERNING OURPRODUCT OR SIMILAR PRODUCTS; OUR PRODUCT’S PRICE RELATIVE TO OTHER PRODUCTS@MPPETING TREATMENTS; ANY DECREASE IN CURRE
REIMBURSEMENT RATES FROM THICENTERS FOR MEDICARE AND MEDICAID SERVICES OR THIRD-PARTY PAYERS; REGULATORYELOPMENTS RELATED TO THE MANUFACTURE
CONTINUED USE OF THE PRODUCTAVAILABILITY OF SUFFICIENT SUPPLIES OF ENRICHED BARIUM (NOW COMING FROM RUssIA)FOR Cs-131 SEED PRODUCTION; ABILITY TO PRODUC
SUFFICIENT QUANTITIES OF THISRODUCT; AND THE ABILITY OF PHYSICIANS TO PROPERLY UTILIZE THE DEVICE AND AVOIBXCESSIVE LEVELS OF RADIATION TO PATIENTS. BECAU
OF OUR RELIANCE ON THIBRODUCT AS THE SOLE SOURCE OF OUR REVENUE, ANY MATERIAL ADVERSE DEVELOPMEWTBH RESPECT TO THE COMMERCIALIZATION OF THIS PRODU!
may cause us to continue to incur losses rather than profits in the future.
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Although Cleared To Treat Any Malignant Tissue, Our Sole Product Is Currently Used To Treat Two Types Of Cancer. CURRENTLY, THE PROXCELAN Cs-131 sE
IS USED EXCLUSIVELY FOR THE TREATMENT OF PROSTATE CANCER (OVER NINETY-NINE PERCENDUWR SALES) AND OCULAR MELANOMA (LESS THAN ONE PERCENT OF GHRES). WE
believe the Proxcelan Cs-131 seed will be used to treat other types of cancers (and have treated a single head and neck tumor and a single lung tumor to date),
AS IS CURRENTLY THE CASE WITH OUR COMPETITORS” I-124ND Pp-103 SEEDS. HOWEVER, WE BELIEVE THAT CLINICAL DATA GATHERED BELECT GROUPS OF PHYSICIANS UNDEI
TREATMENT PROTOCOLS SPECIFIC TO OTHER ORGAWSLL BE NEEDED PRIOR TO WIDESPREAD ACCEPTANCE OF OUR PRODUCT FOR TREATING OTEARCER SITES. IF OUR CURRENT A
FUTURE PRODUCTS DO NOT BECOMEACCEPTED IN TREATING CANCERS OF OTHER SITES, OUR SALES WILL DEPEND SOLELYTRBATMENT OF PROSTATE CANCER AND WILL REQUIRE F
increasing market share to increase revenues.

We Have Increasing Cash Requirements. IsoRay has generated material operating losses since inception. We expect to continue to EXPERIENCE SIGNIFICANT NET
OPERATING LOSSES. DUE TO PREVIOUS CAPITAIINVESTMENTS AND SUBSTANTIAL COST REDUCTIONS, MANAGEMENT BELIEVES CASH AND CAERUIVALENTS ON HAND AT JUNE 3(
2009 WILL BE SUFFICIENT TO MEET OURNTICIPATED CASH REQUIREMENTS FOR OPERATIONS, DEBT SERVICE, AND CAPITAIXPENDITURE REQUIREMENTS THROUGH AT LEAST THE N
TWELVE MONTHS. [FOPERATING COSTS EXPAND PROPORTIONATELY WITH REVENUE INCREASES, OTHERPPLICATIONS ARE PURSUED FOR SEED USAGE OUTSIDE THE PROSTATE MARK
PROTOCOLSARE EXPANDED TO SUPPORT THE INTEGRITY OF OUR PRODUCT, AND MARKETING EXPENSBSCREASE, MANAGEMENT BELIEVES APPROXIMATELY $1.0 MILLION IN
MONTHLY REVENUE WILIBE NEEDED TO REACH BREAK-EVEN. THIS IS A DECREASE FROM THE PREVIOUSSTIMATE OF $1.5 MILLION IN MONTHLY REVENUE DUE TO RECE}
improvements in the Company’s production operating efficiencies and its cost structure implemented BY NEW MANAGEMENT. HOWEVER, THERE IS NO ASSURANCE ¢
TO WHENBREAK-EVEN WILL OCCUR. IF WE ARE UNABLE TO GENERATE PROFITS AND UNABLOBIAIN ADDITIONAL FINANCING TO MEET OUR WORKING CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS, '
may have to curtail our business.

We Rely Heavily On A Limited Number Of Suppliers. SOME MATERIALS USED IN OUR PRODUCTS AREURRENTLY AVAILABLE ONLY FROM A LIMITED NUMBER OF SUPPLIERS.
FISCAL 2009, APPROXIMATELY SIXTY-FIVE PERCENT (65%) OF OUR Cs-131 wAs SUPPLIEDTHROUGH URALDIAL FROM REACTORS LOCATED IN Russia. UNLEss THE Cowmr
SUBSTANTIALLY INCREASES ITS PURCHASE REQUIREMENTS RESULTING FROM SIGNIFICANTREASES IN DEMAND FOR ITS PRODUCT, THE COST OF Cs-131 IN Russia cOULD INCREA
FROM CURRENT PRICING. OUR CURRENT CONTRACT WITH URALDIAL TERMIMWIBECEMBER 2009 AND WILL HAVE TO BE RENEGOTIATED. MANAGEMENT WIISEEK TO NEGOTIAT
favorable pricing but there is no assurance as to the outcome of these negotiations.

IF THEDEVELOPMENT OF BARIUM ENRICHMENT CAPABILITIES IS SUCCESSFUL, THE COMPANY PLANS TO EXPAND Cs-131 MANUFACTURING CAPABILITY AT THE MURR REACTOR
THE UNITEDSTATES. RELIANCE ON ANY SINGLE SUPPLIER INCREASES THE RISKS ASSOCIATED WITIONCENTRATING ISOTOPE PRODUCTION AT A SINGLE REACTOR FACILITY WHICH ¢
be SUBJECT TO UNANTICIPATED SHUTDOWNS. FAILURE TO OBTAIN DELIVERIES OF Cs-131 FROWULTIPLE SOURCES COULD HAVE A MATERIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON SEED PRODUCT
and there may be a delay before we could locate alternative suppliers beyond the three currently used.

WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO LOCATE ADDITIONAL SUPPLIERS OUTSIDE OF RUSSIA CAPABLE PRODUCING THE LEVEL OF OUTPUT OF CESIUM AT THE QUALITY STANDARDS WE REQU
ADDITIONAL FACTORS THAT COULD CAUSE INTERRUPTIONS OR DELAYS IN OUR SOURGEATERIALS INCLUDE LIMITATIONS ON THE AVAILABILITY OF RAW MATERIALSmAnufacturing
PERFORMANCE EXPERIENCED BY OUR SUPPLIERS AND A BREAKDOWN IN OURCOMMERCIAL RELATIONS WITH ONE OR MORE SUPPLIERS. SOME OF THESEACTORS MAY BE COMPLETELY
out of our and our suppliers’ control.
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VIRTUALLYALL TITANIUM TUBING USED IN BRACHYTHERAPY SEED MANUFACTURE COMES FROM A SINGBBURCE, ACCELLENT CORPORATION. WE CURRENTLY OBTAIN A 1
component of OUR SEED CORE FROM ANOTHER SINGLE SUPPLIER. WE DO NOT HAVE FORMWRITTEN AGREEMENTS WITH ACCELLENT CORPORATION. ANY INTERRUPTIONd@kay
IN THE SUPPLY OF MATERIALS REQUIRED TO PRODUCE OUR PRODUCTS COULD HARM OBWSINESS IF WE WERE UNABLE TO OBTAIN AN ALTERNATIVE SUPPLIER OR SUBSTITI
EQUIVALENT MATERIALS IN A COST-EFFECTIVE AND TIMELY MANNER. RUTIGATE ANY POTENTIAL INTERRUPTIONS, THE COMPANY CONTINUALLY EVALUATES INVENTORY LEVEL
and management believes that the Company maintains a sufficient quantity on hand to alleviate any potential disruptions.

Industry Trends. SEVERAIFACTORS WHICH OCCURRED IN FISCAL 2009 CAUSED OUR REVENUES TO SIGNIFICANTIBCLINE AND THESE FACTORS ARE STILL CONTRIBUTING TO
FAILURE TO IMPROVE SALESN THE PROSTATE MARKET. BEGINNING IN THE FALL oF 2008, U.S. CONSUMEBSGNIFICANTLY CURTAILED ALL SPENDING (EVEN FOR LIFE SAVI!
MEDICAL PROCEDURES)WHICH IMPACTED THE BRACHYTHERAPY INDUSTRY AS A WHOLE. IN FEBRUARY 8609 NOTED UROLOGISTS ANNOUNCED AT A MEDICAL CONFERENCE T
PSA TESTING WAS NOTAS NECESSARY AS PREVIOUSLY BELIEVED. THEIR STATEMENTS WERE WIDELRUBLICIZED. MANAGEMENT BELIEVES THAT MANY PEOPLE HAVE BEEN
influenced BY THESE STATEMENTS TO CUT BACK ON PSA TESTING THEREBY DECREASING IN THE SHORRM THE NUMBER OF PROCEDURES PERFORMED. THE FINAL FACTOR WHI
OCCURRED WAS THE EMERGENCE OF IMRT AS THE PREFERRED TREATMENT ALTERNATIVE RESULT OF A MUCH HIGHER REIMBURSEMENT RATE TO PHYSICIANS COMPARED 1T
BRACHYTHERAPY TREATMENTS. EACH OF THESE FACTORS IS CONTINUINGINIPACT THE PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY IN THE PROSTATE MARKET AND THE INDUSTRY ASWHOLE
during fiscal 2010 and there is no assurance that they will not continue to impact sales of the Company.

Future Production Increases Will Depend on Our Ability to Acquire Larger Quantities of Cs-131 and Hire More Employees. ISORAY CURRENTLY OBTAINEs-13 1
THROUGH ITS CONTRACT WITH URALDIAL AND THROUGH REACTOR IRRADIATMATWURAL BARIUM AND SUBSEQUENT SEPARATION OF Cs-131 FROM THE IRRADIATED BAR
TARGETS. THE AMOUNT OF Cs-131 THAT CAN BE PRODUCED FROM A GIVIREACTOR SOURCE IS LIMITED BY THE POWER LEVEL AND VOLUME AVAILABLE WITHIN TREACTOR F(
IRRADIATING TARGETS. THIS LIMITATION CAN BE OVERCOME BYTILIZING BARIUM FEEDSTOCK THAT IS ENRICHED IN THE STABLE 1SOTOPBA-130. HOWEVER, THE NUMBER O
suppliers of enriched barium is limited and they may be unable to produce this material in sufficient quantities at a reasonable price.

IsoRay HAS ENTERED INTO AN EXCLUSIVE AGREEMENT (EFFECTIVE THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2009)ra URALDIAL IN Russia TO PROVIDE Cs-131 IN QUANTITIES SUFFICIENT
SUPPLY A SIGNIFICANT PERCENTAGE OF FUTURE DEMAND FOR THIS ISOTOPE. DUE TO THERCHASE OF ENRICHED BARIUM IN JUNE 2007, ISORAY HAS ACCESS TO SUFFICIEN
QUANTITIES OF ENRICHED BARIUM THAT MAY BE RECYCLED TO INCREASE THE PRODUCTION ©8-131. ALTHOUGH THE URALDIAL AGREEMENT PROVIDES FOR SUPPLYING Cs-13ih
significant quantities, there is no assurance that this will result in IsoRay GAINING ACCESS TO A CONTINUING SUFFICIENT SUPPLY OF ENRICHED BARIUMFEEDSTOCK. IF Wi
WERE UNABLE TO OBTAIN SUPPLIES OF ISOTOPES FROMRUSSIA IN THE FUTURE, OUR OVERALL SUPPLY OF Cs-131 WOULD BE REDUCEIGNIFICANTLY UNLESS THE COMPANY HAS 7
source of enriched barium for utilization in domestic reactors.

We Have Entered Into An Agreement With A Single Distributor For Our Cesium-131 From Russia. WE PREVIOUSLY OBTAINED THE MAJORITY OF OUR Cs-131 Fro
either the Institute of Nuclear Materials (INM) or the Russian Research Institute of Atomic Reactors (RIAR), both of which are located in Russia. In December
2008, WE ENTERED INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH URALDIAL TO PURCHASE Cs-131 DIRECTLY FRIBMLDIAL INSTEAD OF FROM INM AND RIAR. As A RESULT, WE NOW RELY
URALDIAL TO OBTAIN Cs-131 FROM RUSSIAN SOURCES. URALDIAL HAS AGREBIMAINTAIN AT LEAST TWO RUSSIAN SOURCES OF ITS Cs-131, AND OUR AGREEMENT WidralDial
HAS LOWER MINIMUM PURCHASE REQUIREMENTS THAN OUR PRIOR AGREEMENTS WITENM AND RIAR, AND THESE LOWER MINIMUM PURCHASE REQUIREMENTS ARE BEING MET A
THIS TIME. THROUGH THE URALDIAL AGREEMENT, WE HAVE OBTAINED SERICING FOR OUR RUSSIAN Cs-131 THROUGH THE END OF 2009. THERE CAN BEO GUARANTEE TH.
URALDIAL WILL ALWAYS BE ABLE TO SUPPLY US WITH SUFFICIENTS-13 1, WHICH COULD BE DUE IN PART TO RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH FOREIGN OPERATIONAND BEYOND OUR ANL
UralDial's control, and if we were unable to obtain supplies OF ISOTOPES FROM RUSSIA IN THE FUTURE, OUR OVERALL SUPPLY OF Cs-131 WOULD REDUCED SIGNIFICANTLY
unless we have a source of enriched barium for utilization in domestic reactors.
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We Are Subject To Uncertainties Regarding Reimbursement For Use Of Our Products. HOSPITALS ANDFREESTANDING CLINICS MAY BE LESS LIKELY TO PURCHASE Ol
PRODUCTS IF THEY CANNOBE ASSURED OF RECEIVING FAVORABLE REIMBURSEMENT FOR TREATMENTS USING ORRODUCTS FROM THIRD-PARTY PAYERS, SUCH AS MEDICARE AN
PRIVATE HEALTH INSURANCPLANS. CURRENTLY, MEDICARE REIMBURSES HOSPITALS, CLINICS ANBIYSICIANS FOR THE COST OF SEEDS USED IN BRACHYTHERAPY PROCEDURES ON
PASS THROUGH BASIS, AND WILL CONTINUE THIS METHOD OF REIMBURSEMENT THROUGH DECEMBERl, 2009. HISTORICALLY, PRIVATE INSURERS HAVE FOLLOWED MEDIC/
GUIDELINES IN ESTABLISHING REIMBURSEMENT RATES. HOWEVER, THIRD-PARTRAYERS ARE INCREASINGLY CHALLENGING THE PRICING OF CERTAIN MEDICAL SERVICES alevices,
AND WE CANNOT BE SURE THAT THEY WILL REIMBURSE OUR CUSTOMERS AT LESEIFSICIENT FOR US TO MAINTAIN FAVORABLE SALES AND PRICE LEVELS FOR ®R®DUCTS. THERE It
no uniform policy on reimbursement among THIRD-PARTY PAYERS, AND WE CAN PROVIDE NO ASSURANCE THAT OUR PRODUCTS WUANTINUE TO QUALIFY FOR REIMBURSEMEN
FROM ALL THIRD-PARTY PAYERS OR THREIMBURSEMENT RATES WILL NOT BE REDUCED. A REDUCTION IN GRLIMINATION OF THIRD-PARTY REIMBURSEMENT FOR TREATMENTS USI!
our products would likely have a material adverse effect on our revenues.

IN 2003, We APPLIED TO THE CENTERS FOR MEDICARE AND MEDICAID SERVICES (CMS) AND RECEIVEDREIMBURSEMENT CODE FOR USE OF OUR Cs-131 SEED. As oF JuLy
2007, CMS REVISED THE CODING SYSTEM FOR BRACHYTHERAPY SEEDS AND SEPARATED THE SINGC@DE INTO TWO CODES — ONE CODE FOR LOOSE SEEDS AND A SECOND CODE F
stranded SEeDS. THIS METHODOLOGY WAS APPLIED TO ALL COMPANIES MANUFACTURINGAND DISTRIBUTING BRACHYTHERAPY SEEDS. REIMBURSEMENT AMOUNTS AREEViewed
AND REVISED ANNUALLY. ADJUSTMENTS COULD BE MADE TO THESEIMBURSEMENT AMOUNTS OR POLICIES, WHICH COULD RESULT IN REDUCED REIMBURSEMENTfor
brachytherapy services, which could negatively affect market demand for our products.

FURTHERMOREANY FEDERAL AND STATE EFFORTS TO REFORM GOVERNMENT AND PRIVATE HEALTHNARRANCE PROGRAMS COULD SIGNIFICANTLY AFFECT THE PURCHASE
HEALTHCARBERVICES AND PRODUCTS IN GENERAL AND DEMAND FOR OUR PRODUCTS PARTICULAR. MEDICARE IS THE PAYER IN APPROXIMATELY 70% oF aLL U.Prostate
BRACHYTHERAPY CASES AND MANAGEMENT ANTICIPATES THIS PERCENTAGE T®NCREASE ANNUALLY. WE ARE UNABLE TO PREDICT WHETHER POTENHEALTHCARE REFORMS WILL
ENACTED, WHETHER OTHER HEALTHCARE LEGISLATIONRERULATIONS AFFECTING THE BUSINESS MAY BE PROPOSED OR ENACTED IN THE FUTURE WRIAT EFFECT ANY SUC
legislation or regulations would have on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Our Operating Results Will Be Subject To Significant Fluctuations. OUR QUARTERLY REVENUEEXPENSES, AND OPERATING RESULTS ARE LIKELY TO FLUCTU
SIGNIFICANTLY IN THEFUTURE. FLUCTUATION MAY RESULT FROM A VARIETY OF FACTORS, WHICH DARBUSSED IN DETAIL THROUGHOUT THIS “RISK FACTORS” skcrtior
including:

= ourachievement of product development objectives and milestones;

= demand and pricing for the Company’s products;

= effects of aggressive competitors;

= hospital, clinic and physician buying decisions;

= research and development and manufacturing expenses;

=  patient outcomes from our therapy;

= physician acceptance of our products;

= government or private healthcare reimbursement policies;

= our manufacturing performance and capacity;

= incidents, if any, that could cause temporary shutdown of our manufacturing facility;

= the amount and timing of sales orders;

= rate and success of future product approvals;

= timing of FDA clearance, if any, of competitive products and the rate of market penetration of competing products;

= seasonality of purchasing behavior in our market;

= overall economic conditions; and

=  the successful introduction or market penetration of alternative therapies.

We Have Limited Data on the Clinical Performance of Cs-131. As oF Jury 31, 2009, THE ProXCELAICs-131 SEED HAS BEEN IMPLANTED IN OVER 4,000 patients
AND RESEARCHPAPERS ARE BEING PUBLISHED ON THE USE OF THE PROXCELAN SEED. HOWEVERYE HAVE LESS STATISTICAL DATA THAN IS AVAILABLE FOR I-125 AND Pp-
SEEDS. WHILE THIS LIMITED DATA MAY PREVENT US FROM DRAWINGBTATISTICALLY SIGNIFICANT CONCLUSIONS, THE SIDE EFFECTS EXPERIENCED BY THEBKTIENTS WERE LES:
SEVERE THAN SIDE EFFECTS OBSERVED IN SEED BRACHYTHERAPY WITHI25 AND PD-103 AND IN OTHER FORMS OF TREATMENT SUCH AS RADI@RDSTATECTOMY. THESE EARL
RESULTS INDICATE THAT THE ONSET OF SIDEFECTS GENERALLY OCCURS BETWEEN ONE AND THREE WEEKS POST-IMPLANT, AND THE SHPEECTS ARE RESOLVED BETWEEN FIVE Al
EIGHT WEEKS POST-IMPLANT, MORE QUICKLY THAN THE RESOLUTION OF SIDE EFFECTS THAT OCCUR WITH COMPETING SEEDS OR WOTHIER FORMS OF TREATMENT. THESE LIMIT
findings support management’s belief that the Cs-131 seed will result in less severe side effects than COMPETING TREATMENTS, BUT WE MAY HAVE TO GATHER DATA C
outcomes from additional patients before we can establish statistically valid conclusions regarding the incidence of side effects from our seeds.
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We Are Subject To The Risk That Certain Third Parties May Mishandle Our Product. WE RELY ONTHIRD PARTIES, SUCH AS FEDERAL EXPRESS, TO DELIVER €
Proxcelan Cs-131 seed, and on other third parties, including various radiopharmacies, to package our PROXCELAN Cs-131 SEED IN CERTAIN SPECIALIZED PACKAGINC
forms requested by customers. We are subject to the risk that these third parties may MISHANDLE OUR PRODUCT, WHICH COULD RESULT IN ADVERSE EFFECTS, PARTICUL/
given the radioactive nature of our product.

It Is Possible That Other Treatments May Be Deemed Superior To Brachytherapy. OuUr PROXCELAN Cs-13 KEED FACES COMPETITION NOT ONLY FROM COMPANIES
THAT SELL OTHER RADIATION THERAIRODUCTS, BUT ALSO FROM COMPANIES THAT ARE DEVELOPING ALTERNATIVE THERAPIES HOE TREATMENT OF CANCERS. IT IS POSSIBLE Tk
ADVANCES IN THEPHARMACEUTICAL, BIOMEDICAL, OR GENE THERAPY FIELDS COULD RENDER SOME OR RMADIATION THERAPIES, WHETHER CONVENTIONAL OR BRACHYTHER,
OBSOLETE. IF ALTERNATIVE THERAPIES ARE PROVEN OR EVEN PERCEIVED CIFER TREATMENT OPTIONS THAT ARE SUPERIOR TO BRACHYTHERAPY, PHYSICIAN ADOPTGFNOUF
product could be negatively affected and our revenues from our product could decline.

Our Industry Is Intensely Competitive. THE MEDICAL DEVICE INDUSTRY IS INTENSELYCOMPETITIVE. WE COMPETE WITH BOTH PUBLIC AND PRIVATE MEDICAL DEVICE,
biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies that have been in existence longer than we have, have a greater number of products on the market, have greater
FINANCIAL AND OTHER RESOURCES, AND HAVE OTHER TECHNOLOGICAL OR COMPETIWBFANTAGES. IN ADDITION, CENTERS THAT WISH TO OFFER THE PROXCECSNI 31 SEED MUST
COMPLY WITH LICENSING REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIC TO THE STATE INWHICH THEY DO BUSINESS AND THESE LICENSING REQUIREMENTS MAY TAKE A CONSIDERABLEMOUNT OF TIME
TO COMPLY WITH. CERTAIN CENTERS MAY CHOOSE TO NODFFER OUR PROXCELAN Cs-131 SEED DUE TO THE TIME REQUIRED TO OBTNBCESSARY LICENSE AMENDMENTS. Wi
ALSO COMPETE WITH ACADEMIC INSTITUTIONS, GOVERNMENT AGENCIES, AND PRIVATE RESEARCH ORGANIZATIONS IN TBEVELOPMENT OF TECHNOLOGIES AND PROCESSES AND 1!
ACQUIRING KEY PERSONNEL. ALTHOUGH WE HAVE PATENTS GRANTED AND PATENTS APPLIED FA® PROTECT OUR ISOTOPE SEPARATION PROCESSES AND Cs-131 SEE
MANUFACTURINGTECHNOLOGY, WE CANNOT BE CERTAIN THAT ONE OR MORE OF OUR COMPETITORS WILL NOIEMPT TO OBTAIN PATENT PROTECTION THAT BLOCKS OR ADVERS
AFFECTS OUR PRODUCDEVELOPMENT EFFORTS. TO MINIMIZE THIS POTENTIAL, WE HAVE ENTERED INT@XCLUSIVE AGREEMENTS WITH KEY SUPPLIERS OF ISOTOPES AND ISOTOPI
precursors, which are subject to becoming non-exclusive as we have failed to meet minimum purchase requirements.

We May Be Unable To Adequately Protect Or Enforce Our Intellectual Property Rights Or Secure Rights To Third-Party Patents. OUR ABILITY AND TH
ABILITIES OF OURPARTNERS TO OBTAIN AND MAINTAIN PATENT AND OTHER PROTECTION FOR OUR PRODUWISL AFFECT OUR SUCCESS. WE ARE ASSIGNED, HAVE RIGHTS TO, OR H
EXCLUSIVE LICENSES TO PATENTS AND PATENTS PENDING IN THE U.S. AND NUMEROUSOREIGN COUNTRIES. THE PATENT POSITIONS OF MEDICAL DEVICE COMPANIES CAN BE
highly uncertain and involve complex legal and factual questions. Our patent rights may not be upheld in a court of law if challenged. Our patent rights may
NOT PROVIDE COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGESFOR OUR PRODUCTS AND MAY BE CHALLENGED, INFRINGED UPON OR CIRCUMVENTED BY OWOMPETITORS. WE CANNOT PATENT OU
products in all countries or afford to litigate every potential violation worldwide.

BECAUSE OF THE LARGE NUMBER OF PATENT FILINGS IN THE MEDICAL DEVICE AND BIOTECHNOLOGYELD, OUR COMPETITORS MAY HAVE FILED APPLICATIONS OR BEEN ISSUEI

PATENTS ANDMAY OBTAIN ADDITIONAL PATENTS AND PROPRIETARY RIGHTS RELATING TO PRODUCTSPRRCESSES COMPETITIVE WITH OR SIMILAR TO OURS. WE CANNOT BE CERTA
that U.S. or foreign patents do not exist or will not be issued that would harm our ability to commercialize our products and product candidates.
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The Value Of Our Granted Patents, and Our Patents Pending, Is Uncertain. ALTHOUGH OUR MANAGEMENTSTRONGLY BELIEVES THAT OUR PATENT ON THE PROCESS
PRODUCING Cs-131, OUR PATENTS ON ADDITIONAL METHODS FOR PRODUCING Cs-131 AND OTHER ISOTOPES, OPRTENT PENDING ON THE MANUFACTURE OF THE BRACHYTHERA
SEED, AND ANTICIPATED FUTURE PATENT APPLICATIONS, WHICH HAVE NOT YET BEEN FILED, HAVE SIGNIFICANVALUE, WE CANNOT BE CERTAIN THAT OTHER LIKE-KIND PROCESS
may not exist or be discovered, that any of these patents is enforceable, or that any of our patent applications will result in issued patents.

Failure To Comply With Government Regulations Could Harm Our Business. As A MEDICAL DEVICE AND MEDICAL ISOTOPE MANUFACTURER, WE ARE SUBJECT -
EXTENSIVE, COMPLEX, COSTLY, ANDEVOLVING GOVERNMENTAL RULES, REGULATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS ADMINISTERED BY FIMA, BY OTHER FEDERAL AND STATE AGENCIES, A
BY GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITIES OTHER COUNTRIES. COMPLIANCE WITH THESE LAWS AND REGULATIONSHSPENSIVE AND TIME-CONSUMING, AND CHANGES TO OR FAILURE Tt
comply with these laws and regulations, or adoption of new laws and regulations, could adversely affect our business.

IN THEUNITED STATES, AS A MANUFACTURER OF MEDICAL DEVICES AND DEVICES UTILIZINGADIOACTIVE BY-PRODUCT MATERIAL, WE ARE SUBJECT TO EXTENSIVE REGULATION
FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITIES, SUCH AS THE FDA ANDWNSHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH,0 ENSURE SUCH DEVICESARE SAFE AN
EFFECTIVE. REGULATIONS PROMULGATED BY THE FDA UNDER THH.S. Foop, DrRUG AND CoSMETIC AcT, OR THE FDC ACT, GOVERN THE DESIGMEVELOPMENT, TESTING
MANUFACTURING, PACKAGING, LABELING, DISTRIBUTIONMARKETING AND SALE, POST-MARKET SURVEILLANCE, REPAIRS, REPLACEMENTS, AND REC®ELBIEDICAL DEVICES. IN
WASHINGTON STATE, THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, BAGREEMENT WITH THE FEDERAL NUCLEAR REGULATORY CommissioN (NRC), REGULATES PIISBESSION, USE, AND
DISPOSAL OF RADIOACTIVE BYPRODUCT MATERIAL AS WELL AS TMENUFACTURE OF RADIOACTIVE SEALED SOURCES TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH STATE AEDERAL LAWS AN
regulations. Our Proxcelan Cs-131 brachytherapy seeds constitute both medical devices and radioactive sealed sources and are subject to these regulations.

Under the FDC ACT, MEDICAL DEVICES ARE CLASSIFIED INTO THREE DIFFERENT CATEGORIES, OWHRICH THE FDA APPLIES INCREASING LEVELS OF REGULATION: CLASSCLASS 1T
AND Crass III. Our PROXCELAN Cs-131 SEED HAS BEESLASSIFIED AS A CLASS Il DEVICE AND HAS RECEIVED CLEARANCE FROM THE FDA THROUwE 510(K) PRE-MARKE'
NOTIFICATION PROCESS. ANY MODIFICATIONS TO THEDEVICE THAT WOULD SIGNIFICANTLY AFFECT SAFETY OR EFFECTIVENESS, OR CONSTITUMAJAR CHANGE IN INTENDED USE
would require a new 510(k) submission. As with any submittal to the FDA, there is no assurance that a 510(k) clearance would be granted to the Company.

In ApDITION TO FDA-REQUIRED MARKET CLEARANCES AND APPROVALS FOR OUR PRODUCTS,MARUFACTURING OPERATIONS ARE REQUIRED TO COMPLY WITH THE FDA's QuaL
SYSTEM REGULATION, OR QSR, WHICH ADDRESSES REQUIREMENTS FOR A COMPANY'S QUALITY PROGRAMCH AS MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY, GOOD MANUFACTURINC
PRACTICES, PRODUCT ANDPROCESS DESIGN CONTROLS, AND QUALITY CONTROLS USED NMANUFACTURING. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
MONITORED THROUGH PERIODIC INSPECTIONS BY THE FDA OFFICE OF REGULATORY AFFAINORA). WE ANTICIPATE BOTH ANNOUNCED AND UNANNOUNCED INSPECTIONS BY the
FDA. SucH INSPECTIONS COULD RESULT IN NON-COMPLIANCE REPORTYFORM 483) WHICH, IF NOT ADEQUATELY RESPONDED TO, COULD LEAD TO ENFORCEMENGTIONS. THE
FDA CAN INSTITUTE A WIDE VARIETY OF ENFORCEMENT ACTIONSANGING FROM PUBLIC WARNING LETTERS TO MORE SEVERE SANCTIONS SUCH AS FINESJUNCTIONS, CIVIL
PENALTIES, RECALL OF OUR PRODUCTS, OPERATING RESTRICTIOSUSSPENSION OF PRODUCTION, NON-APPROVAL OR WITHDRAWAL OF PRE-MARKET CLEARANGER NEW PRODUCTS O
EXISTING PRODUCTS, AND CRIMINALPROSECUTION. THERE CAN BE NO ASSURANCE THAT WE WILL NOT INCSIRNIFICANT COSTS TO COMPLY WITH THESE REGULATIONS IN THE FUTU
or that the regulations will not have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The MARKETING OF OUR PRODUCTS IN FOREIGN COUNTRIES WILL, IN GENERAL, BE REGULATEDFBREIGN GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES SIMILAR TO THE FDA. FOREIGN REGULAT
requirements vary from country to country. The time and cost required to obtain regulatory approvals could be longer than that required for FDA clearance in
THE UNITED STATES AND THE REQUIREMENTS FOR LICENSING A PRODUCTANOTHER COUNTRY MAY DIFFER SIGNIFICANTLY FROM FDA REQUIREMENTS. WHLL RELY, IN PART, O
FOREIGN DISTRIBUTORS TO ASSIST US IN COMPLYING WITHOREIGN REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS. WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO OBTAIN THESIPROVALS WITHOUT INCURRIN'
SIGNIFICANT EXPENSES OR AT ALL, AND THE FAILURE OBTAIN THESE APPROVALS WOULD PREVENT US FROM SELLING OUR PRODUCTS IN THEPLICABLE COUNTRIES. THIS COULI
limit our sales and growth.
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Our Business Exposes Us To Product Liability Claims. OUR DESIGN, TESTING, DEVELOPMENT,MANUFACTURE, AND MARKETING OF PRODUCTS INVOLVE AN INHERENT RISK
exposure to PRODUCT LIABILITY CLAIMS AND RELATED ADVERSE PUBLICITY. INSURANCBYVERAGE IS EXPENSIVE AND DIFFICULT TO OBTAIN, AND, ALTHOUGH WE CURRENTLY HAV
FIVE MILLION DOLLAR POLICY, IN THE FUTURE WE MAY BE UNABLE TO OBTAIN OR RENEWVERAGE ON ACCEPTABLE TERMS, IF AT ALL. IF WE ARE UNABLE TO OBTRNRENEV
SUFFICIENT INSURANCE AT AN ACCEPTABLE COST OR IF A SUCCESSFUL PRODUGABILITY CLAIM IS MADE AGAINST US, WHETHER FULLY COVERED BY INSURANCE OR NOUR BUSINESS
could be harmed.

Our Business Involves Environmental Risks. OUR BUSINESS INVOLVES THE CONTROLLED USE OF HAZARDOMSTERIALS, CHEMICALS, BIOLOGICS, AND RADIOACTIV
COMPOUNDS. MANUFACTURING IS EXTREMELY SUSCEPTIBLE TO PRODUCT LOSS DUEO RADIOACTIVE, MICROBIAL, OR VIRAL CONTAMINATION; MATERIAL OR EQUIPMERailure;
VENDOR OR OPERATOR ERROR; OR DUE TO THE VERY NATURE OF THE PRODBKM®RS HALF-LIFE. ALTHOUGH WE BELIEVE THAT OUR SAFETY PROCEDURESHRORDLING AND DISPOSING
OF SUCH MATERIALS COMPLY WITH STATE AND FEDERAL STANDARDMERE WILL ALWAYS BE THE RISK OF ACCIDENTAL CONTAMINATION DEURY. IN ADDITION, RADIOACTIVE
microbial, or viral contamination MAY CAUSE THE CLOSURE OF THE RESPECTIVE MANUFACTURING FACILITY FOR AN EXTENIERIOD OF TIME. BY LAW, RADIOACTIVE MATERIAI
may only be disposed of AT STATE-APPROVED FACILITIES. AT OUR LEASED FACILITY WE USBMMERCIAL DISPOSAL CONTRACTORS. WE MAY INCUR SUBSTANTIAL COSRBLATED T
THE DISPOSAL OF THESE MATERIALS. IF WE WERE TO BECOMHABLE FOR AN ACCIDENT, OR IF WE WERE TO SUFFER AN EXTENDED FACILITY SHUTDOWENGOULD INCUR SIGNIFICAN"
costs, damages, and penalties that could harm our business.

We Rely Upon Key Personnel. Our success will depend, to a great extent, upon the experience, abilities and continued services of our executive officers, sales
STAFF AND KEY SCIENTIFIC PERSONNEL. IF WEOSE THE SERVICES OF SEVERAL OFFICERS, SALES PERSONNEL, OR KEY SCIENTHHRSONNEL, OUR BUSINESS COULD BE HARMED. Ou
SUCCESS ALSO WILL DEPENDUPON OUR ABILITY TO ATTRACT AND RETAIN OTHER HIGHLY QUALIFIED SCIENTMIEAGERIAL, SALES, AND MANUFACTURING PERSONNEL AND TH
ABILITY TO DEVELOP ANDMAINTAIN RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY INDIVIDUALS IN THEINDUSTRY. COMPETITION FOR THESE PERSONNEL AND RELATIONSHIPS ISTENSE AND WE
compete with numerous pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies as well as with universities and non-profit research organizations. We may not be able
to continue to attract and retain qualified personnel.

Our Ability To Operate In Foreign Markets Is Uncertain. Our future growth will depend in part on our ability to establish, grow and maintain product sales in
FOREIGN MARKETSPARTICULARLY IN CANADA AND RussiA. HOWEVER, WE HAVE LIMITEEXPERIENCE IN MARKETING AND DISTRIBUTING PRODUCTS IN OTHEROUNTRIES. ANY
FOREIGN OPERATIONS WOULD SUBJECT US TO ADDITIONARISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES, INCLUDING OUR CUSTOMERS’ ABILITY TO OBTAREIMBURSEMENT FOR PROCEDURES USING OU
PRODUCTS IN FOREIGN MARKETS; THE BURDERF COMPLYING WITH COMPLEX AND CHANGING FOREIGN REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS; SPEEDYDELIVERY REQUIREMENTS DUE TO Tt
SHORT HALF-LIFE OF OUR PRODUCT; LANGUABARRIERS AND OTHER DIFFICULTIES IN PROVIDING LONG-RANGE CUSTOMER SERVIGEJTENTIALLY LONGER ACCOUNTS RECEIVAE
collection times; significant currency fluctuations, which could cause third-party distributors to reduce the number of products they purchase from us because
THE COST OF OUR PRODUCTS TO THEM COUIHDUCTUATE RELATIVE TO THE PRICE THEY CAN CHARGE THEIR CUSTOMERS; REDBRBDECTION OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHT¢
SOME FOREIGN COUNTRIES; AND THRPOSSIBILITY THAT CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS GOVERNED BY FOREIGN LAWS WOULD BE'ERPRETED DIFFERENTLY THAN INTENDED IN THE EV
OF A CONTRACDISPUTE. ANY FUTURE FOREIGN SALES OF OUR PRODUCTS COULD ALSO BBVERSELY AFFECTED BY EXPORT LICENSE REQUIREMENTS, THE IMPOSITION
GOVERNMENTAL CONTROLS, POLITICAL AND ECONOMIC INSTABILITY, TRADE RESTRICTIONSNGES IN TARIFFS, AND DIFFICULTIES IN STAFFING AND MANAGING FOREI
operations. Many of these factors may also affect our ability to import Cs-131 from Russia under our contract with UralDial.

Our Ability To Expand Operations And Manage Growth Is Uncertain. OUR EFFORTS TO EXPAND OURPERATIONS WILL RESULT IN NEW AND INCREASED RESPONSIBILITI
for management PERSONNEL AND WILL PLACE A STRAIN UPON THE ENTIRE COMPANY. TO COMPETEFFECTIVELY AND TO ACCOMMODATE GROWTH, IF ANY, WE MAY BE REQUIRI
TO CONTINUE TOMPLEMENT AND TO IMPROVE OUR MANAGEMENT, MANUFACTURING, SALES AND MARKETINGQPERATING AND FINANCIAL SYSTEMS, PROCEDURES AND CONTROLS
a timely basis and to expand, train, motivate and manage our employees. There can be no assurance that our personnel, systems, procedures, and controls will
BE ADEQUATETO SUPPORT OUR FUTURE OPERATIONS. IF THE PROXCELAN Cs-131 SEED WHRERAPIDLY BECOME THE “SEED OF CHOICE,” IT IS UNLIKELY THAT WE COULD MEI
DEMAND. WE COULD EXPERIENCE SIGNIFICANT CASH FLOW DIFFICULTIES ANIMAY HAVE DIFFICULTY OBTAINING THE WORKING CAPITAL REQUIRED TO MANUFACTURE oproducts
and meet demand. This would cause customer discontent and invite competition.
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Our Reporting Obligations As A Public Company Are Costly. OPERATING A PUBLIC COMPANY INVOLVES SUBSTANTIAL COSTS TO COMPLY WITH REPORTING OBLIGATIO!
UNDER FEDERAL SECURITIHSAWS THAT ARE CONTINUING TO INCREASE AS PROVISIONS OF THE SARBANES OXLEY AC12002 ARE IMPLEMENTED. AS A SMALLER REPORTIN
COMPANY, THE COMPANY NEEDS TO IMPLEMENT ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS OF THE SARBANES OXLEY ACT DURING FISCAIEAR 2010. THESE REPORTING OBLIGATIONS WII
increase our operating costs.

Our Stock Price Is Likely To Be Volatile. THERE 1S GENERALLY SIGNIFICANT VOLATILITY IN TMRARKET PRICES AND LIMITED LIQUIDITY OF SECURITIES OF EARLY STA
COMPANIES, AND PARTICULARLY OF EARLY STAGE MEDICAL PRODUCT COMPANIES. CONTRIBUTINK® THIS VOLATILITY ARE VARIOUS EVENTS THAT CAN AFFECT OUR STOCK PRICE
POSITIVE OR NEGATIVE MANNER. THESE EVENTS INCLUDE, BUT ARE NOMMITED TO: GOVERNMENTAL APPROVALS OF OR REFUSALS TO APPROVE REGULATION&\ORONS; MARKE'
ACCEPTANCE AND SALES GROWTH OF OUR PRODUCTS; LITIGATIDWOLVING THE COMPANY OR OUR INDUSTRY; DEVELOPMENTS OR DISPUTES CONCERNING OURATENTS OR OTHE
PROPRIETARY RIGHTS; CHANGES IN THE STRUCTURE OF HEALTHAMRMENT SYSTEMS; DEPARTURE OF KEY PERSONNEL; FUTURE SALES OF OUR SECURITIE&UCTUATIONS IN OU
FINANCIAL RESULTS OR THOSE OF COMPANIES THAT ARE PERCEIVED BE SIMILAR TO US; SWINGS IN SEASONAL DEMANDS OF PURCHASERS; INVESTORGENERAL PERCEPTION OF US
and general economic, industry and market conditions. If any of these events occur, it could cause our stock price to fall.

Our Reduced Stock Price May Adversely Affect Our Liquidity. OUR COMMON STOCK HAS BEEN TRADING AT LESS THAN $1.00 PER SHARE PERIODICALLY IN REC
MONTHS. MANY MARKET MAKERS ARE RELUCTANT TO MAKE A MARKET IN STOUKH A TRADING PRICE OF LESS THAN $1.00 PER SHARE. TO THE EXTENT TWETHAVE FEWEF
market makers for our common stock, our volume and liquidity will likely decline, which could further depress our stock price.

Future Sales By Shareholders, Or The Perception That Such Sales May Occur, May Depress The Price Of Our Common Stock. The sale or availability FOR sAL
OF SUBSTANTIAL AMOUNTS OF OUR SHARES IN THE PUBLIC MARKET, INCLUDISHARES ISSUABLE UPON CONVERSION OF OUTSTANDING PREFERRED STOCK OR EXERCISE GEHNMoON
STOCK WARRANTS AND OPTIONS, OR THE PERCEPTION THAT SUCH SALES COWGIIOUR, COULD ADVERSELY AFFECT THE MARKET PRICE OF OUR COMMON STOCK AND ACSOLD IMPAIR
OUR ABILITY TO RAISE CAPITAL THROUGH FUTURE OFFERINGS OF SHARES. As of JUNE 30, 2009, We HAD 22,942,088 OUTSTANDING SHARES GFOMMON STOCK, AND THE
following additional shares were reserved for issuance: 2,708,166 shares upon exercise of outstanding options, 3,216,644 shares upon exercise of outstanding
WARRANTS, AND 59,065 SHARES UPON CONVERSION OF PREFERREDOCK. ANY DECLINE IN THE PRICE OF OUR COMMON STOCK MAY ENCOURAGESHORT SALES, WHICH COULD PLAC
further downward pressure on the price of our common stock and may impair our ability to raise additional capital through the sale of equity securities.

The Issuance Of Shares Upon Exercise Of Derivative Securities May Cause Immediate And Substantial Dilution To Our Existing Shareholders. THE 1SSUANCE
OF SHARESUPON CONVERSION OF THE PREFERRED STOCK AND THE EXERCISE OF COMMON STOCK WARRAMND OPTIONS MAY RESULT IN SUBSTANTIAL DILUTION TO THE INTEREST!
other shareholders since these selling shareholders may ultimately convert or exercise and sell all or a portion of the full amount issuable upon EXERCISE. IF AL
DERIVATIVE SECURITIES WERE CONVERTED OR EXERCISEINTO SHARES OF COMMON STOCK, THERE WOULD BE APPROXIMATELY AN ADDITIONA3,000,000 SHARES OF COMMON
STOCK OUTSTANDING AS A RESULT. THESUANCE OF THESE SHARES WILL HAVE THE EFFECT OF FURTHER DILUTINGPRBBORTIONATE EQUITY INTEREST AND VOTING POWER
holders of our common stock.

We Do Not Expect To Pay Any Dividends For The Foreseeable Future. WE DO NOT ANTICIPATEPAYING ANY DIVIDENDS TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS FOR THE FORESEEAI
FUTURE. THE TERMS OF CERTAIN OF OUR AND OUR SUBSIDIARY'S OUTSTANDINGEBTEDNESS SUBSTANTIALLY RESTRICT THE ABILITY OF EITHER COMPANY TO
DIVIDENDS. ACCORDINGLY, SHAREHOLDERS MUST BE PREPARED TO RELY OBALES OF THEIR COMMON STOCK AFTER PRICE APPRECIATION TO EARN AN INVESTMERETURN, WHICI
MAY NEVER OCCUR. ANY DETERMINATION TO PAY DIVIDENDS IN THE FUTURE WILL BE MADE AT THE DISCRETION OF OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS ANDDERHEND ON OUR RESULTS O
operations, financial conditions, contractual restrictions, restrictions imposed by applicable laws and other factors our Board deems relevant.
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Certain Provisions of Minnesota Law and Our Charter Documents Have an Anti-Takeover Effect. THERE EXIST CERTAINVECHANISMS UNDER MINNESOTA LAW ANC
OUR CHARTER DOCUMENTS THAT MAY DELAY, DEFER PREVENT A CHANGE OF CONTROL. ANTI-TAKEOVER PROVISIONS OF OARTICLES OF INCORPORATION, BYLAWS AND MINNESO'
LAW COULD DIMINISH THE OPPORTUNITY FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PARTICIPATE IN ACQUISITION PROPOSALS AT A PRIGEBOVE THE THEN-CURRENT MARKET PRICE OF OUR COMMC(
STOCK. FOR EXAMPLE,WHILE WE HAVE NO PRESENT PLANS TO ISSUE ANY PREFERRED STOCK, OUR BOARDINRECTORS, WITHOUT FURTHER SHAREHOLDER APPROVAL, MAY IS
SHARES OFUNDESIGNATED PREFERRED STOCK AND FIX THE POWERS, PREFERENCES, RIGHTS ANMITATIONS OF SUCH CLASS OR SERIES, WHICH COULD ADVERSELY AFFECT THE VO
POWER OF THE COMMON SHARES. IN ADDITION, OUR BYLAWS PROVIDE FOR AMDVANCE NOTICE PROCEDURE FOR NOMINATION OF CANDIDATES TO OUR BOARD OF DIRECTtRat
COULD HAVE THE EFFECT OF DELAYING, DETERRING OR PREVENTING A CHANGECDNTROL. FURTHER, AS A MINNESOTA CORPORATION, WE ARE SUBJECTPROVISIONS OF THE
MINNESOTA BUSINESS CORPORATION ACT, OR MBCA, REGARDINGBUSINESS COMBINATIONS,” WHICH CAN DETER ATTEMPTED TAKEOVERS IN CERTAINSITUATIONS. PURSUANT 1
THE TERMS OF A SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS PLANOPTED IN FEBRUARY 2007, EACH OUTSTANDING SHARE OF COMMON STOCK HAS ONATTACHED RIGHT. THE RIGHTS WILL CAU
SUBSTANTIAL DILUTION OF THBWNERSHIP OF A PERSON OR GROUP THAT ATTEMPTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY ON TERMS N@PPROVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MA
HAVE THE EFFECT OF DETERRING HOSTILEKEOVER ATTEMPTS. THE EFFECT OF THESE ANTI-TAKEOVER PROVISIONS MBE TO DETER BUSINESS COMBINATION TRANSACTIONS NC
approved by our Board of Directors, including acquisitions that may offer a premium over the market price To SOME OR ALL SHAREHOLDERS. WE MAY, IN THE FUTU
consider adopting ADDITIONAL ANTI-TAKEOVER MEASURES. THE AUTHORITY OF OUR BOARIBSIOE UNDESIGNATED PREFERRED OR OTHER CAPITAL STOCK AND THE ANTI-TAKE(
PROVISIONS OF THE MBCA, AS WELL AS OTHER CURRENT AND ANY FUTURE ANTI-TAKEMIFKRURES ADOPTED BY US, MAY, IN CERTAIN CIRCUMSTANCES, DELAY, DETER OR PREVE!
takeover attempts and other changes in control of the Company not approved by our Board of Directors.

ITEM 1B — UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

As a smaller reporting company, the Company is not required to provide Item 1B disclosure in this Annual Report.

ITEM 2 - PROPERTIES

THE COMPANY’S EXECUTIVE OFFICES ARE LOCATED AT 350 HiLrs STREeT, SuitE 1@cHLAND, WA 99354, (509) 375-1202, WHERE ISORAY CURRENTLY LEAS
APPROXIMATELY 16,400 SQUARE FEET OF OFFICE AND LABORATORY SPACE FOR APPROXIMATELY $23,500 MMRNTH PLUS MONTHLY JANITORIAL EXPENSES OF APPROXIMATEL'
$460 FroM ENERGYNORTHWEST, THE OWNER OF THE APPLIED PROCESS ENGINEERING LABORATORY (THE APEAcCILITY). THE COMPANY IS NOT AFFILIATED WITH TH
LESSOR. THE MONTHLY RENT IS SUBJECT TO ANNUAL INCREASES BASED ON THGNSUMER PRICE INDEX. THE CURRENT LEASE WAS ENTERED INTO IN MAY 200fXPIRES ON APRIL

30,2010, and has two three-year renewal options.

THE COMPANY’S MANAGEMENT BELIEVES THAT ALL FACILITIES OCCUPIED BY THE COMPANY AREADEQUATE FOR PRESENT REQUIREMENTS, AND THAT THE COMPANY’S CURR
equipment is in good condition and is suitable for the operations involved.

ITEM 3 - LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
The Company is not involved in any material legal proceedings as of the date of this Report.
ITEM 4 — SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matter was submitted to a vote of the Company’s security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report.
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PART 11

ITEM 5 — MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES

THE COMPANY’S ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION PROVIDE THAT THE COMPANY HAS THE AUTHORITO ISSUE 200,000,000 SHARES OF CAPITAL STOCK, WHICH ARE CURREN
divided into Two cLASSES AS FOLLOWS: 194,000,000 SHARES OF COMMON STOCK, PAR VALUE OF $0.00HR SHARE; AND 6,000,000 SHARES OF PREFERRED STOCK, PAR VALUE

$0.001 per share. As of September 14,2009, we had 22,942,088 outstanding shares of Common Stock and 59,065 outstanding shares of Preferred Stock.

On April 19,2007, OUR COMMON STOCK BEGAN TRADING ON THE AMERICAN STOCK EXCHANGE (Now THNYSE AMEX) UNDER THE SYMBOL "ISR." EVEN THOUGH WE HAVE
obtained our NYSE Amex listing, there is still limited trading activity in our securities.

The following table sets forth, for the fiscal quarters indicated, the high and low sales prices for our common stock as reported on the NYSE Amex.

Year ended June 30,2009 High Low
First quarter $ 090 $ 0.35
Second quarter 0.70 0.20
Third quarter 032 0.15
Fourth quarter 0.39 0.19

Year ended June 30,2008 High Low
First quarter $ 520 $ 344
Second quarter 351 1.85
Third quarter 2.27 1.00
Fourth quarter 1.00 0.55

The Company has never paid any cash dividends on its Common Stock and does not plan to pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. On February 1,
2007, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS DECLARED A DIVIDEND ON THE SERIES B PREFERRED STIFCKLL OUTSTANDING AND CUMULATIVE DIVIDENDS THROUGH DECEMBER 3
2006. There is no Series A Preferred Stock oUTSTANDING. THE TOTAL SERIES B ACCRUED DIVIDENDS OF $38,458 wERKID ON FEBRUARY 15,2007. At JUNE 30, 2009
there were 59,065 Series B preferred shares outstanding and cumulative dividends in arrears were $26,565. There is no Series A Preferred Stock outstanding.

As of September 14, 2009, we had approximately 320 shareholders of record, exclusive of shares held in street name.

Equity Compensation Plans

ON May 27, 2005, THE CoMPANY ADOPTED THE 2005 Stock OpTION PLAN (THE OPTION PLAN) ANDHE 2005 EMPLOYEE Stock OpTiON PLAN (THE EMPLOYEE PLAN
PURSUANT TO WHICH IIMAY GRANT EQUITY AWARDS TO ELIGIBLE PERSONS. ON Aucust 15, 2006, THEOMPANY ADOPTED THE 2006 DIRECTOR SToCK OPTION PLAN (TH
DIRECTOR PLAN) PURSUANIO WHICH IT MAY GRANT EQUITY AWARDS TO ELIGIBLE PERSONS. EACH OF TIREANS HAS SUBSEQUENTLY BEEN AMENDED. THE OPTION PLAN ALLOY
the Board oF DIRECTORS TO GRANT OPTIONS TO PURCHASE UP TO 1,800,000 SHARES OF COMMON STOT® DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, KEY EMPLOYEES AND SERVICE PROVIDERS OF T
CoMPANY, AND THE EMPLOYEE PLAN ALLOWS THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO GRANT OPTIONS TO PURCHASEOUR,000,000 SHARES OF COMMON STOCK TO OFFICERS AND K
EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY. THE DIRECTOR PLAN ALLOWS THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO GRPNIONS TO PURCHASE UP TO 1,000,000 SHARES OF COMMON STOCK T
directors of the Company. Options granted under all of the Plans have a ten year maximum term, an exercise price equal to at least the fair market value of the
COMPANY’S COMMON STOCK (BASED ON THE TRADING PRICE ON THE NYSE AMEX) ON THE DATEOF THE GRANT, AND WITH VARYING VESTING PERIODS AS DETERMINED BY T
Board.
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As of June 30,2009, the following options had been granted under the option plans.

Number of Weighted- Number of
securities to average securities
be issued on exercise remaining

exercise of price of available for
outstanding outstanding future

options, options, issuance

warrants, warrants, under equity

and rights and rights compensation
Plan Category # $ plans
Equity compensation plans approved by shareholders N/A N/A N/A
Equity compensation plans not approved by shareholders 2,708,166 $ 2.08 1,225,051
Total 2,708,166 § 2.08 1,225,051

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

IN June 2008, THE BoARD OF DIRECTORS OF ISORAY AUTHORIZED THE REPURCHASE OF UPIT@00,000 sHARES OF THE COMPANY’S cOMMON STOCK (FY2009 PraN). T
FY2009 PLaN EXPIRED ON JUNE 30, 2009. THE TABLE BELOW SHOWS THRACTIVITY IN THE FY2009 PLAN FROM INCEPTION TO JUNE 30, 2009. THERWERE NO SHARE
purchased during fiscal year 2008 other than in June 2008 and no shares purchased during fiscal year 2009 other than in July 2009.

FY 2009 PLAN
Total
Number of Maximum
Shares Number of
Purchased Shares that
Total Average as Part of May Yet be
Period Number Price Publicly Purchased
of Shares Paid Announced Under the
Beginning Ending Purchased per Share Plan Plan ()
June 1,2008 June 30,2008 5,000 § 0.731 5,000 995,000
July 1,2008 July 31,2008 8,200 $ 0.577 13,200 986,800
Total 13,200 § 0.636 13,200 986,800

(1) In June 2008, the Company announced a new stock repurchase plan to purchase up to 1,000,000 shares of the Company's common stock. The Plan

expired on June 30,2009.
Sales of Unregistered Securities
All sales of unregistered securities were previously reported.

ITEM 6 - SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

As a smaller reporting company, the Company is not required to provide Item 6 disclosure in this Annual Report.
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ITEM 7 - MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYS

OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

MANAGEMENT ’SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OBPERATIONS 1S BASED UPON ITS CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
WHICH HAVE BEEN PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THENITED STATES OF AMERICA. THE PREPARATION OF THESE FINANCL
STATEMENTS REQUIRES MANAGEMENT TO MAKE ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS THAT AFFECT REBORTED AMOUNTS OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, REVENUES AND EXPENSES, AND RELA'
DISCLOSURES OF CONTINGENT LIABILITIES. ON AN ON-GOING BASISYANAGEMENT EVALUATES PAST JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES, INCLUDING THOSE RELATED BAD DEBTS,
INVENTORIES, ACCRUED LIABILITIES, ANDONTINGENCIES. MANAGEMENT BASES ITS ESTIMATES ON HISTORICAEXPERIENCE AND ON VARIOUS OTHER ASSUMPTIONS THAT Al
believed to be reasonable UNDER THE CIRCUMSTANCES, THE RESULTS OF WHICH FORM THE BASIS FOR MAKINGDGMENTS ABOUT THE CARRYING VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILI1
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

TuE COMPANY BELIEVES THE FOLLOWING CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AFFECT ITS MOBEGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES USED IN THE PREPARATION OF IT
consolidated financial statements.

Short-Term Investments

THE COMPANY INVESTS CERTAIN EXCESS CASH IN MARKETABLE SECURITIES CONSISTINGPRIMARILY OF COMMERCIAL PAPER, AUCTION RATE SECURITIES, CERTIFICATES OF DEPOS
AND MONEY MARKET FUNDS. THE COMPANY CLASSIFIES ALL DEBT SECURITIES ASAVAILABLE-FOR-SALE” AND RECORDS THE DEBT SECURITIES AT FAIR VALUE WNREALIZED GAIN;
AND TEMPORARY UNREALIZED LOSSES INCLUDED IN OTHER COMPREHENSIVINCOME/LOSS WITHIN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY, IF MATERIAL. DECLINES IRAIR VALUES THAT A
considered other than temporary are recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

ErrecTiviEJury 1, 2008, THE COMPANY IMPLEMENTED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (SFAS) No. 157 Fair Value Measurements. SFAS 157
DEFINES FAIR VALUE,ESTABLISHES A FRAMEWORK FOR MEASURING FAIR VALUE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ACCOUNTRRGNCIPLES GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED STATES, A}
EXPANDS DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS. THE COMPANY ELECTED TO IMPLEMENT THISTATEMENT WITH THE ONE-YEAR DEFERRAL PERMITTED BY FASB S
Position (FSP) 157-2 FOR NONFINANCIAL ASSETS AND NONFINANCIAL LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAARUE, EXCEPT THOSE THAT ARE RECOGNIZED OR DISCLOSED ON A RECURI
BASIS. THIS DEFERRAL APPLIES TO FIXED ASSETS AND INTANGIBLE ASSEMIPAIRMENT TESTING AND INITIAL RECOGNITION OF ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS FORICH FAIR VALUF
1S USED. THE COMPANY DOES NOT EXPECT ANY SIGNIFICANT IMPACT TO OUR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WHEN WE IMPLEMENT SFAS 157 FORHESE ASSETS AN
liabilities.

SFAS 157 REQUIRES DISCLOSURES THAT CATEGORIZE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT YAIRUE INTO ONE OF THREE DIFFERENT LEVELS DEPENDING ON THE OBSERVABILITY
the INPUTS EMPLOYED IN THE MEASUREMENT. LEVEL 1 INPUTS ARE QUOTED PRICESIN ACTIVE MARKETS FOR IDENTICAL ASSETS OR LIABILITIES. LEVEL 2 INPUIRE OBSERVABLI
INPUTS OTHER THAN QUOTED PRICES INCLUDED WITHIN LEVEL 1 FOR THBSET OR LIABILITY, EITHER DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY THROUGH MARKET-CORROBORWIETS. LEVEL 3
INPUTS ARE UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS FOR THE ASSET QRABILITY REFLECTING SIGNIFICANT MODIFICATIONS TO OBSERVABLE RELATED MARKET DARAOUR ASSUMPTIONS ABOU’
pricing by market participants.

At June 30,2009, all of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities are accounted and reported at fair value using Level 1 inputs.
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ALSOEFFECTIVE JuLy 1, 2008, THE ComPaNY ADOPTED SFAS No. 159,The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities Including an
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115. THE STATEMENT ALLOWS ENTITIES TO VALUE MANY FINANCIENNSTRUMENTS AND CERTAIN OTHER ITEMS AT FAIR VALUE. SFAS 1
provides GUIDANCE OVER THE ELECTION OF THE FAIR VALUE OPTION, INCLUDING THE TIMING OF THEECTION AND SPECIFIC ITEMS ELIGIBLE FOR THE FAIR VALUECCOUNTING. i
THE FAIR VALUE OPTION IS ELECTED THEN UNREALIZED GAINND LOSSES ARE REPORTED IN EARNINGS AT EACH SUBSEQUENT REPORTI®ATE. THE COMPANY ELECTED NOT Ti
measure any additional financial INSTRUMENTS OR OTHER ITEMS AT FAIR VALUE As OF JuLy 1, 2008 IN ACCORDANCE WBHAS 159. ACCORDINGLY, THE ADOPTION OF SFAS
159 DID NOT IMPACT OUR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. THE COMPANY DID ELECT TO FARALUE ITS ARS RIGHTS THAT WERE RECEIVED IN OcTOBER 2008 A
exercised in January 2009 in accordance with SFAS 159.

Accounts Receivable

ACCOUNTSRECEIVABLE ARE STATED AT THE AMOUNT THAT MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY EXPECTS QOLLECT FROM OUTSTANDING BALANCES. MANAGEMENT PROVIDES

probable UNCOLLECTIBLE AMOUNTS THROUGH AN ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFCCOUNTS. ADDITIONS TO THE ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS ARE BASNIMANAGEMENT’S
JUDGMENT, CONSIDERING HISTORICAL WRITE-OFFS, COLLECTIONS AKDRRENT CREDIT CONDITIONS. BALANCES WHICH REMAIN OUTSTANDING AFVBRNAGEMENT HAS USED
REASONABLE COLLECTION EFFORTS ARE WRITTEN OFF THROUGHARGE TO THE ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS AND A CREDIT TO THE APPLIGOCEICHINtS
receivable. Payments received subsequent to the time that an account is written off are considered bad debt recoveries.

Inventory

Inventory IS REPORTED AT THE LOWER OF COST OR MARKET. COST OF RAW MATERIADETERMINED USING THE WEIGHTED AVERAGE METHOD. COST OF WORK IN PROCESBNd
finished goods is computed using standard cost, which approximates actual cost, on a first-in, first-out basis.

Fixed Assets
Fixed assets are capitalized and carried at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Normal maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. When
ASSETS ARE SOLD OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF, THE COST ANDCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ARE REMOVED FROM THE ACCOUNTS AND ANY RESULTING GAINLOISS IS RECOGNIZED IN

operations.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Production equipment 3 to 7 years
Office equipment 2 to 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 2 to 5 years

Leasehold improvements and capital lease assets are amortized over the shorter of the life of the lease or the estimated useful life of the asset.

Management oF THE COMPANY PERIODICALLY REVIEWS THE NET CARRYING VALUE OF ALL OFHQWIPMENT ON AN ASSET BY ASSET BASIS. THESE REVIEWS CONSIDER THE NE
realizable value of each asset to determine whether an impairment in value has occurred, and the need for any asset impairment write-down.

ALTHOUGHMANAGEMENT HAS MADE ITS BEST ESTIMATE OF THE FACTORS THAT AFFECT THE CARRYVINGE BASED ON CURRENT CONDITIONS, IT IS REASONABLY POSSIBLE TH
CHANGES COULDOCCUR WHICH COULD ADVERSELY AFFECT MANAGEMENT'S ESTIMATE OF NET CASH FLGBX®ECTED TO BE GENERATED FROM ITS ASSETS, AND NECESSITATE AS:

impairment write-downs.

Deferred Financing Costs

Financing COSTS RELATED TO THE ACQUISITION OF DEBT ARE DEFERRED AND AMORTIZED OVERTERM OF THE RELATED DEBT USING THE EFFECTIVE INTEREST METHBeferred
FINANCING COSTSINCLUDE THE FAIR VALUE OF COMMON SHARES ISSUED TO CERTAIN SHAREHOLDERS FOR TKHIRRANTEE OF CERTAIN COMPANY DEBT IN ACCORDANCE WI1
AccouNTING PrincipLEs BoARD(APB) Opmnion No. 21, Interest on Receivables and Payables aAND EMERGING Issues Task Force (EITF) IssueNo. 95-13,
Classification of Debt Issue Costs in the Statement of Cash Flows. THE VALUE OFTHE SHARES ISSUED WAS THE ESTIMATED MARKET PRICE OF THE SHARES AS OF THE [
0f ISSUANCE. AMORTIZATION OF DEFERRED FINANCING COSTS, TOTALING $37,03D $30,504 FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 aND 2008, RESPECTIVELY, INCLUDED IN
financing expense on the statements of operations.
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Licenses

Amortization OF LICENSES IS COMPUTED USING THE STRAIGHT-LINE METHOD OVER THE ESTIMATHDCONOMIC USEFUL LIVES OF THE ASSETS. IN FISCAL YEAR 2006, THE COMPA?
ENTERED INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH IBT, SA, A BELGIAN compaNy (IBT) TO USE IBPROPRIETARY “INK JET” PRODUCTION PROCESS AND ITS PROPRIETARY POLYMER SEF
TECHNOLOGY FOR USE IN BRACHYTHERAPY PROCEDURES USING CESIUM-13{Cs-131). THE COMPANY PAID LICENSE FEES OF $225,000 AND $275,000 DURING FISCAL YEAR
2008 AND 2006, RESPECTIVELY. DURING FISCAL YEAROO9, THE COMPANY DETERMINED THAT THE ENTIRE REMAINING VALUE OF THE IBT LICENBRS IMPAIRED AND RECORDED
an impairment charge of $425,434.

AMORTIZATION OF LICENSES WAS $30,067 aAND $43,452 FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 AND 200&ESPECTIVELY. BASED ON THE LICENSES RECORDED AT JUNE 3
2009, AND ASSUMING NO SUBSEQUENT IMPAIRMENT OF THE UNDERLYING ASSETS, THE ANNUABMORTIZATION EXPENSE FOR EACH FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30 IS EXPECTED 1
be as follows: $11,867 for2010, $0 for all years thereafter.

Other Assets

OTHERASSETS, WHICH INCLUDE DEFERRED CHARGES AND PATENTS, ARE STATED AT COST, RESSMULATED AMORTIZATION. AMORTIZATION OF PATENTS IS COMPUTED USINGthe
STRAIGHT-LINE METHOD OVER THE ESTIMATED ECONOMIC USEFUL LIVES OF THESETS. THE COMPANY PERIODICALLY REVIEWS THE CARRYING VALUES (BATENTS AND ANY
impairments are recognized when the expected future operating cash flows to be derived from such assets are less than their carrying value.

Based on THE PATENTS AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS RECORDED IN OTHER ASSETS AT JUNE2ZIM9, AND ASSUMING NO SUBSEQUENT IMPAIRMENT OF THE UNDERLYING ASSETS
THE ANNUAIAMORTIZATION EXPENSE FOR EACH FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30 IS EXPECTED TO BE AsOLLOWS: $16,861 For 2010, $15,139 ror 2011, $15,139 ror 20]
$15,139 for2013,$15,139 for2014, and $157,768 thereafter.

Asset Retirement Obligation

THE FAIRVALUE OF THE FUTURE RETIREMENT COSTS OF THE COMPANY’S LEASED ASSETS ARE RECORBEDLIABILITY ON A DISCOUNTED BASIS WHEN THEY ARE INCURRED AND
equivalent AMOUNT IS CAPITALIZED TO PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT. THE INITIAL RECORDE®BLIGATION IS DISCOUNTED USING THE COMPANY’S CREDIT-ADJUSTED RISK FREE-RA
and IS REVIEWED PERIODICALLY FOR CHANGES IN THE ESTIMATED FUTURE COSTS UNDERLYINGE OBLIGATION. THE COMPANY AMORTIZES THE INITIAL AMOUNT CAPITALIZEI1O
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND RECOGNIZES ACCRETION EXPENSE IN CONNECTION WITHTHE DISCOUNTED LIABILITY OVER THE ESTIMATED REMAINING USEFUL LIFE OF THE LE#
assets.

IN FiscALYEAR 2006, THE COMPANY ESTABLISHED AN INITIAL ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION $63,040 WHICH REPRESENTED THE DISCOUNTED COST OF CLEANUP THAT 1
Company ANTICIPATED IT WOULD HAVE TO INCUR AT THE END OF ITS EQUIPMENT AND PROPERTIYEASES IN ITS OLD PRODUCTION FACILITY. THIS AMOUNT WAS DETERMINEbased
ON DISCUSSIONS WITH QUALIFIED PRODUCTION PERSONNEL AND ON HISTORICAEVIDENCE. DURING FISCAL YEAR 2007, THE COMPANY REEVALUATED ITSBLIGATIONS BASED ON
DISCUSSIONS WITH THE WASHINGTON DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH ANDETERMINED THAT THE INITIAL ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION SHOULD BE INCREASED ABY ADDITIONA
$56,120. DURING THE SECOND QUARTER OF FISCAL YEAR 2008iE COMPANY REMOVED ALL RADIOACTIVE RESIDUALS AND TENANT IMPROVEMENTS FROM KISD PRODUCTIOM
facility and returned the facility to the lessor. The Company had an asset retirement obligation of $135,120 accrued for this facility but total costs incurred to
DECOMMISSION THE FACILITY WERE $274,163 RESULTING INAN ADDITIONAL EXPENSE OF $139,043 THAT IS INCLUDED IN COST OF PRODUCB®LD. THE ADDITIONAL EXPENSI
WAS MAINLY DUE TO UNANTICIPATED CONSTRUCTION COSTS TO RETURN THE FACILITY TO ITS PREVIOUS STATE. (’BMPANY ORIGINALLY BELIEVED THAT THE LESSOR WOULD RET;
many of the leasehold improvements in the building, but the lessor instead required their removal.
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IN SEPTEMBER 2007, ANOTHER ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION OF $473,096 WAS ESTABLISHRPPRESENTING THE DISCOUNTED COST OF THE COMPANY’S ESTIMATE OF TI
OBLIGATIONS TOREMOVE ANY RESIDUAL RADIOACTIVE MATERIALS AND ALL LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS AT ENHE OF THE LEASE TERM AT ITS NEW PRODUCTION FACILITY. T
ESTIMATE WAS DEVELOPED BY QUALIFIED PRODUCTION PERSONNEL AND THE GENERAL CONTRACTORTBE NEW FACILITY. THE COMPANY HAS REVIEWED THE ESTIMATE AGAI
based on its experience with decommissioning its old facility and believes that the original estimate continues to be applicable.

During the years ended June 30,2009 and 2008, the asset retirement obligations changed as follows:

2009 2008
Beginning balance $ 506,005 $ 131,142
New obligation - 473,096
Settlement of existing obligation - (135,120)
Accretion of discount 47,466 36,887
Ending balance $§ 553471 $§ 506,005

Because THE COMPANY DOES NOT EXPECT TO INCUR ANY EXPENSES RELATED TO ITS ASSRETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS IN FISCAL YEAR 2010, THE ENTIRE BALANCE AS OF JUNE
20009 is classified as a noncurrent liability.

Financial Instruments
The COMPANY DISCLOSES THE FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, BOTH ASSETS ANDABILITIES, RECOGNIZED AND NOT RECOGNIZED IN THE BALANCE SHEET, FOR WHICH I
PRACTICABLE TO ESTIMATE THE FAIR VALUE. THE FAIR VALUE OF A FINANANSTRUMENT IS THE AMOUNT AT WHICH THE INSTRUMENT COULD BE EXCHANGED IN A CURR

transaction between willing parties, other than a forced liquidation sale.

THE CARRYING AMOUNTS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, INCLUDING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENSBORT-TERM INVESTMENTS, ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, NO'
payable, and capital lease obligations, approximated their fair values at June 30,2009 and 2008.

Revenue Recognition

THE CoMPANY APPLIES THE PROVISIONS OF SEC STAFF AccoUNTING BULLETIN (SAB)No. 104, Revenue Recognition. SAB No. 104 PROVIDES GUIDANCE ON THE
recognition, PRESENTATION AND DISCLOSURE OF REVENUE IN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. SABo0. 104 OUTLINES THE BASIC CRITERIA THAT MUST BE MET TO RECOGNIZE REVE}
AND PROVIDES GUIDANCE FOR THE DISCLOSURE OF REVENUE RECOGNITIROLICIES. THE COMPANY RECOGNIZES REVENUE RELATED TO PRODUCT SALEWHEN (I) PERSUASIVE
evidence of an arrangement exists, (ii) shipment has occurred, (iii) the fee is fixed or determinable, and (iv) collectability is reasonably assured.

Revenue FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 AND 2008 WAS DERIVED SOLELY FROM SADESTHE PROXCELAN Cs-131 BRACHYTHERAPY SEED, WHICH IS USED IN T
TREATMENT OEANCER. THE COMPANY RECOGNIZES REVENUE ONCE THE PRODUCT HAS BEENSHIPPED TO THE CUSTOMER. PREPAYMENTS, IF ANY, RECEIVED FROM CUSTOMER
PRIOR TO THE TIME THAT PRODUCTS ARE SHIPPED ARE RECORDED AS DEFERRED REVENUETHKESE CASES, WHEN THE RELATED PRODUCTS ARE SHIPPED, THE AMOUNT RECORDEL
deferred revenue is then recognized as revenue. The Company accrues for sales returns and other allowances at the time of SHIPMENT. ALTHOUGH THE COMPANY
does not have an extensive operating HISTORY UPON WHICH TO DEVELOP SALES RETURNS ESTIMATES, WE HAVE USED THKPERTISE OF OUR MANAGEMENT TEAM, PARTICULARI
those with extensive industry experience and knowledge, to develop a proper methodology.
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Stock-Based Compensation

The COMPANY MEASURES AND RECOGNIZES EXPENSE FOR ALL SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS AT FAIRALUE. THE COMPANY USES THE BLACK-SCHOLES OPTION VALUATION MODEL 1T
ESTIMATE FAIR VALUE FOR ALL STOCK OPTIONS ON THE DATE OF GRANT. STORK OPTIONS THAT VEST OVER TIME, THE COMPANY RECOGNIZES COMPENSATION COST ON Atraight-
line basis over the requisite service period for the entire award.

Research and Development Costs

RESEARCHAND DEVELOPMENT COSTS, INCLUDING SALARIES, RESEARCH MATERIALS, ADMINISTRATBRPENSES AND CONTRACTOR FEES, ARE CHARGED TO OPERATIONS
incurred. The cost of equipment used in research and development ACTIVITIES WHICH HAS ALTERNATIVE USES IS CAPITALIZED AS PART OF FIXED ASSETS ANDT TREATED /
AN EXPENSE IN THE PERIOD ACQUIRED. DEPRECIATION OFCAPITALIZED EQUIPMENT USED TO PERFORM RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT IS CLASSIFIED ARESEARCH AN
development expense in the year recognized.

Legal Contingencies

IN THEORDINARY COURSE OF BUSINESS, THE COMPANY IS INVOLVED IN LEGAL PROCEEDINGINVOLVING CONTRACTUAL AND EMPLOYMENT RELATIONSHIPS, PRODUCT LIABIL
claims, PATENT RIGHTS, ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS, AND A VARIETY OF OTNBRTERS. THE COMPANY IS ALSO SUBJECT TO VARIOUS LOCAL, STATE, ANBDERAL ENVIRONMENTA
REGULATIONS AND LAWS DUE TO THE ISOTOPES USED TO PRODUGEE COMPANY’S PRODUCT. AS PART OF NORMAL OPERATIONS, AMOUNTS AREXPENDED TO ENSURE THAT TH
COMPANY IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THESE LAWS AND REGULATIONS. WHILE THERE HAVE BEEN NO REPORTABLE INCIDENTS ORMPLIANCE ISSUES, THE COMPANY BELIEVES THAT
IF IT RELOCATES ITS CURRENRODUCTION FACILITIES THEN CERTAIN DECOMMISSIONING EXPENSES WILL BE INCURRED ANDHAS RECORDED AN ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION

these expenses.

The COMPANY RECORDS CONTINGENT LIABILITIES RESULTING FROM ASSERTED AND UNASSERKHIAIMS AGAINST IT, WHEN IT IS PROBABLE THAT A LIABILITY HAS BEEN INCURRED A
THE AMOUNT OF THE LOSS IS REASONABLY ESTIMABLE. ESTIMATING PROBABIIOSSES REQUIRES ANALYSIS OF MULTIPLE FACTORS, IN SOME CASES INCLUDING JUDGMENTSBOUT THI
POTENTIAL ACTIONS OF THIRD-PARTY CLAIMANTS ANDURTS. THEREFORE, ACTUAL LOSSES IN ANY FUTURE PERIOD ARE INHERENNQERTAIN. CURRENTLY, THE COMPANY DOES NC
BELIEVE ANY PROBABLE LEGAIPROCEEDINGS OR CLAIMS WILL HAVE A MATERIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON ITS FINANCPOBITION OR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS. HOWEVER, IF ACTUAL
ESTIMATED PROBABLE FUTURE LOSSES EXCEED THE COMPANY’S RECORDED LIABILITY FOR SUCH CLAINS,WOULD RECORD ADDITIONAL CHARGES AS OTHER EXPENSE DURING

period in which the actual loss or change in estimate occurred.

Income Taxes

Income TAXES ARE ACCOUNTED FOR UNDER THE LIABILITY METHOD. UNDER NESHOD, THE COMPANY PROVIDES DEFERRED INCOME TAXES FOR TEMPORARY DIFFERENCHhat
WILL RESULT IN TAXABLE OR DEDUCTIBLE AMOUNTS IN FUTURE YEARS BASED ONRBPBRTING OF CERTAIN COSTS IN DIFFERENT PERIODS FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENT ANDOME TAX
PURPOSES. THIS METHOD ALSO REQUIRES THE RECOGNITION OFUTURE TAX BENEFITS SUCH AS NET OPERATING LOSS CARRYFORWARDS, TO THE EXTENREAIAEZATION OF SUC
BENEFITS IS MORE LIKELY THAN NOT. DEFERRED TAYSSETS AND LIABILITIES ARE MEASURED USING ENACTED TAX RATES EXPECTED TO APPLYTRXABLE INCOME IN THE YEARS It
WHICH THOSE TEMPORARY DIFFERENCES ARE EXPECTED TEE RECOVERED OR SETTLED. THE EFFECT ON DEFERRED TAX ASSETS IANBILITIES OF A CHANGE IN TAX RATES
recognized in operations in the period that includes the enactment of the change.

ON Jury 1, 2007, THE COMPANY ADOPTED FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD INTERPRETATINO. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes (FIN No.
48). FIN No. 48 CLARIFIESTHE ACCOUNTING FOR UNCERTAINTY IN INCOME TAXES RECOGNIZED IN ACCORDANCE WISFAS No. 109 Accounting for Income Taxes,
PRESCRIBING A RECOGNITION THRESHOLD AND MEASUREMENATTRIBUTE FOR THE RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT OF A TAX POSITION TAKENE®RECTED TO BE TAKEN IN A TA:
RETURN. IN THE COURSE OF IBSSESSMENT, MANAGEMENT HAS DETERMINED THAT THE COMPANY, ITS SUBSIDIARY, AND ITBREDECESSORS ARE SUBJECT TO EXAMINATION OF THE
income tax filings in the United States and state jurisdictions for the 2005 through 2008 tax YEARS. IN THE EVENT THAT THE COMPANY IS ASSESSED PENALTIES AND
interest, penalties will be charged to other operating expense and interest will be charged to interest expense.
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The CompaNy ADOPTED FIN No. 48 USING THE MODIFIED PROSPECTIVE TRANSITION METHOD, WHICH REQUIRES THE APPLICATION OF THE ACCOUNTING STANDARD AS OF JULY
2007. THERE WAS NO IMPACT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FARIE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 AS A RESULT OF THE ADOPTION OF FIN N&8. IN ACCORDANCI
WITH THE MODIFIED PROSPECTIVE TRANSITION METHOD,THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR PRIOR PERIODS HAVE NOT BEEN RESTATED TO REFLARD,DO NOT INCLUDE, THE IMPACT O
FIN No. 48.

Income (Loss) Per Common Share

Basic EARNINGS PER SHARE IS CALCULATED BY DIVIDING NET INCOME (LOSS) AVAILABLE K®MMON SHAREHOLDERS BY THE WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF COMMON SHARE
OUTSTANDING,AND DOES NOT INCLUDE THE IMPACT OF ANY POTENTIALLY DILUTIVE COMMON STOCKQUIVALENTS. COMMON STOCK EQUIVALENTS, INCLUDING WARRANTS Al
OPTIONS TO PURCHASE THE COMPANY'S COMMON STOCK, ARE EXCLUDED FROM THE CALCULATIONS WHEMIEIR EFFECT IS ANTIDILUTIVE. AT JUNE 30, 2009 anDp 2008, T
CALCULATION OF DILUTED WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES DOES NOT INCLUDE PREFERRED STOOKMMON STOCK WARRANTS OR OPTIONS THAT ARE POTENTIALLY CONVERTIBLE
common stock as those would be antidilutive due to the Company’s net loss position.

Securities that could be dilutive in the future as of June 30,2009 and 2008 are as follows:

2009 2008
Preferred stock 59,065 59,065
Common stock warrants 3,216,644 3,245,082
Common stock options 2,708,166 2,803,393
Total potential dilutive securities 5,983,875 6,107,540

Subsequent Events

Effective ApriL 1, 2009, THE CompaNY ADOPTED SFAS No. 165, Subsequent Events. THIS STATEMENT ESTABLISHES THE ACCOUNTING FOR, ANDISCLOSURE OF, MATERIA
EVENTS THAT OCCUR AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE, BEFDRE THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE ISSUED. IN GENERAL, THESE EVEWISL BE RECOGNIZED IF THE CONDITIO!
EXISTED AT THE DATE OF THE BALANCE SHEEAND WILL NOT BE RECOGNIZED IF THE CONDITION DID NOT EXIST AT THE BALANCE SHHEIATE. DISCLOSURE 18 REQUIRED F(
NONRECOGNIZED EVENTS IF REQUIRED T®EEP THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FROM BEING MISLEADING. THE GUIDANCE INTHIS STATEMENT IS VERY SIMILAR TO CURRENT GUIDAN
PROVIDED IN ACCOUNTING LITERATURE AND, THEREFORE, WILL NOT RESULT IN SIGNIFICANT CHANGEBRAKTICE. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS HAVE BEEN EVALUATED THROUGH THE D
our financial statements were issued—the filing time and date of our 2009 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Use of Estimates
The PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLIEENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA REQUIRES MANAGEMENT

the COMPANY TO MAKE ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS THAT AFFECT THE AMOUNTS REPORTED IRHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOMPANYING NOTES. ACCORDINGLY, ACTU
results could differ from those estimates and affect the amounts reported in the financial statements.

Results of Operations

Financial Presentation

The FOLLOWING SETS FORTH A DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF THE COMPANY’S FINANCIADNDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE TWO YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 .,
2008. THIS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS SHOULD BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITHOUR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS APPEARING ELSEWHERE IN THIS ANNUAL REPoxm
Form 10-K. THE FOLLOWING DISCUSSION CONTAINS FORWARD-LOOKINSTATEMENTS. OUR ACTUAL RESULTS MAY DIFFER SIGNIFICANTLY FROM RHSULTS DISCUSSED IN SUCE
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. FACTORS THXIULD CAUSE OR CONTRIBUTE TO SUCH DIFFERENCES INCLUDE, BUT ARE NOT LIMITEDTH®SE DISCUSSED IN “ITEM 1A — Risk
Factors,” beginning on page 24 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Year ended June 30,2009 compared to year ended June 30. 2008

Product sales. SALES FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 were $5,417,8 I®OMPARED TO SALES OF $7,158,690 FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008. T
DECREASE OF $1,740,875 OR 24% WAS MAINLY DUE TO DECREASED SALES VOLUME OF TOMPANY’S PROXCELAN Cs-131 BRACHYTHERAPY SEEDS ALONG WITH ¢
increased PERCENTAGE OF LOOSE SEED SALES AS COMPARED TO STRANDED AND A LOWER AVERBGIOICE PRICE DUE TO PHYSICIANS USING LESS SEEDS. LOOSE SEEDS
(INCLUDING SEEDS LOADED IN MICK CARTRIDGES) SELL AT A LOWER PRICE THAN STRANDED TO THE ADDITIONAL PROCESSING TIME AND EXPENSE REQUIRED F(
stranded SEEDS. ABOUT 3% OF THE DECREASE IS DUE TO PHYSICIANS ORDERING LESSEEDS PER IMPLANT AS THEY HAVE BECOME MORE EFFICIENT WITH USE OF TH
ISOTOPE AND ITS CHARACTERISTICS. THE COMPANY WILL NEED TO INCREASE THE NUMBER O®TAL IMPLANTS TO INCREASE SALES. MANAGEMENT BELIEVES THAT O
TREATMENT OPTIONS WITH HIGHER REIMBURSEMENT RATES, SUCH AS IMRT, PUT PRESSURE ORROXCELAN Cs-131 SEED SALES AS WELL AS OTHER BRACHYTHERAPY
SALES. DURING THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 THE CoMPANY SOLD 1T€s-131 SEEDS TO 72 DIFFERENT MEDICAL CENTERS AS COMPARED TO 99 CENTERS DURIKtE
fiscal year ended June 30,2008.

Cost of product sales. Cost oF PRODUCT SALES WERE $5,771,147 FOR THE YEBRDED JUNE 30, 2009 WHICH REPRESENTS A DECREASE OF $1,538,977 or 21"
compared to cost of product sales of $7,310,124 for the year ended June 30,2008. Materials expense decreased approximately $631,000 mainly due
TO ORDERING AND USING LESS ISOTOPE IN THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 COMPARED TOHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008. PERSONNEL EXPENSES, INCLUDIN
PAYROLL,BENEFITS, AND RELATED TAXES, DECREASED APPROXIMATELY $603,000 DUE TO A REDUCTIDNTHE AVERAGE PRODUCTION HEADCOUNT LEVELS. PRELC
EXPENSES DECREASED APPROXIMATELY $378,000 DUE TO LOWER SALES VOLUMES AND DUE TO INCREASBDHOUSE LOADING. SMALL TOOLS EXPENSES DECREASE
APPROXIMATELY $90,000 MAINLY DUE TO EXPENSING ITEMS IN THE PRIOR YEAR THAT WERE PART OEQUIPPING THE NEW FACILITY THAT BECAME OPERATIONAL Tt
September 2007. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION DECREASED APPROXIMATELY $92,000 MAINLY DUE TO THE FORFEITURE OF UNVESTED OPTIONS BY THE COMPANY
former EVP-Operations.

THESE DECREASES WERE OFFSET BY AN IMPAIRMENT OF THE COMPANY’S IBT LICENSE FOR $425434HAT WAS RECORDED IN DECEMBER 2008. MANAGEMEN
COMPLETED ITS REVIEWOF THE LICENSE AND ASSOCIATED TECHNOLOGY RELATED TO THIS ALTERNATIVE BBEIAPSULATION PROCESS IN DECEMBER 2008 AND
DETERMINED THAT THE ADOPTION OF THIEROCESS WOULD ENTAIL AN OVERHAUL OF THE COMPANY’S EXISTING MANUFACTURINGROCEDURES. IN ADDITION, THERE IS Nt
assurance that physicians would accept this new technology without extensive education and marketing. As there are no anticipated future revenues
from the license and the Company cannot sell or transfer the license, its entire value was written off in the accompanying financial statements.

During THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008, THE COMPANY REMOVED ALL RADIOACTIVE RESIDUALS ARBNANT IMPROVEMENTS FROM ITS OLD PRODUCTION FACILITY A}
RETURNED THE FACILITFO THE LESSOR. THE COMPANY HAD AN ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION $%35,120 ACCRUED FOR THIS FACILITY BUT TOTAL COSTS INCURRE
decommission the FACILITY WERE $274,163 RESULTING IN AN ADDITIONAL EXPENSE OF $139,043 THATINCLUDED IN COST OF PRODUCTS SOLD FOR THE YEAR ENC
Jung 30,2008. THIS ADDITIONAL EXPENSE INCURRED IN THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 302008 WAS MAINLY DUE TO UNANTICIPATED CONSTRUCTION COSTS TO RETURN '
facility To 1Ts PREVIOUS STATE. THE COMPANY ORIGINALLY BELIEVED THAT THEESSOR WOULD RETAIN MANY OF THE LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS IN THE BUILDING, B
instead required their removal.

Gross loss. GrRosSLOSS WAS $353,332 FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009. THIS REPRESENESN INCREASE OF $201,898 or 133% OVER THE PRIOR YEAR’S GR
loss 0f $151,434. INCLUDED IN THE GROSS LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009THE ONE-TIME IBT LICENSE IMPAIRMENT LOSS OF $425,434. WITHOUT THI
ONE-TIME EXPENSE, THE COMPANY WOULD HAVE RECOGNIZED A GROSS MARGIN OF $72,102FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009. INCLUDED IN THE GROSS LOSS
THEYEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 IS THE ONE-TIME DECOMMISSIONING EXPENSE OF $139,043. WITHOUT THIS ONE-TIME EXPENSE, THE COMPANY WOULD HAVE
recognized a gross loss of $12,391 for the year ended June 30, 2008.
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Research and development expenses. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR ENDEBUNE 30, 2009 WerRe $958,665 WHICH REPRESENTS .
DECREASE OF $399.410 orR 29% LESSHAN THE RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES OF $1,358,075 FOR THE YEAR ENDED Ju3@®, 2008. THE MAJOR
COMPONENTS OF THE DECREASE WERE PERSONNEIGONSULTING, AND TRAVEL EXPENSES. PERSONNEL EXPENSES, INCLUDINGAYROLL, BENEFITS, AND RELATED TAX
DECREASED APPROXIMATELY $172,000 DUE TOLOWER HEADCOUNT. CONSULTING EXPENSES DECREASED APPROXIMATELY $455,00@s THE COMPANY’S PROJECT TC
IMPROVE THE EFFICIENCY OF ISOTOPE PRODUCTION IS CURRENTLY PROGRESSING SLOWLY AND THE COMPANY HAS DISCONTINUED MOST FUNDING UNTIHE FINA
PROTOTYPE TESTING TRIAL. TRAVEL EXPENSES DECREASEPPROXIMATELY $44,000 DUE TO LESS INTERNATIONAL TRAVEL THAN OCCURRED IN PRIGR YEAR. THESI
DECREASES WERE PARTIALLY OFFSET BY AN INCREASE PROTOCOL EXPENSES OF APPROXIMATELY $217,000 MAINLY DUE TO THE COMPANY’S DUAL-THERAPY STUDY AN
ITS CONTINUED MONITORING AND UPDATING OF THE MONO-THERAPYSTUDY. ALSO IN THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009, THE COMPANY FINALIZEDTS ON-GOING
STRATEGY REGARDING FOREIGN PATENTS AND TRADEMARKS AND WROTES8BES 18 OF PREVIOUSLY CAPITALIZED COSTS. THE COMPANY HAD PURSUED PROSECUTION OF
THESE PATENTS AND TRADEMARKS IN VARIOUS FOREIGN COUNTRIBSCLUDING AUSTRALIA, JAPAN, AND CHINA; HOWEVER, THE COMPANY NO LONGER BELIEVEthat
pursuing patents and trademarks in these foreign countries is fundamental to its business strategy.

Sales and marketing expenses. SALES AND MARKETING EXPENSES WERE $2,365,973 For THEEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009. THIS REPRESENTS A DECREASE 1
$1,359,191 or 36% COMPARED TO THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 WHEN SALES AND MARKETING EXPENSEWERE $3,725,164. PERSONNEL EXPENSES, INCLUDIN(
payroll, benefits, and RELATED TAXES, DECREASED APPROXIMATELY $603,000 DUE TO A LOWER SALES HEADCOBEND LOWER COMMISSIONS DUE TO LOWER REVENUE
AND A REVISED SALES COMPENSATIONPLAN THAT WAS ORIGINALLY INTRODUCED IN APRIL 2008 AND SUBSEQUENTLY AMENDED ®CTOBER 2008. TRAVEL EXPENSE
also decreased approximately $148,000 DUE TO THE DECREASE IN AVERAGE HEADCOUNT. CONSULTING EXPENSESECREASED APPROXIMATELY $214,000, MAINLY
due to reduced reliance on THIRD-PARTIES AS PART OF THE COMPANY’S EXPENSE REDUCTIONINITIATIVES. MARKETING AND ADVERTISING DECREASED APPROXIMATEIL
$179,000 AS DURING THE PRIOR YEAR THE COMPANY UPDATED ITS MARKETING LITERATURE INCORPORATE NEW DATA PUBLISHED FROM THE PROTOCOLS, DEVELOP
additional WEBSITES FOR PATIENTS AND DOCTORS, AND UPDATED ITS SALB®OTH. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION DECREASED APPROXIMATELY $90,000 DUETO THI
forfeiture of unvested options.

General and administrative expenses. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES FOR THE YE&ARDED JUNE 30, 2009 WeRE $2,792,611 COMPARED TO GENERA
AND ADMINISTRATIVEEXPENSES OF $3,568,048 FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008. THE DECREAS®F $775,437 OR 22% IS PRIMARILY DUE TO DECREASES I
personnel costs, public COMPANY EXPENSES, SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION, LEGAL EXPENSES, AND TRAVEL EXPENSESPARTIALLY OFFSET BY INCREASES IN CONSULTIN
and bad debt ALLOWANCE. PERSONNEL COSTS DECREASED APPROXIMATELY $452,000 MAINIDUE TO THE RESIGNATION OF THE CoMPANY’s CEO IN FEBRUARY 200
AND LOWERHEADCOUNTS. THE CoMPANY’S NEW CEO WAS A CONSULTANT FROM MARCH 2008HROUGH FEBRUARY 2009 AND BECAME AN EMPLOYEE IN MARC
2009. PUBLIC COMPANY EXPENSES DECREASED APPROXIMATELY $124,000 DUE TO LOWER INVESTORRELATIONS COSTS PARTIALLY OFFSET BY INCREASED BO.
COMPENSATION. LEGAL EXPENSES DECREASED BY APPROXIMATELY $211,000 AsIN THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 THE COMPANY INCURRED LEGAL FEES F
contract DRAFTING AND REVIEW OF THE COMPANY’S INTEREST IN URALDIAL, THE IBT STRATGGOBAL ALLIANCE AGREEMENTS, SETTLEMENT AGREEMENTS WITH FO
OFFICERS ANDDIRECTORS, AND FOR MEDIATION COSTS. THESE DECREASED LEGAL COSTS WERRTIALLY OFFSET BY LEGAL FEES INCURRED IN SETTLING A LAWSUIT W
former EMPLOYEE. TRAVEL EXPENSES ALSO DECREASED APPROXIMATELY$65,000. THESE DECREASES WERE PARTIALLY OFFSET BY INCREASED EXPENRELATED TO BA
DEBT ALLOWANCE OF APPROXIMATELY $54,000 AND INCREASED CONSULTINEXPENSES OF APPROXIMATELY $100,000 MAINLY DUE TO COMPENSATION PAID TO THE
Company’s interim CEO and the costs of the Company’s ISO 13458 and CE mark audit that was conducted in July 2008.
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Operating loss. THE COMPANY CONTINUES TO FOCUS ITS RESOURCES ON IMPROVING SALES WHILE RETAINING THEECESSARY ADMINISTRATIVE INFRASTRUCTURE
increase the level of demand for the Company’s product. These objectives and resulting costs have resulted IN OPERATING LOSSES SINCE THE COMPANY’S
inception. Forthe year ended June 30,2009, THE COMPANY HAD AN OPERATING LOSS OF $6,470,581 wHICH 1s ADECREASE OF $2,332,140 or 26% BELOW Tt
operating loss of $8,802,721 for the year ended June 30, 2008.

Interest income. INTEREST INCOME WAS $111,047 FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNEO, 2009 COMPARED TO INTEREST INCOME OF $612,077 FOR THE YEAR ENDED JU!
30,2008. INTEREST AND INVESTMENT INCOME IS MAINLY DERIVED FROM EXCESSFUNDS HELD IN MONEY MARKET AND INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS. THE DECREASE
$501,030 oRrR 82% WAS DUE TO THE LOWER AVERAGE CASH AND SHORT-TERM INVESTMBNTANCES DURING THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 AND DECREASED INTER
rates.

Gain (loss) on the fair value of short-term investments. THE GAIN oF $274,000 FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 IS DUE TO THE RECEIPT OF T
Company’s rights RELATED TO ITS AUCTION RATE SECURITIES (ARS) ISSUED BY ITS BROKER IN OcTORBEOS. THE GAIN IS CALCULATED AS THE FAIR VALUE AMOUNT
the put rights as estimated on the date of receipt plus the changes in their fair value offset by additional realized losses on the Company’s ARS.

Financing and interest expense. FINANCING AND INTEREST EXPENSE FOR THE YEAR ENDEJUNE 30, 2009 was $75,307 or A DECREASE OF $17,556 or 19¢
COMPARED TO FINANCING EXPENSE OF $92,863 FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008. INCLUDED ININANCING EXPENSE IS INTEREST EXPENSE OF APPROXIMATELY
$38,000 AND $62,000 FORTHE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 AND 2008, RESPECTIVELY. THE DECREASE ISUE TO THE LOWER AVERAGE DEBT BALANCES IN THE Y
ended June 30,2009. The remaining balance of financing expense represents the amortization of deferred financing costs.

Liquidity and capital resources. WE HAVE HISTORICALLY FINANCED OUR OPERATIONBHROUGH THE SALE OF COMMON STOCK AND RELATED WARRANTS. DURING Figwear
2009, the Company primarily used existing cash reserves to fund its operations and capital expenditures.

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash used IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES WAS APPROXIMATELY $3.9 MILLION IN FISCAL YEAR 2009COMPARED TO APPROXIMATELY $7.7 MILLION IN FISCAL YEAR 2008, A DECREAS
of approximately $3.8 million. Cash used by operating activities is net loss adjusted for non-cash items and changes in operating assets and liabilities.

Cash flows from investing activities

CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES WAS APPROXIMATELY $2.2 MILLION AND $2.5 MILLION FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 aND 2008, RESPECTIVELY. CA
EXPENDITURES FOR FIXED ASSETS WERE APPROXIMATELY $58,000 IN FiscAL YEAR 2009 AMPPROXIMATELY $3.1 MILLION IN FISCAL YEAR 2008 (DUE TO COMPLETING OU
current PRODUCTION FACILITY). THE COMPANY SOLD ITS REMAINING AUCTION RATBECURITIES IN JANUARY 2009 wWHICH GENERATED $4.0 MILLION OF CASPROCEEDS. THE
COMPANY REINVESTED MOST OF THESE PROCEEDS IN MONEY MARKET FUNDS AND CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT WITH MATURITIES OF LESS THAN 3 MONTWEICH ARE CLASSIFIED A
cash equivalents on the balance sheet.

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash used in financing activities was approximately $102,000 for the year ended June 30,2009 and was used mainly for payments of debt and capital leases.
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Projected 2010 Liquidity and Capital Resources

At JUuNE30, 2009, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AMOUNTED TO $2,990,744 AND SHORT-TERNVESTMENTS AMOUNTED TO $1,679,820 coMPARED TO $4,820,033 OF cAS
and cash equivalents and $3,726,000 of short-term investments at June 30, 2008.

Tue COMPANY HAD APPROXIMATELY $3.3 MILLION OF CASH AND $960,000 OF SHORT-TERMNVESTMENTS AS OF SEPTEMBER 14, 2009. AS OF THAT DATE MANAGEMEN
BELIEVED THAT THE COMPANY’S MONTHLY REQUIRED CASH OPERATING EXPENDITURES WEREPPROXIMATELY $350,000 WHICH REPRESENTS A SIGNIFICANT DECREASE C
APPROXIMATELY $150,000 T0o $200,000 FROM AVERAGE MONTHLY EXPENSES IN FISCAL YEAROO8. MANAGEMENT BELIEVES THAT LESS THAN $100,000 WILL BE SPENT
capital expenditures for the entire fiscal year 2010, but there is no assurance that unanticipated needs for capital equipment may not arise.

The CompaNy’s LOAN WITH BFEDD MATURES IN FISCAL YEAR 2010 AND WILL BE PAID IN FULBY THE END OF THE SECOND QUARTER. THE BALANCE OF THE LOAN AT JUNE
2009 was $115,898 and is included in current liabilities.

IF THECOMPANY IS ABLE TO COMPLETE ITS MAJOR RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT PROJECT TDEVELOP A PROPRIETARY SEPARATION PROCESS TO MANUFACTURE ENRICHED BARIU
THIS PROCESS SHOULD IMPROVE ISOTOPE PRODUCTION EFFICIENCY DURING FISCAL YEAR010. THE COMPANY WILL OWE AN ADDITIONAL $56,610 TO THE CONTRACTORON
COMPLETION OF A SUCCESSFUL DEMONSTRATION OF THE ENRICHMENAROCESS. ONCE A SUCCESSFUL DEMONSTRATION OF THE ENRICHMENT PROCES$AS OCCURRED, THE COMPANY
WILL HAVE TO DECIDE IF THE SMALLER TEST MODEL WRRODUCE SUFFICIENT QUANTITIES OF ENRICHED BARIUM OR IF AN ADDITIONAL INVESTMENFE $100,000 To $150,000 wiL
be required to build a larger production model.

During riscaL YEAR 2010, THE COMPANY INTENDS TO CONTINUE ITS EXISTING PROTOCOL STUDIB$ID BEGIN NEW PROTOCOL STUDIES ON LUNG CANCER TREATMENT USINGs-
131. CurrReNTLY, THE COMPANY HAS BUDGETED APPROXIMATELY $220,000 INFISCAL YEAR 2010 FOR PROTOCOL EXPENSES RELATING TO LUNG CANCER AS WEontinued
work on the dual therapy and mono therapy prostate protocols.

Assuming operating costs expand proportionately with revenue increases, we continue pursuing other applications for seed usage outside the prostate market,
PROTOCOLS ARE CONTINUED SUPPORTING THE INTEGRITY OF OUR PRODUCT AND SALES AMIRKETING EXPENSES REMAIN STEADY, MANAGEMENT BELIEVES THE COMPANY WILI
reach breakeven with revenues of approximately $1.0 million per month.

Based on THE FOREGOING ASSUMPTIONS, MANAGEMENT BELIEVES CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, ANSHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS ON HAND AT JUNE 30, 2009 WILL BE SUFFICIENT
MEET OUR ANTICIPATED CASH REQUIREMENTS FOR OPERATIONS, DEBT SERVICE, AND CAPITEXPENDITURE REQUIREMENTS THROUGH AT LEAST THE NEXT TWI
MONTHS. MANAGEMENT’S PLANS TO ATTAIN BREAKEVEN AND GENERARPDITIONAL CASH FLOWS INCLUDE INCREASING REVENUES FROM BOTH NEW AND EXISTIN@Stomers
(THROUGH OUR DIRECT SALES CHANNELS AND THROUGH OUR DISTRIBUTGRS)ANDING INTO OTHER MARKET APPLICATIONS WHICH INITIALLY WILL INCLUDE HEAD ANBDECK AND
LUNG, AND MAINTAINING COST CONTROL. HOWEVER, THERE CAN BE MISURANCE THAT THE COMPANY WILL ATTAIN PROFITABILITY OR THAT THE COMPANY WILIABEE TO ATTAI
ITS REVENUE TARGETS. IF WE DO NOT EXPERIENCE THEECESSARY INCREASES IN SALES OR IF WE EXPERIENCE UNFORESEEN MANUFACTURINIONSTRAINTS, WE MAY NEED TO OBTAT
additional funding.

THE COMPANY EXPECTS TO FINANCE ITS FUTURE CASH NEEDS THROUGH SOLICITATION OF WARRAMNILDERS TO EXERCISE THEIR WARRANTS, THE SALE OF EQUITY SECURITIES
POSSIBLY STRATEGIC COLLABORATIONS OR DEBT FINANCING OR THROUGH OTHER SOURCES THAT MADTBETIVE TO EXISTING SHAREHOLDERS. IF THE COMPANY NEEDS TO RA
ADDITIONAL MONEY TO FUND ITS OPERATIONS, FUNDING MAY NOT BE AVAILABLE TO IT ONCCEPTABLE TERMS, OR AT ALL. IF THE COMPANY IS UNABLE TO RAISE ADDITIONAL FU
WHEN NEEDED, IT MAY NOT BE ABLE TO MARKET ITS PRODUCTS AS PLANNED OR CONTINDEVELOPMENT AND REGULATORY APPROVAL OF ITS FUTURE PRODUCTS. IF @mmpany
raises additional funds through warrant exercises or equity sales, these sales may be dilutive to existing investors.
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Long-Term Debt and Capital Lease Agreements

The COMPANY HAS TWO LOAN FACILITIES IN PLACE As OF JUNE 30,2009. THFIRST LOAN IS FROM THE BENTON-FRANKLIN Economic DEVELOPMENT DisTricT (BFEDD)an
ORIGINAL PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $230,000 AND wAS FUNDED IN DECEMBER2004. IT BEARS INTEREST AT EIGHT PERCENT AND HAS A FINAL BALLRIOMENT DUE IN OCTOBER
2009, wHicH THE COMPANY INTENDS TO PAY IN FULL AT THATIME. As OF JUNE 30,2009, THE PRINCIPAL BALANCE OWED WAS$115,898. THIS LOAN IS SECURED BY CERTAIM
EQUIPMENT, MATERIALS ANDINVENTORY OF ISORAY, AND ALSO REQUIRED PERSONAL GUARANTEES, FOR WHICH GUERANTORS WERE ISSUED APPROXIMATELY 70,455 SHARES
COMMON STOCK. THE SECOND LOAN 1s FROM THE HaNFORD AREA Economic INVESTMENGUND CoMmITTEE (HAEIFC) AND wWAS ORIGINATED IN JUNE 2006. THE LOA?
ORIGINALLY HAD A TOTAL FACILITY OF $1,400,000 WHICH WAS REDUCED IN SEPTEMBER07 TO THE AMOUNT OF THE COMPANY’S INITIAL DRAW OF $418,670. THprincipal
BALANCE OWED ON THE LOAN As OF JUNE 30, 2009 wa$221,562. THIS LOAN IS SECURED BY RECEIVABLES, EQUIPMENT, MATERIALSAND INVENTORY, AND CERTAIN LII
insurance policies and also required personal guarantees. The final payment on the HAEIFC loan will be due in September 2013.

The COMPANY IS IN VIOLATION OF CERTAIN COVENANTS OF THE BFEDD LOAN AS OF JUNE 3(®009. THE COMPANY HAS NOT REQUESTED A WAIVER AS THE LOAN IS DUE Ikess
THAN SIX MONTHS AND IS CLASSIFIED AS CURRENT ON THE COMPANY’S BALANGHEET. THE COMPANY IS CURRENTLY IN VIOLATION OF THE COVENANTREGARDING PAYING
OFFICERS IN EXCESS OF $100,000 PER YEAR, PAYING RENT IN EXCESOF $45,000 PER YEAR AT ITS CURRENT LOCATION, AND REPURCHASING ANY OFOUSSTANDING STOCK. UNDE
THE TERMS OF THE LOAN AGREEMENT, BFEDD CAMISE THE INTEREST RATE TO 13 PERCENT OR REQUEST REPAYMENT OF THE ENTIRE AMOUNSTANDING AFTER GIVING TF
Company 15 days notice. If BFEDD were to take these measures, the Company would immediately repay the remaining balance of the loan.

HAEIFC has granted the Company a waiver from enforcing a fixed charge coverage ratio. The waiver is effective through June 30,2010.

The Company no longer has any capital leases as of June 30,2009.

Other Commitments and Contingencies

ON May 2,2007, MEDICAL ENTERED INTO A LEASE FOR ITS NEW PRODUCTION FACILITY WITH ENERDRTHWEST, THE OWNER OF THE APPLIED PROCESS ENGINEERIN
LaBoraTORY (THE APEILEASE). THE APEL LEASE HAS A THREE-YEAR TERM EXPIRING ON APRIL 39010, AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO ADDITIONAL THREE-YEAR TERMS,
ORIGINALMONTHLY RENT OF APPROXIMATELY $26,700, SUBJECT TO ANNUAL INCREASES BASED ON TEIONSUMER PRICE INDEX, PLUS MONTHLY JANITORIAL EXPENSES C
approximately $700. THiS NEW FACILITY BECAME OPERATIONAL IN SEPTEMBER2007. DUE TO A REDUCTION IN SOME LAB AND OFFICE SPACE AT APEL, THRENT HAS BEE!

reduced to approximately $23,500 per month plus monthly janitorial expenses of approximately $460.

Future minimum lease payments under operating leases, including the two three-year renewals of the APEL lease, are as follows:

Year ending June 30,
2010 $ 305,908
2011 302,235
2012 290,993
2013 288,467
2014 288,467
Thereafter 528,857

52004927

In FEBRUARY 2006, THE COMPANY SIGNED A LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH INTERNATIONBRACHYTHERAPY SA (IBT), A BELGIAN COMPANY, COVERING NORTH AMERICA AN
PROVIDING THE COMPANY WITH ACCESS TO IBT’S INK JET PRODUCTION PROCESS AND ITS PROPRIETARAOLYMER SEED TECHNOLOGY FOR USE IN BRACHYTHERAPY PROCEDUR
using Cs-131. Under the original agreement royalty payments were to be paid on net sales revenue incorporating the technology.
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ON OctoBER 12, 2007, THE COMPANY ENTERED INTO AMENDMENT No. | (THE AMENDMENT) TOITS LICENSE AGREEMENT DATED FEBRUARY 2, 2006 witH IBT. Tt
COMPANY PAID LICENSE FEES OF $275,000 (UNDER THE ORIGINAL AGREEMENT) AND $225,000 (UNDBRIE AMENDMENT) DURING FISCAL YEARS 2006 AND 200¢
RESPECTIVELY. THEAMENDMENT ELIMINATES THE PREVIOUSLY REQUIRED ROYALTY PAYMENTS BASED ON NET SALESEVENUE, AND THE PARTIES ORIGINALLY INTENDED
NEGOTIATE TERMS FOR FUTURRYMENTS BY THE COMPANY FOR POLYMER SEED COMPONENTS TO BE PURCHASED AT IBT'SCOST PLUS A TO-BE-DETERMINED PROFI
PERCENTAGE. MANAGEMENT NO LONGEBELIEVES THAT INTRODUCING Cs-131 POLYMER SEEDS IS A VIABLE STRATEGY DUE TNCERNS REGARDING PHYSICIAN ACCEPTANCE ANI
THE COSTS TO REVAMP THE COMPANY’SEXISTING MANUFACTURING PROCEDURES TO INCORPORATE THIS TECHNOLOGY. DECEMBER 2008, THE COMPANY RECORDED AN
impairment charge to write down this license based on its current intentions to not utilize this technology.

IN NovEMBER 2008, A SUBSIDIARY OF THE COMPANY ENTERED INTO A WRITTEN CONTRACT WHHCONTRACTOR BASED IN THE UKRAINE TO FORMALIZE A RESEARCH
DEVELOPMENT PROJECT ORIGINALLY BEGUN OVER THREE YEARS AGO TO DEVELOP A PROPRIETARFARATION PROCESS TO MANUFACTURE ENRICHED BARIUM. THERE IS N
ASSURANCE THAT THIS PROCESS CAN BE DEVELOPED. THE CONTRACT CALLED A®RNITIAL PAYMENT OF $17,800 AND A PAYMENT OF $56,610 UPON COMPLETION OF A
SUCCESSFUL DEMONSTRATION. THE COMPANY’S INITIAL DEMONSTRATION HABEEN POSTPONED DUE TO AN ELECTRICAL PROBLEM THAT DAMAGED EQUIPMENT AND DUE ~
ECONOMIC DIFFICULTIES IN THE UKRAINE THAT HAVE PROTRACTED THE CONTRACT@RF®RTS. THE COMPANY ANTICIPATES THAT THE DEVICE WILL BE TESTED INHE FALL oF 200
BUT THERE IS NO ASSURANCE THIS TESTING WILL OCCUR BY THENVORETHER IT WILL BE SUCCESSFUL. AFTER A SUCCESSFUL DEMONSTRATION, CBPANY WILL DECIDE IF THE
PROTOTYPE MODEL WILL PRODUCE SUFFICIENT QUANTITIES (BNRICHED BARIUM OR IF A LARGER PRODUCTION MODEL WILL NEED TO BE BUILT FORADDITIONAL $100,000 T
$150,000.

THE COMPANY IS SUBJECT TO VARIOUS LOCAL, STATE, AND FEDERAL ENVIRONMENTREGULATIONS AND LAWS DUE TO THE ISOTOPES USED TO PRODUCE THE COMPANY
product. As part of normal operations, amounts are expended to ensure THAT THE COMPANY IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THESE LAWS ANDREGULATIONS. WHILE THERE HA\
BEEN NO REPORTABLE INCIDENTS ORCOMPLIANCE ISSUES, THE COMPANY BELIEVES THAT IF IT RELOCATES ITS CURRENRODUCTION FACILITIES THEN CERTAIN DECOMMISSIONING
EXPENSES WILL BE INCURRED. AN ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION WAS ESTABLISHED IN THE FIRBTARTER OF FISCAL YEAR 2008 FOR THE COMPANY’S OBLIGATIONS AT ITS M
PRODUCTION FACILITY. THIS ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION WILL BE FOR OBLIGATIONS REMOVE ANY RESIDUAL RADIOACTIVE MATERIALS AND TO REMOVE ALL LEASE
improvements.

The INDUSTRY THAT THE COMPANY OPERATES IN IS SUBJECT TO PRODUCT LIABILITTIGATION. THROUGH ITS PRODUCTION AND QUALITY ASSURANCE PROCEDURENE COMPANY
works to mitigate the risk of any lawsuits concerming its product. The Company also carries product liability insurance to help protect it from this risk.

The Company has no off-balance sheet arrangements.
Inflation

MANAGEMENTDOES NOT BELIEVE THAT THE CURRENT LEVELS OF INFLATION IN THE UNITED STATES HAMEA SIGNIFICANT IMPACT ON THE OPERATIONS OF THE CoMPANY. [i
current levels of inflation hold steady, management does not believe future operations will be negatively impacted.

New Accounting Standards

In DecEMBER 2007, THE FASB 1ssUED STATEMENT No. 160,Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements — an amendment of ARB No. 51
(SFAS 160). THE STATEMENT REQUIRES NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS OR MINORINYERESTS TO BE TREATED AS A SEPARATE COMPONENT OF EQUITY, NOT AS A LIABILITOther
ITEM OUTSIDE OF PERMANENT EQUITY. UPON A LOSS OF CONTROL, THRTEREST SOLD, AS WELL AS ANY INTEREST RETAINED, IS REQUIRED TO BE MEASURHRBIRTVALUE, WITH AN’
GAIN OR LOSS RECOGNIZED IN EARNINGS. BASED ONSFAS 160, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES WILL NOT CHANGE FOR SUBSEQUENT PURCHASE SXRLES TRANSACTIONS WI'
NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS AS LONG AS CONTROMASNTAINED. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE FAIR VALUE OF CONSIDERATION PAIDR RECEIVED AND THE CARRYING VALUE
NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS ARE TO BECOGNIZED AS AN ADJUSTMENT TO THE PARENT INTEREST’S EQUITY. SFAS 160EFFECTIVE FOR FISCAL YEARS BEGINNING ON OR AF
DECEMBER 15, 2008 AND EARLIER ADOPTION IS PROHIBITED. THE ADOPTION OF THIS STATEMENT IS NOEXPECTED TO HAVE A MATERIAL EFFECT ON THE COMPANY’S FINANCL
statements.
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INn May 2008, FASB 1ssuep SFAS No. 162, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. SFAS 162 IDENTIFIES THE SOURCES OFaccounting
PRINCIPLES AND THE FRAMEWORK FOR SELECTING THE PRINCIPLES TO BE USHN THE PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NONGOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES THAT prasented
IN CONFORMITY WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES IN THEINITED STATES. IT wAs EFFECTIVE NOVEMBER 15, 2008, FOLLOWING TISEC’S APPROVAL OF THI
PuBLic CoMPANY ACCOUNTING OVERSIGHT BOARD AMENDMENTS TO AUSEcTION 411, The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity With Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles. The adoption of this statement did not have a material effect on the Company’s financial statements.

Tue FASB 1ssuep SFAS No. 168, The FASB Standards Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles—a replacement of
FASB Statement 162, IN LATEJUNE 2009. THE FASB ACCOUNTING STANDARDS CODIFICATION WILBBECOME THE SOURCE OF AUTHORITATIVE U.S. GENERALLY ACCEPT
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES (GAAP) AND WILL SUPERSEDE ALL THEN-EXISTING NON-SEC ACCOUNTING AMBPORTING STANDARDS ON THE EFFECTIVE DATE, SEPTEMBER |
2009. THE CODIFICATION WILL NOT CHANGE GAAP, BUT CONSOLIDATES IT INT® LOGICAL AND CONSISTENT STRUCTURE. THE COMPANY WILL BE REQUIREDRBYISE OUF
references to GAAP in our financial statements beginning with the first quarter of fiscal year 2010.

ITEM 7A — QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

As a smaller reporting company, the Company is not required to provide Item 7A disclosure in this Annual Report.

ITEM 8 — FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The required accompanying financial statements begin on page F-1 of this document.

ITEM 9 — CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

There were no disagreements or reportable events with DeCoria, Maichel & Teague, P.S.

ITEM 9A — CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

UNDER THESUPERVISION AND WITH THE PARTICIPATION OF OUR MANAGEMENT, INCLUDING OURPRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER, WE CONDUCTE
A NEVALUATION OF THE DESIGN AND OPERATION OF OUR DISCLOSURE CONTROLS APRDCEDURES, AS SUCH TERM IS DEFINED UNDER RULES 13A-14(c) AND 15D-14(
PROMULGATED UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE AcT oF 1934, AS AMENDED (THE "EXCHAN@ECT"), As OF JUNE 30, 2009. BASED ON THAT EVALUATION, OUR PRINCIP.
EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND OUR PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER CONCLUDED THAT THE DESISND OPERATION OF OUR DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES WERE EFFECTIV
TIMELY ALERTING THEM TO MATERIAL INFORMATION REQUIRED TO BE INCLUDED IN THE COMPANYBRIODIC REPORTS FILED WITH THE SEC UNDER THE EXCHANGE Act. T
DESIGN OF ANY SYSTEM OF CONTROLS IS BASED IN PART UPON CERTAIN ASSUMPTIONS ABOUTHE LIKELIHOOD OF FUTURE EVENTS, AND THERE CAN BE NO ASSURANCE THAT

DESIGN WILL SUCCEED IN ACHIEVING ITS STATED GOALS UNDER ALL POTENTIAL FUTUREDITIONS, REGARDLESS OF HOW REMOTE. HOWEVER, MANAGEMENT BELIEVHHAT OU
system of disclosure controls and procedures is designed to provide a reasonable level of assurance that the objectives of the system will be met.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our MANAGEMENT IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ESTABLISHING AND MAINTAINING ADEQUATE INTERNACONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING, AS SUCH TERM IS DEFINED IN RULE 13A-1:
of THE EXCHANGE AcT. UNDER THE SUPERVISION AND WITH THE PARTICIPATION OPUR MANAGEMENT, INCLUDING OUR PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND PRINCIPALfinancial
OFFICER, WE CONDUCTED AN EVALUATION OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF OMRERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON THE FRAMEWORHnternal Control —
Integrated Framework 1SSUED BY THE COMMITTEE OF SPONSORING ORGANIZATIONS OF THE[READWAY COMMISSION. BASED ON OUR EVALUATION UNDER THE FRAMEWORK

Internal Control — Integrated Framework, our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of June 30, 2009.

THIS ANNUAL REPORT DOES NOT INCLUDE AN ATTESTATION REPORT OF OUR REGISTERED PUBCTOUNTING FIRM REGARDING INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINAN
REPORTING. MANAGEMENT’S REPORT WAS NOT SUBJECT TO ATTESTATION BY (REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM PURSUANT TO TEMPORARY RULES OF THE SECURIaIEd
Exchange Commission that permit us to provide only management’s report in this annual report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

THEREHAVE NOT BEEN ANY CHANGES IN OUR INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTINGS(XH TERM IS DEFINED IN RULES 13A-15(E) AND 15p-15(E) UNDER TH
EXCHANGE ACT)DURING THE MOST RECENT FISCAL QUARTER THAT HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED, OREARBNABLY LIKELY TO MATERIALLY AFFECT, OUR INTERNAL CONTROI
financial reporting.

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls

Our MANAGEMENT, INCLUDING OUR PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND PRINCIPAL FINANCIAIOFFICER, DOES NOT EXPECT THAT OUR DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND INTERNAL COM
will PREVENT ALL ERRORS AND ALL FRAUD. A CONTROL SYSTEM, NO MATTERWHOW CONCEIVED AND OPERATED, CAN PROVIDE ONLY REASONABLE, NOT ABSOLUABSURANCE THA
THE OBJECTIVES OF THE CONTROL SYSTEM ARE MET. FURTHERE DESIGN OF A CONTROL SYSTEM MUST REFLECT THE FACT THAT THERE ARE RESOWRSERAINTS, AND THE BENEFITS ¢
CONTROLS MUST BE CONSIDERED RELATIVE TO THIIRSTS. BECAUSE OF THE INHERENT LIMITATIONS IN ALL CONTROL SYSTEMS, BMVALUATION OF CONTROLS CAN PROVIDE ABSOLU
ASSURANCE THAT ALL CONTROL ISSURSD INSTANCES OF FRAUD, IF ANY, WITHIN THE COMPANY HAVE BEENDETECTED. THESE INHERENT LIMITATIONS INCLUDE THE REALITIES T
judgments in decision making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur BECAUSE OF A SIMPLE ERROR OR MISTAKE. ADDITIONALLY, CONTROLS CAN BErcumvented
by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management or board override of the control.

The DESIGN OF ANY SYSTEM OF CONTROLS ALSO IS BASED IN PART UPON CERTAIN ASSUMPTION&BOUT THE LIKELIHOOD OF FUTURE EVENTS, AND THERE CAN BE NO ASSURANCE
any DESIGN WILL SUCCEED IN ACHIEVING ITS STATED GOALS UNDER ALL POTENTIAL FUTCREDITIONS; OVER TIME, CONTROLS MAY BECOME INADEQUATE BECAUSE OF CHANGES I
CONDITIONS, OR THE DEGREE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE POLICIES OR PROCEDURES MAYETERIORATE. BECAUSE OF THE INHERENT LIMITATIONS IN A COST-EFFECTDatrol
system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

ITEM 9B — OTHER INFORMATION

THEREWERE NO ITEMS REQUIRED TO BE DISCLOSED IN A REPORT ON FORM 8-K DURING THE FOURQWARTER OF THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 THAT HAVE NOT B
already disclosed on a Form 8-K filed with the SEC.

PART II1
ITEM 10 — DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Each member of the Board of Directors serves a one-year term and is subject to reelection at the Company’s Annual Meeting of Shareholders held each year.
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Board Committees

THE BOARDHAS ESTABLISHED AN AUDIT COMMITTEE CONSISTING OF THOMAS LAVOY (CHAIRMAN), ROBERKAUFFMAN, AND ALBERT SMITH; A COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
CONSISTING OF ALBERT SMITH(CHAIRMAN) AND ROBERT KAUFFMAN; AND A NOMINATING COMMITTEE CONSISTING OF ROBERKAUFFMAN (CHAIRMAN), THOMAS LAVOY, ANT
Albert Smith. No other committees have been formed.

Audit Committee

THE AuDIT COMMITTEE WAS ESTABLISHED ON DECEMBER 8, 2006, THE DATE ON WHICH ITS CHARTER WASDOPTED. THE AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER LISTS THE PURPOSES (
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE AS OVERSEEING THE ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING PROCESSES OF TIEOMPANY AND AUDITS OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE COMPAN
and providing ASSISTANCE TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN MONITORING (1) THE INTEGRITY OF @i@BPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, (2) THE COMPANY’S COMPLIANCE WITH
LEGAL ANTREGULATORY REQUIREMENTS, (3) THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S QUALIFICATIONS ANDEPENDENCE, AND (4) THE PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY’S INTERNAL AUD
function, if any, and independent auditor.

THE BOARDOF DIRECTORS HAS DETERMINED THAT MR. LAVOY AND MR. KAUFFMAN ARE EARH‘AUDIT COMMITTEE FINANCIAL EXPERT” AS DEFINED IN ITEM 407(D)(5) c
REGULATIONS-K PROMULGATED BY THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, AND EACH AUDITCOMMITTEE MEMBER IS INDEPENDENT. THE BOARD’S CONCLUSIONS
regarding THE QUALIFICATIONS OF MR. LAVOY AS AN AUDIT COMMITTEE FINANCIAL EXPERT WHRESED ON HIS SERVICE AS A CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF A PUBLIC COMPANY
HIS EXPERIENCE AS A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT AND HIS DEGREE IMCCOUNTING. THE BOARD’S CONCLUSIONS REGARDING THE QUALIFICATIONS MR. KAUFFMAN AS A°
AUDIT COMMITTEE FINANCIAL EXPERT WERE BASED ON HISERVICE AS A CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF MULTIPLE PUBLIC COMPANIES, HIS ACTIVE SUPERVISION OF THE PRINCIPAL
financial and accounting officers of the public companies for which he served as chief executive officer, and his M.B.A. in Finance.

Executive Officers and Directors

The executive officers and directors serving the Company as of June 30, 2009 were as follows:

Name Age Position Held Term*
Dwight Babcock 61 Chairman, Chief Executive Officer Annual
Jonathan Hunt 42 Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer

Lori Woods 47 Chief Operating Officer

Robert Kauffman 68 Vice-Chairman Annual
Thomas LaVoy 49 Director Annual
Albert Smith 65 Director Annual

* For directors only

Dwight BaBcock — MR. BaBcock was ApPOINTED CEO oF THE CompaNY ON FEBRUARY 18,2009. HE was PREVIOUSLY APPOINTED CHAIRMAN AND INTERIM CEO OF THI
CompPaNY ON FEBRUARY 26, 2008 AND HAS SERVED AS A DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY SINCR2006. MR. BABCOCK HAS SERVED AS CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFIC
OF APEX DATA SYSTEMS, INC., AN INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY COMPANY, SINCE 1975. APEX DATA SYSTEMS AUTOMATES THE ADMINISTRATION AND cLAIM&djudication
NEEDS OF INSURANCE COMPANIES BOTH NATIONALLY ANDINTERNATIONALLY. MR. BABCOCK WAS FORMERLY PRESIDENT AND CEOB®#BCOCK INSURANCE CorPORATION (BIC
FROM 1974 UNTIL 1985. BIC WAS ANATIONALLY RECOGNIZED THIRD PARTY ADMINISTRATOR OPERATING WITHIN 3TATES. MR. BABCOCK HAS KNOWLEDGE AND EXPERIENCE I
THE EQUITY ARENAAND HAS PARTICIPATED IN VARIOUS ACTIVITIES WITHIN THE VENTURE CAPITAL, PRIVATEND INSTITUTIONAL CAPITAL MARKETS. MR. BABCOCK STUD
marketing and economics at the University of Arizona where he currently serves on the University of Arizona Astronomy Board.
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JoNATHANHUNT — MR. HUNT HAS OVER 15 YEARS OF FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING EXPERIENCRCLUDING FINANCIAL REPORTING, SEC KNOWLEDGE, AND OPERATION,
ANALYSIS. BEFORE JOINING ISORAY IN 2006, HE WAS EMPLOYED BY HYPERCOM CORPORATION, A GLOBAL PROVIDER OF ELECTRONIC PAYMENT SOLUTIONS AND MANUFACTUGE
CREDIT CARD TERMINALS, SERVING AS ITS ASSISTANT CORPORATE CONTROLLER 286\ To 2006. His FINANCE BACKGROUND ALSO INCLUDES SERVING AS BOTH MANAGER ANI
DIRECTOR OF FINANCIAL REPORTING AND A DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONAIANNING AND ANALYSIS FOR CIRCLE K CORPORATION AND ITS AFFILIATES FROM 20002005 AND
WORKING FOR PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP FROM 1992 TO 1999 WHERE HIS LAXISITION HELD WAS BUSINESS ASSURANCE MANAGER. MR. HUNT HOLDS MASTERE
Accountancy and Bachelor of Science degrees from Brigham Young University and is a Certified Public Accountant.

Lori Woobps — Ms. Woobs JoINED THE COMPANY IN JULY 2006, was APPOINTED ACTING CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER ON FEBRUARY 26, 2008, AND WAS APPOINTED CHIE
Operating OFFICER ON FEBRUARY 18,2009. Ms. WooDs HAS OVER 20 YEARS EXPERIENGE MEDICAL DEVICE TECHNOLOGY AND HEALTHCARE SERVICES. Ms. Woonserved
As THE CEO ofF PRO-QURA, A MEDICAL SERVICES COMPANY FOCUSING ONBRACHYTHERAPY QUALITY ASSURANCE AND EDUCATION, FROM 2002 UNTIL JOINING
CoMPANY. DURING HER TENURE AT PrO-QURA, Ms. WOODS DEVELOPED ITBUSINESS STRATEGY, EXPANDED ITS BUSINESS PORTFOLIO IN QUALITY ASSURANCE BEYONprostate
BRACHYTHERAPY INTO OTHER AREAS OF CANCER, AND INCREASED FUNDING¥)%0. PRIOR TO THIS, SHE SERVED AS THE VICE PRESIDENT OF SALES AT AMIEDICAL IN 2002, VICE
PRESIDENT OF SALES — WEST AND VICE PRESIDENT OF MARKETINSGD BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT FOR IMAGYN MEDICAL TECHNOLOGIES FROM 2000 TO 2002DIRECTOR O
BusiNEss DEVELOPMENT FOR SEATTLE PROSTATE INSTITUTE FROM 19982080, AND REGIONAL VICE PRESIDENT AND REGIONAL MANAGER OF INTERDENT FROM 199¢
1998. Ms. Woods holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration — Marketing from Loma Linda University.

ROBERTKAUFFMAN — MR. KAUFFMAN HAS BEEN A DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY SINCE 2005 AND wasPPOINTED VICE-CHAIRMAN OF THE COMPANY ON FEBRUARY 26,
2008. MR. KAUFFMAN HAS SERVED AS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER ANDHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF ALaNco TECHNOLOGIES, INc. (NASDAQ: ALAN), aArizona-based
information technology company, since July 1, 1998. Mr. Kauffman was formerly President and Chief Executive OrriCER oF NASDAQ-LISTED PHOTOCOMM, INC
FROM 1988 UNTIL 1997 (SINCE RENAMEDKYOCERA SOLAR, INC.). PHOTOCOMM WAS THE NATION’S LARGEST PUBLICOWNED MANUFACTURER AND MARKETER OF WIRELESS SC
ELECTRIC POWER SYSTEMS WITHANNUAL REVENUES IN EXCESS OF $35 MILLION. PRIOR TO PHOTOCOMMYIR. KAUFFMAN WAS A SENIOR EXECUTIVE OF THE ATLANTIC RICHFIE
CompaNy (ARCO) WHOSE VARIED RESPONSIBILITIES INCLUDED SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT OF ARCOSOLAR, INc., PRESIDENT OF ARCO Prastics CompANY AND Vic
PrESIDENT OF ARCOCHEMICAL COMPANY. MR. KAUFFMAN EARNED AN M.B.A. IN FINANCE ATTHE WHARTON SCHOOL OF THE UNIVERSITY OF PENNSYLVANIA, AND HOLL
B.S. in Chemical Engineering from Lafayette College, Easton, Pennsylvania.

Thomas LaVoy — MR. LAVoy HAS BEEN A DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY SINCE 2005. MEL.AVOY HAS SERVED AS CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF SUPERSHUTTLE INTERNATIO
Inc., SINCE JULY 1997 AND AS SECRETARY SINCE MARCH 1998. SUPERSHUTTLEANE OF THE LARGEST PROVIDERS OF SHUTTLE SERVICES IN MAJOR CITIES THROUGHOUT Wigst
AND SOUTHWEST REGIONS OF THE UNITED STATES. HE HAS ALSO SERVE® A DIRECTOR OF ALANCO TECHNOLOGIES, INC. (NASDAQ: ALAN) sincE998. FroM SEPTEMBER
1987 1o FEBRUARY 1997, MR. LAVOY SERVED As CHIHFINANCIAL OFFICER OF NASDAQ-LISTED PHOTOCOMM, INC. MR. LAVOY WAS @ERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT WIT
the firm of KPMG Peat Marwick from 1980 to 1983. Mr. LaVoy has a Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from St. Cloud University, Minnesota, and is
a Certified Public Accountant.

Albert SMITH — MR. SMITH HAS BEEN A DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY SINCE 2006. MRSMITH WAS THE CO-FOUNDER OF AND SERVED AS VICE CHAIRMAN OF CSI LEASING, IN¢
a PRIVATE COMPUTER LEASING COMPANY FROM 1972 UNTIL MARcH 2005. HmouNDED EXTREME VIDEO SoLUTIONS, LLC, A PRIVATE VIDEO CONFERENCING COMPANY WITF
HEADQUARTERS IN SCOTTSDALE, ARIZONA IN DECEMBER 2005. IN JANUAROOS, HE FORMED FACE TO FACE LIVE, INC. (SUCCESSOR TO EXTREME VIDEO SOLUTIONS)HERE HE
PRESENTLY SERVES AS CEO. MR. SMITH PRESENTLY SERVES ASHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD FOR DouLos MINISTRIES, INC. MR. SMITH HEXTENSIVE EXPERIENCE IN MARKETING
AND SALES HAVING MANAGED A NATIONAL SALB®)RCE OF OVER FIFTY PEOPLE WHILE AT CSI LEASING, INc. MR. SMITH HOLBSBS IN BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION FROM FERRI
State College.
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The COMPANY’S DIRECTORS, AS NAMED ABOVE, WILL SERVE UNTIL THE NEXT ANNUAL MEETING OHE COMPANY’S SHAREHOLDERS OR UNTIL THEIR SUCCESSORS ARE DULY ELE(
AND HAVE QUALIFIED. DIRECTORS WILL BE ELECTED FOR ONE-YEAR TERMS AT THE ANSHAREHOLDERS MEETING. THERE IS NO ARRANGEMENT OR UNDERSTANDIBIGIWEEN ANY
OF THE DIRECTORS OR OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY AND ANY OTHER PERSPIRSUANT TO WHICH ANY DIRECTOR OR OFFICER WAS OR IS TO BE SELECTED AS A DIREOROBFFICER, AN
THERE IS NO ARRANGEMENT, PLAN OR UNDERSTANDING AS TO WHETNBN-MANAGEMENT SHAREHOLDERS WILL EXERCISE THEIR VOTING RIGHTS TO CONTINUEETECT THE CURRE'
DIRECTORS TO THE COMPANY’S BOARD. THERE ARE ALSO Morangements, agreements or understandings between non-management shareholders THAT MAY DIRECTLY C
indirectly participate in or influence the management of the Company’s affairs.

There are NO AGREEMENTS OR UNDERSTANDINGS FOR ANY OFFICER OR DIRECTOR TO RESIGN ARE@EEST OF ANOTHER PERSON, AND NONE OF THE OFFICERS OR DIRECTORS ARE A
on behalf of, or will act at the direction of, any other person. There are no family relationships among our executive officers and directors.

Significant Employees

CERTAINSIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES OF OUR SUBSIDIARY, ISORAY MEDICAL, INC., AND THEIRESPECTIVE AGES AS OF THE DATE OF THIS REPORT ARE SET FORTH IN THE T
below. Also provided is a brief description of the experience of each significant employee during the past five years.

Name Age Position Held and Tenure

Fredric Swindler 61 VP, Regulatory Affairs and Quality Assurance
Lane Bray 81 Chemist

Anthony Pasqualone 54 VP, Business Development

Fredric SWINDLER — MR. SWINDLER JOINED THE COMPANY IN OCTOBER 2006 AND HAS OVER 30 YEARXPERIENCE IN MANUFACTURING AND REGULATORY COMPLIANCE. M
Swindler SERVED AS VP, QUALITY ASSURANCE AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS FOR MEDISYSTEMIORPORATION, A MANUFACTURER AND DISTRIBUTOR OF MEDICAL DEVICES, FROM 1¢
until JOINING THE COMPANY. DURING HIS TENURE AT MEDISYSTEMS CORPORATION,MR. SWINDLER DEVELOPED A QUALITY SYSTEM TO ACCOMMODATE VERTICALLY INTEGR/
MANUFACTURING, DEVELOPED REGULATORY STRATEGIES, POLICIES AND PROCEDURES, ASUBMITTED NINE PRE-MARKET NOTIFICATIONS (510(k)) To THE FDA. PrIOR TO1IS, MR
SWINDLER HELD VARIOUS POSITIONS WITH MARQUEST MEDICAL PropuCTS FRAMS89 TO 1994, SHERWOOD MEDICAL PrODUCTS FROM 1978 TO 1989, OaAK P!
PHARMACEUTICALS IN 1978, AND MEAD JoHNSON & CoMPANY FROM 1969 T0l978. MR. SWINDLER HOLDS A BACHELOR OF SCIENCE DEGREE IN BioMEDICAIngineering
from Rose Hulman Institute of Technology and a Masters of Business Administration from the University of Evansville.

LANE BrRAY— MR. BRAY IS KNOWN NATIONALLY AND INTERNATIONALLY AS A TECHNICAL EXPERSERARATIONS, RECOVERY, AND PURIFICATION OF ISOTOPES AND IS A NOTE
AUTHORITY INTHE USE OF CESIUM AND STRONTIUM ION EXCHANGE FOR DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY’S WESMALLEY AND HANFORD NUCLEAR WASTE CLEANUP EFFORTS. IN 2!
MR. BRAY RECEIVED THE ’RADIATION SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY’ AWARD FROM THYMERICAN NUCLEAR SOCIETY. MR. BRAY HAS AUTHORED OR CO-AUTHO®EBR 11(
RESEARCH PUBLICATIONS, 12 ARTICLES FOR NINE TECHNICAL BOOKS, AND HOID4 U.S. AND FOREIGN PATENTS. MR. BRAY PATENTED THE USDOE/PNNEROCESS FOR PURIFYING
MEDICAL GRADE YTTRIUM-90 THAT WAS SUCCESSFULCOMMERCIALIZED IN 1999. MR. BRAY ALSO INVENTED AND PATENTED THEROPRIETARY ISOTOPE SEPARATION ANI
PURIFICATION PROCESS THAT IS ASSIGNED TOISORAY. MR. BRAY WAS ELECTED ‘TRI-CITIAN OF THE YEAR’ IN 19880MINATED FOR ‘ENGINEER OF THE YEAR’ BY THE AMERICA
NUCLEAR SOCIETY IN 1995 AND wWAS ELECTED ‘CHEMIST OF THE YEAR FOR 1997’ BY THE AMERICAN CHEMICAL SOCIETEASTERN WASHINGTON SECTION. MR. BRAY RETII
from the Pacific NORTHWEST NATIONAL LABORATORY IN 1998. SINCE RETIRING IN 1998[R. BRAY WORKED PART TIME FOR PNNL ON SPECIAL PROJECTS UNTIL DEVOTING &if
HIS EFFORTS TO ISORAY IN 2004. MR. BRAY HAS BEEN A WASHINGTOSTATE LEGISLATOR, A RICHLAND CiTy COUNCILMAN, AND A MAYORRKCHLAND. MR. BRAY HAS A B.£
in Chemistry from Lake Forest College.
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Anthony PASQUALONE — MR. PASQUALONE JOINED THE COMPANY IN NOVEMBER 2008 AND HAS BEENNVOLVED IN MARKETING BRACHYTHERAPY EXTENSIVELY SINCE 198
when brachytherapy STARTED TO GAIN ATTENTION AS A VIABLE TREATMENT OPTION FOR PROSTANCER. PRIOR TO JOINING ISORAY, MR. PASQUALONE SERVED As TMational
ONcoLOGY DEVELOPMENT MANAGER AT CALYPSO MEDICAL FROM APRIL 2007 movEMBER 2008. PrIOR TO THAT MR. PASQUALONE WAS A CONSULTANT V
BRrACHYSCIENCES FROM DECEMBER 2005 1o APRIL 2007. HE ALSO SERVED AS NP OF STRATEGIC MARKETS FROM MAY 2003 To DECEMBER 2005 IN THE UROLOGY Divisi
of CR Bard. From April 1997 to May 2003 he was a principal and Vice PRESIDENT OF SALES AT SOURCETECH MEDICAL, WHICH DEVELOPED AND INTRODUCBpedLink
TO THE BRACHYTHERAPY MARKET IN 2003. HE STARTED HIS CARMERNAGING BRACHYTHERAPY SALES AS THE NATIONAL SALES MANAGER AT THERAGENRPORATION, WHER
HE HELPED DEVELOP MARKET ACCEPTANCE OF PD-103. IN1995 HE BROUGHT THE FIRST STRANDED PRODUCT TO MARKET WHILE WORKING WITH THE TEAfINCURA (AMERSHAN
Corporation). Mr. Pasqualone is an alumnus of Fordham University with a BS in Science.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

SECTION 16(A) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE AcT OF 1934 (THE EXCHANGE ACT) REQUIRES THBMPANY’S DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, AND PERSONS WH
BENEFICIALLY OWNMORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF A REGISTERED CLASS OF OUR EQUITY SECURITIES, TOWILH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION (THE COMMISSION)
INITIAL REPORTS OBENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP AND REPORTS OF CHANGES IN BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP OF OUECOMMON STOCK. THE RULES PROMULGATED BY THE COMMISSION
UNDER SECTION16(A) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT REQUIRE THOSE PERSONS TO FURNISH US WITH COPIES OF ARHPORTS FILED WITH THE COMMISSION PURSUANT TO SECTIO
16(a). The information in this section is based solely upon a review of Forms 3, Forms 4, and Forms 5 received by us.

We BELIEVE THAT ISORAY’S EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, DIRECTORS AND 10% SHAREHOLDERS TIMEDWIPLIED WITH THEIR FILING REQUIREMENTS DURING THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3
2009 EXCEPT AS FOLLOWS: DWIGHT BaBcock (Two Form 4s), JonaTHAN HUNT (ONE ForMm 4), AmiTH (ONE FOorM 4), AND Lort WooDs (ONE ForM 4). WE BELIEVE ALL C
these forms have been filed as of the date of this Report.

Code of Ethics

We have ADOPTED A CoDE oF CONDUCT AND ETHICS THAT APPLIES TO ALL OF OUR OFFICERRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES AND A SEPARATE CODE OF ETHICS FOR CHIEF EXECUTI
OFFICER AND SENIOR FINANCIAL OFFICERS THAT SUPPLEMENTS OUR CoDE OF CoNnDucT aAEDHICS. THE CobE oF CoNDUCT AND ETHICS WAS PREVIOUSLY FILED AEXhibit
14.1 to our Form 10-KSB for the period ended June 30, 2006, and the Code or ETHics FOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND SENIOR FINANCIAL OFFICERS wpseviously
FILED AS EXHIBIT 14.2 TO THIS SAME REPORT. THE CODE OETHICS FOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND SENIOR FINANCIAL OFFICERS IS ALSOAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC ON OU
WEBSITE ATHTTP://WWW.ISORAY.COM/ETHICSFORCEO.HTM. EACH OF THESE POLICIEXOMPRISES WRITTEN STANDARDS THAT ARE REASONABLY DESIGNED TO DETER WRONGD
and to promote the behavior described in Item 406 of Regulation S-K promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Nominating Procedures

There have been no material changes to the procedures by which our shareholders may recommend nominees to the Board of Directors during our last fiscal
year.

ITEM 11 - EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The FOLLOWING SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE SETS FORTH INFORMATION CONCERNINGOMPENSATION FOR SERVICES RENDERED IN ALL CAPACITIES DURING OUR PAST TWO FISC

YEARS AWARDED TO, EARNED BY OR PAID TO EACH OF THE FOLLOWIN®IVIDUALS. SALARY AND OTHER COMPENSATION FOR THESE OFFICERSJPLOYEES AND FORMER OFFICERS AR
set by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors, except for employee compensation which is set by officers of the Company.
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Summary Compensation Table

Nonqualified
Nonequity deferred
Stock Option incentive plan compensation All other
Salary Bonus awards awards compensation earnings compensation Total
Name and principal position Y ear ($) ($) ($) $)V ($) ($) ($) ($)
Dwight Babcock, Chairman and CEO @) 2009 140,308 - - 50,000 - - - 190,308
2008 22,000 - - 70,000 - - - 92,000
Jonathan Hunt, Chief Financial Officer 2009 144,119 - - 21,900 - - - 166,019
2008 139,616 - - - - - - 139,616
Lori Woods, Chief Operating Officer 2009 185,296 - - 21,900 - - - 207,196
2008 179,615 - - - - - - 179,615
Robert Bilella, Territory Sales Manager 2009 86,722 106,550 2,448 - - - 195,720
2008 117,283 121,150 - - - - 238,433

(1)  Amounts REPRESENT THE FAS 123R VALUATION FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2009p 2008, RESPECTIVELY. ALL SUCH OPTIONS WERE AWARDED UNDER O1
oF THE COMPANY’S STOCK OPTION PLANS. ALL OPTIONS AWARDED (WITHTHE EXCEPTION OF MR. BABCOCK’S STOCK OPTION GRANTS THAT WERE IMMEDIATEIRESTED ON
THE GRANT DATE) VEST IN THREE EQUAL ANNUAL INSTALLMBRGSNNING WITH THE FIRST ANNIVERSARY FROM THE DATE OF GRANT AND EXPIRE YENRS AFTER THE DATE
GRANT. ALL OPTIONS WERE GRANTED AT TEAER MARKET VALUE OF THE COMPANY’S STOCK ON THE DATE OF GRANT AND fHEMPANY USED A BLACK-SCHOLES
methodology as discussed in the footnotes to the financial statements to value the options.

(2)  Mr. BaBcock BECAME THE CHAIRMAN AND INTERIM CEO oN FEBRUARY 26, 2008 AND wasPPOINTED CEO oN FEBRUARY 18,2009. HE WAS SERVING AS INTERIN
CEO ON A CONTRACT BASIS. MR. BABCOCK ALSO RECEIVED COMPENSATIONS A DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY UNTIL HIS APPOINTMENT AS CEO oN FEBRUARY 18009
which is disclosed in the Non-Employee Director Compensation table.

Ms. Woods HAS AN EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT WITH THE COMPANY DATED FEBRUARY 12007. THE AGREEMENT WAS FOR AN INITIAL TERM OF TWO YEARS, WASTENDED FOR A
ADDITIONAL YEAR, AND WILL BE AUTOMATICALLY EXTENDED FORADITIONAL YEAR ON EACH ANNIVERSARY DATE UNLESS TERMINATED IN ACCORDANCE WHH PROVISIONS OF
the agreement. The agreement entitles Ms. Woods to a salary of at least $160,000 with increases as determined by the Compensation COMMITTEE OF THE BOARI
AND ANNUAL BONUS PAYMENTS UNDER A BONUS PLAN ASESTABLISHED BY THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE. IN THE EVENT THAT MSWOODS IS TERMINATED WITHOUT CAUSE
BECOMES DISABLED, OR TERMINATES HEREMPLOYMENT FOR GOOD REASON, SHE WILL BE ENTITLED TO HER SALARY AND BENEFITSTHERREMAINING TERM OF THE AGREEMENT OR |
MONTHS, WHICHEVER IS SHORTER. (GOOD REASON IS DEFINED IN THE AGREEMENT TO MEAN A REDUCTIOR SALARY OR BENEFITS, A CHANGE IN Ms. WooDs’ TITLE, POSITIC
authority, Or RESPONSIBILITIES, CAUSING Ms. WOODS TO RELOCATE, OR ANY BREACH BY THE COMPANY OFHIS AGREEMENT. IF Ms. WOODS IS TERMINATED WITHIN ONE YEAR ¢
a CHANGE OF CONTROL THEN SHE SHALL BE ENTITLED TO HER SALARY AND BENEFITS FRENINENING TERM OF THE AGREEMENT OR |8 MONTHS, WHICHEVER IS LONGER, IN ADDITI
TO A ONE-TIME PAYMENT EQUAL TO HER MOST RECENTLY RECEIVED BONUS. IRHE EVENT OF Ms. WOODS’ TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE OR TERMINATION WITHIN ONE YE@R A
CHANGE OF CONTROL, ALL OF HER UNVESTED STOCK OPTIONS SHALL IMMEDIATELY VMESFULL AND SHALL BE EXERCISABLE AS PROVIDED IN THE APPLICABLE STOCK OPTI
PLAN. THE AGREEMENT ALSO INCLUDES CERTAIN RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS TRROHIBIT Ms. WOODS FROM PROVIDING SERVICES TO A COMPETING BUSINESS FOR THE PERIOD OF
this agreement plus one year.

Mr. Hunt HAS AN EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT WITH THE COMPANY DATED MAY 19,2009. THRGREEMENT IS FOR AN INITIAL TERM OF ONE YEAR AND WILL EXTEND AUTOMATIC
for ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR TERMS ON EACH ANNIVERSARY OF THE EFFECTIVE DATE OFAGREEMENT UNLESS TERMINATED BY EITHER PARTY WITH 90 DAYS PRIOVOTICE. IN THE
EVENT THAT MR. HUNT IS TERMINATED WITHOUT CAUSECOMES DISABLED, OR TERMINATES HIS EMPLOYMENT FOR GOOD REASON, HE WILL BENTITLED TO HIS SALARY A
BENEFITS FOR 12 MONTHS. GOOD REASON IDEFINED IN THE AGREEMENT TO MEAN A REDUCTION OF SALARY OR BENEFITS, A CHANGEMR. HUNT’S TITLE, POSITION, AUTHORITY,
RESPONSIBILITIES, CAUSING MR. HUNT TORELOCATE, OR ANY BREACH BY THE COMPANY OF THIS AGREEMENT. IF MR. HUSTTERMINATED WITHIN ONE YEAR OF A CHANGE (
control then he shall be entitled TO HIS SALARY AND BENEFITS FOR 18 MONTHS. IN THE EVENT OF MR. HUNIERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE OR TERMINATION WITHIN ONE YE
OF A CHANGE OF CONTROIALL OF HIS UNVESTED STOCK OPTIONS SHALL IMMEDIATELY VEST IN FULL AND SHALIERERCISABLE AS PROVIDED IN THE APPLICABLE STOCK OPTIO!
PLAN. THE AGREEMENT ALSO INCLUDES CERTAIN RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS THAT PROHIBIT MR. HIROM PROVIDING SERVICES TO A COMPETING BUSINESS FOR THE PERIOD OF THIS
agreement plus one year.
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

Option awards

Equity
incentive plan
awards:

Number of Number of Number of

securities securities securities

underlying underlying underlying

unexercised unexercised unexercised Option
options options uneamned exercise Option
#) #) options price expiration
Name exercisable unexercisable #) ) date

Dwight Babcock, Chairman and CEO 50,000 - - 6.30 3/31/2016
50,000 - - 3.80 6/23/2016
50,000 - - 3.11 8/15/2016
100,000 - - 0.75 5/13/2018
200,000 - - 0.26 6/1/2019
Jonathan Hunt, Chief Financial Officer 30,000 - - 5.50 5/1/2016
33,333 16,667(2) - 3.10 10/17/2016
10,000 5,0003) - 440 3/2/2017
13,333 6,667(4) - 4.14 6/1/2017
- 10,000(5) - 0.65 7/1/2018
- 100,000(6) - 0.26 6/1/2019
Lori Woods, Chief Operating Officer 33,333 16,667(1) - 3.50 7/5/2016
33,333 16,667(2) - 3.10 10/17/2016
10,000 5,000(3) - 4.40 3/2/2017
13,333 6,667(4) - 4.14 6/1/2017
- 10,000(5) - 0.65 7/1/2018
- 100,000(6) - 0.26 6/1/2019
Robert Bilella, Territory Sales Manager 84,236 - - 4.15 6/23/2015
- 18,000(6) - 0.26 6/1/2019

(1)
@
3
@)
®)
(©)

Represents A JuLy 5, 2006 GRANT, ONE-THIRD OF WHICH BECAME EXERCISABLE ON JULY 2007, ONE-THIRD OF WHICH BECAME EXERCISABLE ON JuLy 1, 2008, AN
the final third will become exercisable on July 1,2009.

Represents THE OcTOBER 17,2006 GRANT, ONE-THIRD OF WHICH BECAME EXERCISABLE BCTOBER 17,2007, ONE-THIRD OF WHICH BECAME EXERCISABLE ON OCTOBI
17,2008, and the final third will become exercisable on October 17,2009.

REPRESENTSTHE MARCH 2, 2007 GRANT, ONE-THIRD OF WHICH BECAME EXERCISABLE ON MARCHZA)08, ONE-THIRD OF WHICH BECAME EXERCISABLE ON MARCH
2009, and the final third will become exercisable on March 2,2010.

Represents the June 1,2007 grant, one-third of which became exercisable on June 1, 2008, one-third of which became exercisable on June 1,2009, and
the final third will become exercisable on June 1,2010.

Represents A JuLy 1, 2008 GRANT, ONE-THIRD OF WHICH BECAME EXERCISABLE ON JULY 2009, ONE-THIRD OF WHICH WILL BECOME EXERCISABLE ON JuLy 1, 201(
and the final third will become exercisable on July 1,2011.

Represents A JUNE 1, 2009 GRANT, ONE-THIRD OF WHICH WILL BECOME EXERCISABLE ON JUNE, 2010, ONE-THIRD OF WHICH WILL BECOME EXERCISABLE ON JUNE 1
2011, and the final third will become exercisable on June 1,2012.

The CompANY HAS A 401(K) PLAN THAT COVERS ALL ELIGIBLE FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES OF TElOMPANY. CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE 401(K) PLAN ARE MADE BY PARTICIPANTS Tt
THEIR INDIVIDUAL ACCOUNTS THROUGH PAYROLL WITHHOLDING. ADDITIONALTHE 401(K) PLAN PROVIDES FOR THE COMPANY TO MAKE CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE 401 (®).AN IN
amounts at the discretion of management. The Company has not MADE ANY CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE 401(K) PLAN AND DOES NOT MAINTAIN ANY OTHRRTIREMENT PLAN
for its executives or employees.
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Non-Employee Director Compensation

Non-qualified

Fees Non-equity deferred
earned or Stock Option incentive plan compensation All other
paid in cash awards awards compensation earnings compensation Total
Name (€) $) $ $) $ %) $)
Dwight Babcock 50,500 - - - - 50,500
Robert Kauffman 64,500 - - - - 64,500
Thomas LaVoy 52,500 - - - - 52,500
Albert Smith 38,500 - - - - 38,500

BEGINNING IN FISCAL YEAR 2008, EACH NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR RECEIVED CASH COMPENSATION 0$3,000 PER MONTH.

IN ADDITION, EACH NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTO

RECEIVED $1,000 PER BOARD MEETING ATTENDED IN PERSON OR $500 PER BOARD MEETING ATTENDBOA TELEPHONE AND $500 PER COMMITTEE MEETING
attended. Beginning in March 2008, MRr. BaBcock (UNTIL His APPOINTMENT AS CEO oN FEBRUARY 18, 2009BEGAN RECEIVING AN ADDITIONAL $3,000 PER MONTH FC
SERVING AS CHAIRMAN, MRKAUFFMAN BEGAN RECEIVING AN ADDITIONAL $2,000 PER MONTH FOR SERVING AWICE-CHAIRMAN, AND MR. LAVOY BEGAN RECEIVING Al

additional $1,000 per month for serving as Audit Committee Chairman.

Each DIRECTOR HAD STOCK OPTIONS TO PURCHASE 150,000 SHARES OF THE COMPANY’S COMMOSTOCK OUTSTANDING AS OF JUNE 30, 2009, EXCEPT FOR MR. BABCOCK W1
WAS GRANTEDOPTIONS TO PURCHASE AN ADDITIONAL 100,000 SHARES OF THE COMPANY’S COMMON STOCION May 13, 2008 FOR SERVING AS INTERIM CEO AND A
additional 200,000 shares of THE COMPANY’S COMMON STOCK ON JUNE 1, 2009 FoRr SERVING AS CEO. THESE GRANTS OF 100,000 AND 200,000 SHARES ARE NOTED IN 1

executives’ Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End table above.
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation
As a smaller reporting company, the Company is not required to provide this disclosure.

Compensation Committee Report

As a smaller reporting company, the Company is not required to provide this disclosure.

ITEM 12 — SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The FOLLOWING TABLES SET FORTH CERTAIN INFORMATION REGARDING THE BENEFITIWINERSHIP OF THE COMPANY’S COMMON STOCK AND PREFERRED STOCK AS OF SEPTEMBE
14,2009 FOR (A) EACH PERSON KNOWN BY THE COMPANY TO BE A BENEFICIAL OWNER OF FIVBERCENT OR MORE OF THE OUTSTANDING COMMON OR PREFERRED STOCK OF
COMPANY, (B) EACH EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTOR AND NOMINEE FOR DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY, AX®) DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY AS
GROUP. As OF SEPTEMBER 14, 2009, THE CoMPANY HAD 22,942,088 SHARES OF COMMON STOCK AND 59,065 SHARES OF PREFERRED STOCK OUTSTANDING. EXCEPT
otherwise indicated below, the address for each listed beneficial owner is ¢/o IsoRay, Inc., 350 Hills Street, Suite 106, Richland, Washington 99354.
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Common Stock Share Ownership

Common Stock

Options
Common Shares  Exercisable Within Common Percent of
Name of Beneficial Owner Owned 60 Days Warrants Class (1)
Dwight Babcock (2) 130,856 450,000 12,500 2.54%
Lori Woods 8,000 126,665 - —%
Jonathan Hunt - 106,665 - —%
Robert Kauffman 63,802 150,000 - —%
Thomas LaVoy 40,423 150,000 - —%
Albert Smith 198,101 150,000 - 1.51%
Directors and Executive Officers as a group 441,182 1,133,330 12,500 6.59%

(1) PERCENTAGEOWNERSHIP IS BASED ON 22,942,088 sHARES OF COMMON STOCK OUTSTANDING ONSEPTEMBER 14, 2009. SHARES oF COMMON STOCK SUBJECT TC
STOCKOPTIONS OR WARRANTS WHICH ARE CURRENTLY EXERCISABLE OR WILL BEC®MERCISABLE WITHIN 60 DAYS AFTER SEPTEMBER 14, 2009 ARE DEEME
outstanding FOR COMPUTING THE PERCENTAGE OWNERSHIP OF THE PERSON OR GROUP HOLDING SUCBPTIONS OR WARRANTS, BUT ARE NOT DEEMED OUTSTANDING
computing the percentage ownership of any other person or group.

(2) Mr. Babcock’s common shares owned include 2,695 shares owned by his spouse.

Preferred Stock Share Ownership

Preferred
Shares Percent of
Name of Beneficial Owner Owned Class (1)
Aissata Sidibe (2) 20,000 33.86%
William and Karen Thompson Trust (3) 14,218 24.07%
Jamie Granger (4) 10,529 17.83%
Hostetler Living Trust (5) 9,479 16.05%
Leslie Fernandez (6) 3,688 6.24%

(1) Percentage ownership is based on 59,065 shares of Preferred Stock outstanding on September 14,2009.
(2) The address of Ms. Sidibe is 229 Lasiandra Ct, Richland, WA 99352.
(3) The address of the William and Karen Thompson Trust is 285 Dondero Way, San Jose, CA95119.

(4) The address of Jamie Granger is 53709 South Nine Canyon Road, Kennewick, WA 99337.

(5) The address of the Hostetler Living Trust is 9257 NE 175th Street, Bothell, WA 98011.
(6) The address of Leslie Fernandez is 2615 Scottsdale Place, Richland, WA 99352.

No officers or directors beneficially own shares of Preferred Stock.

ITEM 13 — CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

IsoRay Medical, Inc.’s patent rights to its Cs-131 process were acquired from Lane Bray, a shareholder and employee of the Company, and are subject to a 1%
royalty ON GROSS PROFITS AND CERTAIN CONTRACTUAL RESTRICTIONS. PURSUANHE®OYALTY AGREEMENT, THE COMPANY MUST ALSO PAY A ROYALTY OF 2% OF GROSS SAlas
DEFINED, FOR ANY SUB-ASSIGNMENTS OF THE AFORESAID PATENTED PROCESS TO ANYIIRD PARTIES. THE ROYALTY AGREEMENT WILL REMAIN IN FORCE UNTIL EXBIRATION OF THE
PATENTS ON THE ASSIGNED TECHNOLOGY, UNLESS EARLIER TERMINATIBDACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS OF THE UNDERLYING AGREEMENT. THE COMPANRECORDED ROYALT
expense 0f $20,063 and $21,219 for the years ended June 30,2009 and 2008, respectively, related to these payments.
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Roger GIRARD, THE COMPANY’Ss FORMER CHAIRMAN AND CEQ, HAD PERSONALLY GUARANTEED $20,000 THE BFEDD LOAN, WHICH WAS FUNDED IN DECEMBER 2004. Ir
EXCHANGE FORHIS PERSONAL GUARANTY, MR. GIRARD RECEIVED 5,728 SHARES OF COMMGROCK. AS A CONDITION OF HIS RESIGNATION IN FEBRUARY 2008, THE ompany
PREPAID $20,000 oN THE BFEDD LOAN AND OBTAINED MR. GIRARD’S RELEASE ANAR. GIRARD IN TURN SURRENDERED THE 5,728 SHARES TO THE COMPANY. PART OF HIS
SETTLEMENT, MR. GIRARD ALSO SURRENDERED 30,072 SHARES OF COMMONCK HE HAD RECEIVED IN 2004 FOR PERSONALLY GUARANTEEING A PORTION OF A LINECREDIT FO
the Company.

MR.GIRARD AND DAVID SWANBERG, THE COMPANY’S FORMER EXECUTIVE VP — OPERATIONS]ERSONALLY GUARANTEED A PORTION OF THE HAEIFC LOAN. AS PART OF T
resignations, the Company obtained their releases from these personal guarantees by prepaying $60,000 and $40,000, respectively.

Patent and Know-How Royalty License Agreement

Effective Augusrt 1, 1998, PaciFic MANAGEMENT AssOCIATES CORPORATION (PM AC) TRANSFERRED ENSTIRE RIGHT, TITLE AND INTEREST IN AN EXCLUSIVE LICENSE AGREEN
WITH DONALDLAWRENCE TO IsoRAY, LLC (A PREDECESSOR COMPANY) IN EXCHANGE FOR A MEMBERSHIP INTEREST. THE TERMS OF THE LICENSE AGREEMENT REQUIRE
PAYMENT OF A ROYALTY BASED ON THE NET FACTORY SALES PRICE, AS DEFINED IN THE AGREEMENTLIOENSED PRODUCT SALES. BECAUSE THE LICENSOR’S PATENT APPLICATI(
Was ULTIMATELY ABANDONED, ONLY A 1% “KNOW-HOW” ROYALTY BASED ON NET FACTORY SAPRECE, AS DEFINED, REMAINS APPLICABLE. TO DATE, MANAGEMENT BELIEVE!
that there have been no product sales incorporating the “know-how” and that therefore no royalty is due pursuant to the terms of the agreement. Management
believes that ultimately no royalties should be paid under this agreement as there is no intent to use this “know-how” in the future.

The LICENSOR OF THE LAWRENCE “KNOW-HOW” HAS DISPUTED MANAGEMENT’S CONTENTION THATISINOT USING THIS “KNOW-HOW”. ON SEPTEMBER 25, 2007 AND AGAIN ON
OcTOBER 31, 2007, THE COMPANY PARTICIPATED IN NONBINDING MEDIATION REGARDING THIS MATTER; HOWEVER, NO SETTLEMENT WAS REACHED WITH THE LAWRENCE FAM
TRUST. AFTER ADDITIONAL SETTLEMENT DISCUSSIONS WHICH ENDED IN APRA00S, THE PARTIES STILL FAILED TO REACH A SETTLEMENT. THE PARTIES MMMAND BINDING
arbitration at any time.

Director Independence

USING THE STANDARDS OF THE NYSE AMEX, THE COMPANY'S BOARD HAS DETERMINEDHAT MR. KAUFFMAN, MR. LAVOY, AND MR. SMITH EACH QUALIFY UNIEich
STANDARDS AS AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR. MR. KAUFFMAN, MR VoY AND MR. SMITH EACH MEET THE NYSE AMEX LISTING STANDARDS FOR INDEPENDENCBOTH AS A
DIRECTOR AND AS A MEMBER OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE, AND MR. KAUFFMAN ANMR. SMITH EACH MEET THE NYSE AMEX LISTING STANDARDS FOR INDEPENDENCE BOTH AS
DIRECTOR AND AS A MEMBER OF THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE. NO OTHEBIRECTORS ARE INDEPENDENT UNDER THESE STANDARDS. THE COMPANY DID N@DNSIDER ANY
relationship or transaction between itself and these independent directors not already disclosed in this report in making this determination.

ITEM 14 — PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
The Company paid or accrued the following fees in each of the prior two fiscal years to its principal accountant, DeCoria, Maichel & Teague, P.S.:

Year ended Year ended

June 30, June 30,
2009 2008
1. Audit fees $ 32,047 $ 42,107
2. Audit-related fees - -
3. Tax fees 7,900 7,750
4. All other fees — —
Totals $ 39,947 $ 49,857
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Audit FEES INCLUDE FEES FOR THE AUDIT OF OUR ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, REVIEWSWR QUARTERLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, AND RELATED CONSENTS FOR DOCUMENTS
with the SEC. Tax fees include fees for the preparation of our federal and state income tax returns.

AS PART OF ITS RESPONSIBILITY FOR OVERSIGHT OF THE INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLNCCOUNTANTS, THE AUDIT COMMITTEE HAS ESTABLISHED A PRE-APPROVAL POLICY F
engaging audit and permitted non-audit services provided by our independent registered public accountants, DeCoria, Maichel & Teague, P.S. In accordance
WITH THIS POLICY, EACH TYPE OF AUDIT, AUDIT-RELATED, TAX AND OTRERMITTED SERVICE TO BE PROVIDED BY THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS IS SPECIFICALLYDESCRIBED AND
EACH SUCH SERVICE, TOGETHER WITH A FEE LEVEL OR BUDGETED AMOUROR SUCH SERVICE, IS PRE-APPROVED BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE. THE AUDIT COMMITTEE HAS
DELEGATED AUTHORITY TO ITS CHAIRMAN TO PRE-APPROVE ADDITIONYON-AUDIT SERVICES (PROVIDED SUCH SERVICES ARE NOT PROHIBITED BY APPLICABLE LAW)P TO A PRE-
ESTABLISHED AGGREGATE DOLLAR LIMIT. ALL SERVIGRE-APPROVED BY THE CHAIRMAN OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MUST BE PRESENTED AT THBEXT AUDIT COMMITTEE
MEETING FOR REVIEW AND RATIFICATION. ALL OF TERVICES PROVIDED BY DECoORIA, MAICHEL & TEAGUE, P.S. DESCRIBED ABOVE WEREAPPROVED BY OUR AUDIT
Committee.

The CoMPANY’S PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT, DECORIA, MAICHEL & TEAGUE P.S., DID NOTENGAGE ANY OTHER PERSONS OR FIRMS OTHER THAN THE PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANfITH-
time, permanent employees.

ITEM 15 — EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(Except as otherwise indicated, all exhibits were previously filed)

Exhibit # Description
2.1 Merger Agreement dated as of May 27,2005, by and among Century Park Pictures Corporation, Century Park Transitory Subsidiary, Inc.,
certain shareholders and IsoRay Medical, Inc. incorporated by reference to the Form 8-K filed on August 3,2005.
2.2 CERTIFICATEOF MERGER, FILED WITH THE DELAWARE SECRETARY OF STATE ON JULY 28, 200QHRPORATED BY REFERENCE TO THE FORM 8-K FILED
August 3,2005.
3.1 ARTICLESOF INCORPORATION AND BY-LAWS ARE INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE TO THE EXHIBITS THE COMPANY'S REGISTRATION STATEMENT C
September 15, 1983.
32 Certificate oF DESIGNATION OF RIGHTS, PREFERENCES AND PRIVILEGES OF SERIES A AND BONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK, FILED WITH THE MINNES!
Secretary of State on June 29,2005 incorporated by reference to the Form 8-K filed on August 3,2005.
33 Restated and Amended Articles of Incorporation incorporated by reference to the Form 10-KSB filed on October 11,2005.
34 TEXTOF AMENDMENTS TO THE AMENDED AND RESTATED By-LAws oF THE COMPANY,INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE TO THE Form 8-K FILED !
February 7,2007.
35 Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Company dated as of January 8, 2008, INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE TO THE FOrRM 8-K FILED ON JaNU/
14,2008.
42 Intentionally Omitted.
43 Intentionally Omitted.
44 Intentionally Omitted.
45 Intentionally Omitted.
4.6 Intentionally Omitted.
4.7 Amended and Restated 2005 Stock Option Plan incorporated by reference to the Form S-8 filed on August 19,2005.
4.8 Amended and Restated 2005 Employee Stock Option Plan incorporated by reference to the Form S-8 filed on August 19,2005.
4.9 Intentionally Omitted.
4.10 Intentionally Omitted.
4.11 Form of IsoRay, Inc. Common Stock Purchase Warrant, incorporated by reference to the Form SB-2/Al1 filed on March 24,2006.
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4.12

2006 Director Stock Option Plan, incorporated by reference to the Form S-8 filed on August 18, 2006.

4.13 Intentionally Omitted.
4.14 Form oF IsoRaAy, INnc. CoMMON SToCcK PURCHASE WARRANT, DATED AUGUST 9, 2006JCORPORATED BY REFERENCE TO THE FORM 8-K FILED ON AUGU
18,2006.
4.15 Intentionally Omitted.
4.16 Amended and Restated 2006 Director Stock Option Plan, incorporated by reference to the Form S-8/Al filed on December 18, 2006.
4.17 Amended and Restated 2005 Stock Option Plan, incorporated by reference to the Form S-8/Al filed on December 18,2006.
4.18 Intentionally Omitted.
4.19 RIGHTS AGREEMENT, DATED AS OF FEBRUARY 1, 2007, BETWEEN THE COMPUTERSHARE TRE@OMPANY N.A., AS RIGHTS AGENT, INCORPORATED BY
reference to Exhibit 1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed on February 7,2007.
4.20 CERTIFICATEOF DESIGNATION OF RIGHTS, PREFERENCES AND PRIVILEGES OF SERIES C JUNIBRRTICIPATING PREFERRED STOCK, INCORPORATED I
reference to Exhibit 1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed February 7,2007.
421 2008 Employee Stock Option Plan, incorporated by reference to the Form S-8 filed on January 14,2008.
10.2 UNIVERSALLICENSE AGREEMENT, DATED NOVEMBER 26, 1997 BETWEEN DONALD C. LAWRENCE ANDVILLIAM J. STOKES OF PAcCIFIc MANAGEMEN
Associates Corporation, incorporated by reference to the Form SB-2 filed on November 10, 2005.
10.3 Royalty AGREEMENT OF INVENTION AND PATENT APPLICATION, DATED JuLy 12, 1999 BETWEERANE A. BRAY AND ISORAY LLC, INCORPORATED B
reference to the Form SB-2 filed on November 10, 2005.
104 Intentionally Omitted.
10.5 SECTION 510(k) CLEARANCE FROM THE FOOD AND DRUG ADMINISTRATION TO MARKET LAWRENCBERION MobEeL CS-1, DATED MaRrcH 28, 200:
incorporated by reference to the Form SB-2 filed on November 10, 2005.
10.6 Intentionally Omitted.
10.7 Intentionally Omitted.
10.8 Intentionally Omitted.
10.9 Development LoAN AGREEMENT FOR $230,000, DATED SEPTEMBER 15, 2004 BETWEENBENTON-FRANKLIN EcoNOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AN
IsoRay Medical, Inc., incorporated by reference to the Form SB-2/A2 filed on April 27,2006.
10.10 REGISTRYOF RADIOACTIVE SEALED SOURCES AND DEVICES SAFETY EVALUATION OF SEAISURCE, DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2004, INCORPORATED B'
reference to the Form SB-2/A2 filed on April 27,2006.
10.11 Intentionally Omitted.
10.12 Intentionally Omitted.
10.13 Intentionally Omitted.
10.14 Intentionally Omitted.
10.15 Intentionally Omitted.
10.16 Intentionally Omitted.
10.17 Intentionally Omitted.
10.18 STATEOF WASHINGTON RADIOACTIVE MATERIALS LICENSE DATED OCTOBER 6, 200iCORPORATED BY REFERENCE TO THE FORM SB-2 FILED ¢
November 10, 2005.
10.19 Express PRICING AGREEMENT NUMBER 219889, DATED OcTOBER 5, 2005 BETWEEN FEDEX ANOSORAY MEDICAL, INC., INCORPORATED BY REFEREN(
to the Form 10-QSB filed on November 21, 2005.
10.20 Intentionally Omitted.
10.21 Intentionally Omitted.
10.22 Agreement DATED AUGUST 9, 2005 BETWEEN THE CURATORS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF MissoumD IsoRAY MEDICAL, INC., INCORPORATED BY REFEREN(
to the Form SB-2/A2 filed on April 27,2006 (confidential treatment requested).
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10.23

Intentionally Omitted.

10.24 Intentionally Omitted.

10.25 Economic DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT, DATED DECEMBER 14, 2005, BY AND BETWEEN ISORAY,INC. AND THE POCATELLO DEVELOPMENT AUTHORT!
incorporated by reference to the Form 8-K filed on December 20, 2005.

10.26 License AGREEMENT, DATED FEBRUARY 2, 2006, BY AND BETWEEN ISORAY MEDICAL, INC. ANIBT SA, INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE TO THE FORM 8
filed on March 24,2006 (confidential treatment requested).

10.27 Intentionally Omitted.

10.28 Service AGREEMENT BETWEEN ISORAY, INC. AND ADVANCED CARE MEDICAL, INC., DATEMARCH 1, 2006, INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE TO THE Fo
SB-2/A2 filed on April 27,2006.

10.29 Intentionally Omitted.

10.30 Intentionally Omitted.

10.31 LoAN AGREEMENT, DATED JUNE 15, 2006, BY aND BETWEEN IsoRAy MEbpicaL, INc. ANDHE HANFORD ARea EcoNomic INVESTMENT Fun
Committee, incorporated by reference to the Form 8-K filed on June 21,2006.

10.32 Commercial SECURITY AGREEMENT, DATED JUNE 15,2006, BY AND BETWEEN ISORAY MEDICAIINC. AND THE HANFORD AREA EcONOMIC INVESTMEN
Fund Committee, incorporated by reference to the Form 8-K filed on June 21,2006.

10.33 CoMMON SToCK AND WARRANT PURCHASE AGREEMENT AMONG ISORAY, INC. AND THE OTBERVATORIES THERETO, DATED AuGuUSsT 9, 200
incorporated by reference to the Form 8-K filed on August 18,2006.

10.34 Intentionally Omitted.

10.35 Form or OFFICER AND DIRECTOR INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT, INCORPORATED BREFERENCE TO THE FORM SB-2 Post EFFECTIVE AMENDMENT No.
filed on October 13, 2006.

10.36 Intentionally Omitted.

10.37 Intentionally Omitted.

10.38 Form or SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT BY AND AMONG ISORAY, INC. AND THBUYERS DATED MARCH 22, 2007, INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
the Form 8-K filed on March 23,2007.

10.39 Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated March 21,2007, incorporated by reference to the Form 8-K filed on March 23,2007.

10.40 Intentionally Omitted.

10.41 Intentionally Omitted.

10.42 Intentionally Omitted.

10.43 Intentionally Omitted.

10.44 Intentionally Omitted.

10.45 Intentionally Omitted.

10.46 AMENDMENT No. 1 To LICENSE AGREEMENT, DATED OcTOBER 12, 2007, BY AND BETWEEN ISORAMEDICAL, INC. AND IBT, SA, INCORPORATED B
reference to the Form 8-K filed on October 17,2007.

10.47 Intentionally Omitted.

10.48 Intentionally Omitted.

10.49 Contract, DATED DECEMBER 10, 2008, BY AND BETWEEN IsoRAY MEDIcAL, INC. AND URALDIALLC, INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE TO THE FORM 8-
filed on December 12,2008 (confidential treatment requested for redacted portions).

10.50 DISTRIBUTION AGREEMENT, DATED FEBRUARY 18, 2009, BY AND BETWEEN ISORAY MEDICAL, INGND BIOCOMPATIBLES, INC., INCORPORATED BY
reference to the Form 8-K filed on February 24,2009 (confidential treatment requested for redacted portions).

10.51 AMENDMENT No. 1 TO SERVICE AGREEMENT, DATED FEBRUARY 18, 2009, BY AND BETWEEN IsoRAMEDICAL, INCc. AND BiocompaTIBLES, INC.,
incorporated by reference to the Form 8-K filed on February 24, 2009 (confidential treatment requested for redacted portions).

10.52 Executive EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN ISORAY, INC. AND JONATHAN HUNT, DATED MAY 192009, INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE TO THE For
8-K filed on May 26,2009.

10.53 Loan Covenant Waiver Letter dated August 24, 2009 from the Hanford Area Economic Investment Fund Committee, filed herewith.
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21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company, filed herewith.

23.1 Consent of DeCoria, Maichel & Teague, P.S,, filed herewith.

31.1 Certification Pursuant to Section 302 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f2002 - Chief Executive Officer, filed herewith.
312 Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of'the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f2002 - Chief Financial Officer, filed herewith.
32.1 Certifications Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f2002, filed herewith.

Reports on Form 8-K

On May 18,2009, the Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K announcing its financial results for the third quarter of fiscal year 2009.

On May 26, 2009, the Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K announcing an employment agreement entered into with Mr. Hunt.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
IsoRay, Inc.
Richland, Washington

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of IsoRay, Inc. and Sussiiaries (“THE CoMpaNY”) (SEE NOTE 1) As oF JUNE 30,2009 anp 2008.
and the RELATED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS, CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUAND CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEARS THEN ENDED. THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We CONDUCTED OUR AUDITS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE STANDARDS OF THE PUBLIC COMPAMYCCOUNTING OVERSIGHT BOARD (UNITED STATES). THOSE STANDARDS REQUIRE °
WE PLAN AND PERFORM THE AUDIT TO OBTAIN REASONABLE ASSURANCE ABOUT WHETHER THE FINANJIMIEMENTS ARE FREE OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT. AN AUDIT INCLUI
EXAMINING, ON A TEST BASIS, EVIDENCE SUPPORTING THE AMOUNTS AND DISCLOSURES IN THE FINANCIASTATEMENTS. AN AUDIT ALSO INCLUDES ASSESSING THE ACCOUNTI
PRINCIPLES USED AND SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES MADE BY MANAGEMENT, AS WELL AS EVALUATING THE OVERAIIKANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION. WE BELIEVE THAT OUR AUL
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

IN OUROPINION THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REFERRED TO ABOVE PRESENT FAIRLY, IN MIATERIAL RESPECTS, THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION OF ISORAY, INC. A
SUBSIDIARIES AS OF JUNE 30, 2009 aND 2008, AND THE CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF THEIRERATIONS AND THEIR CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEARS THEN ENDED, IN CONFORMITY V
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ DeCoria, Maichel & Teague, P.S.

Spokane, Washington
September 22,2009
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IsoRay, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 30,
2009 2008
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,990,744 §$ 4,820,033
Short-term investments 1,679,820 3,726,000
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $86,931 and $33,031, respectively 746,568 1,016,495
Inventory 789,246 899,964
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 151,077 267,001
Total current assets 6,357,455 10,729,493
Fixed assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization 4,891,484 6,040,641
Deferred financing costs, net of accumulated amortization 28,186 65,221
Licenses, net of accumulated amortization 11,867 455,646
Restricted cash 178,615 175,852
Other assets, net of accumulated amortization 273,959 345,040
Total assets $§ 11,741,566 § 17,811,893
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 698,882 $ 751,402
Accrued payroll and related taxes 188,703 344,612
Notes payable, due within one year 161,437 64,486
Capital lease obligations, due within one year - 25,560
Total current liabilities 1,049,022 1,186,060
Notes payable, due after one year 176,023 344,898
Asset retirement obligation, noncurrent 553,471 506,005
Total liabilities 1,778,516 2,036,963
Commitments and contingencies (Note 18)
Shareholders' equity:
Preferred stock, $.001 par value; 6,000,000 shares authorized:

Series A: 1,000,000 shares allocated; no shares issued and outstanding - -

Series B: 5,000,000 shares allocated; 59,065 shares issued and outstanding 59 59
Common stock, $.001 par value; 194,000,000 shares authorized;

22,942,088 shares issued and outstanding 22,942 22,942
Treasury stock, at cost, 13,200 and 5,000 shares (8,390) (3,655)
Additional paid-in capital 47,818,203 47,464,507
Accumulated deficit (37,869,764) (31,708,923)

Total shareholders' equity 9,963,050 15,774,930
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 11,741,566 § 17,811,893
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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IsoRay, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations

June 30,
2009 2008
Product sales $ 5,417,815 $ 7,158,690
Cost of product sales 5,771,147 7,310,124
Gross loss (353,332) (151,434)
Operating expenses:
Research and development expenses 958,665 1,358,075
Sales and marketing expenses 2,365,973 3,725,164
General and administrative expenses 2,792,611 3,568,048
Total operating expenses 6,117,249 8,651,287

Operating loss (6,470,581) (8,802,721)

Non-operating income (expense):

Interest income 111,047 612,077
Gain (loss) on fair value of short-term investments 274,000 (274,000)
Financing and interest expense (75,307) (92,863)
Non-operating income, net 309,740 245214
Net loss $  (6,160,841) $ (8,557,507)
Basic and diluted loss per share $ 027) $ (0.37)
Weighted average shares used in computing net loss per share:
Basic and diluted 22,942,088 23,028,075

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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IsoRay, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders' Equity

Series B Preferred Stock Common Stock Treasury Stock Additional Paid- Accumulated
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount in Capital Deficit Total

Balances at June 30,2007 59,065 $ 59 22,789,324  § 22,789 - 3 - 8 45,844,793 $ (23,151,416) $ 22,716,225
Issuance of common stock pursuant to

exercise of warrants 290,876 291 1,010,622 1,010,913
Issuance of common stock pursuant to

exercise of options 10,000 10 11,890 11,900
Repurchase of Company common stock

(see Note 13) 5,000 (3,655) (3,655)
Cancellation of shares (see Note 12) (148,112) (148) 148 -
Share-based compensation 597,054 597,054
Net loss (8,557,507) (8,557.507)
Balances at June 30,2008 59,065  § 59 22,942,088 § 22,942 5000 $ (3.655) $ 47464507 $ (31,708923) $ 15,774,930
Repurchase of Company common stock

(see Note 13) 8,200 (4,735) (4,735)
Share-based compensation 353,696 353,696
Net loss (6,160.,841) (6,160.841)
Balances at June 30,2009 59,065  § 59 22,942,088 § 22,942 13200 § (8.390) $ 47,818,203 $ (37.869.764) $  9.963.050

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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IsoRay, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets
Impairment of IBt license
Write-off of certain foreign patents and trademarks
Impairment of fixed assets
Amortization of deferred financing costs and other assets
Amortization of discount on short-term investments
(Gain) loss on fair value of short-term investments
Settlement of asset retirement obligation
Accretion of asset retirement obligation
Share-based compensation
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related taxes
Deferred revenue

Net cash used by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of fixed assets

Additions to licenses and other assets

Change in restricted cash

Purchase of short-term investments

Proceeds from the sale or maturity of short-term investments

Net cash provided by investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Principal payments on notes payable

Principal payments on capital lease obligations

Proceeds from cash sales of common stock, pursuant to exercise of warrants
Proceeds from cash sales of common stock, pursuant to exercise of options
Repurchase of Company common stock

Net cash (used) provided by financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest

Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Increase in fixed assets related to asset retirement obligation

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Year ended June 30,

2009

2008

(6,160,841) $ (8,557,507)
1,206,935 1,103,940
425,434 -
85,818 -
- 85,000
79,563 107,555
. (150,621)
(274,000) 274,000
- (135,120)
47,466 36,887
353,696 597,054
269,927 76,430
110,718 (19,130)
114,777 191,122
(52,520) (1,196,578)
(155,909) (114,456)
- (23,874)
(3,948.,936) (7,725,298)
(57,778) (3,090,934)
(37,773) (293,303)
(2,763) (175.852)
(1,679,820)  (13.273,653)
4,000,000 19,367,114
2221,866 2,533,372
(71,924) (168,074)
(25,560) (194,855)
X 1,010,913
. 11,900
(4,735) (3,655)
(102,219) 656,229
(1,829,289) (4,535,697)
4,820,033 9,355,730
2990744 $ 4820033
38,752 $ 63,818
-8 473,096

Source: IsoRay, Inc., 10-K, September 23, 2009

Powered by Morningstar® Document Research
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IsoRay, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30,2008 and 2007

1. Organization

Century Park PicTURES CORPORATION (CENTURY) WAS ORGANIZED UNDER MINNESOTA LAWI®&3. CENTURY HAD NO OPERATIONS DURING THE PERIOD FROM SEPTEMBER 3(
1999 through June 30,2005.

On July 28, 2005, IsoRAY MEDIcAL, INC. (MEDICAL) BECAME A WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY OKCENTURY PURSUANT TO A MERGER. CENTURY CHANGED ITS NAME TO IsoR
Inc. (IsoRay or the Company). In the merger, the Medical stockholders received approximately 82% of the then outstanding securities of the Company.

Medical, A DELAWARE CORPORATION, WAS INCORPORATED EFFECTIVE JUNE 15, 2004 TO DEVELOPANUFACTURE AND SELL ISOTOPE-BASED MEDICAL PRODUCTS AND DEVICES F
the treatment of cancer and other malignant diseases. Medical is headquartered in Richland, Washington.

IsSoRAY INTERNATIONAL LLC, A WASHINGTON LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, WAS FORMED ONOVEMBER 27, 2007 TO SERVE AS AN OWNER IN A RussiaN LLC THAT wi
distribute the Company’s products to the Russian market and also license the Company’s technology for use in manufacturing Cs-131 brachytherapy seeds in
Russia. During fiscal year 2009, the Company divested its ownership in the Russian LLC.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Consolidation

THE ACCOMPANYING CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS INCLUDE THE ACCOUNTS OF THEOMPANY AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES (COLLECTIVELY TH
Company). All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.
Short-Term Investments

THE COMPANY INVESTS CERTAIN EXCESS CASH IN MARKETABLE SECURITIES CONSISTINGPRIMARILY OF COMMERCIAL PAPER, AUCTION RATE SECURITIES, CERTIFICATES OF DEPOS
AND MONEY MARKET FUNDS. THE COMPANY CLASSIFIES ALL DEBT SECURITIES ASAVAILABLE-FOR-SALE” AND RECORDS THE DEBT SECURITIES AT FAIR VALUE WNREALIZED GAIN:
AND TEMPORARY UNREALIZED LOSSES INCLUDED IN OTHER COMPREHENSIVINCOME/LOSS WITHIN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY, IF MATERIAL. DECLINES IFAIR VALUES THAT A
considered other than temporary are recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

ErrecTiviEJuLy 1, 2008, THE COMPANY IMPLEMENTED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (SFAS) No. 157 Fair Value Measurements. SFAS 157
DEFINES FAIR VALUE,ESTABLISHES A FRAMEWORK FOR MEASURING FAIR VALUE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ACCOUNTRRGNCIPLES GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED STATES, A}
EXPANDS DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS. THE COMPANY ELECTED TO IMPLEMENT THISTATEMENT WITH THE ONE-YEAR DEFERRAL PERMITTED BY FASB S
PosiTioN (FSP) 157-2 FOR NONFINANCIAL ASSETS AND NONFINANCIAL LIABILITIES MEASURED AT PAARUE, EXCEPT THOSE THAT ARE RECOGNIZED OR DISCLOSED ON A RECURI
BASIS. THIS DEFERRAL APPLIES TO FIXED ASSETS AND INTANGIBLE ASSEMIPAIRMENT TESTING AND INITIAL RECOGNITION OF ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS FORICH FAIR VALUE
1S USED. THE COMPANY DOES NOT EXPECT ANY SIGNIFICANT IMPACT TO OUR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WHEN WE IMPLEMENT SFAS 157 FORHESE ASSETS AN
liabilities.

F-7

Source: IsoRay, Inc., 10-K, September 23, 2009 Powered by Momingstar® Document Research™

The information contained herein may not be copied, adapted or distributed and is not warranted to be accurate, complete or timely. The user assumes all risks for any damages or losses arising from any use of this information,
except to the extent such damages or losses cannot be limited or excluded by applicable law. Past financial performance is no guarantee of future results.



SFAS 157 REQUIRES DISCLOSURES THAT CATEGORIZE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT VAIRUE INTO ONE OF THREE DIFFERENT LEVELS DEPENDING ON THE OBSERVABILITY
the INPUTS EMPLOYED IN THE MEASUREMENT. LEVEL 1 INPUTS ARE QUOTED PRICESIN ACTIVE MARKETS FOR IDENTICAL ASSETS OR LIABILITIES. LEVEL 2 INPUIRE OBSERVABLI
INPUTS OTHER THAN QUOTED PRICES INCLUDED WITHIN LEVEL 1 FOR THBSET OR LIABILITY, EITHER DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY THROUGH MARKET-CORROBORWAETS. LEVEL 3
INPUTS ARE UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS FOR THE ASSET QRABILITY REFLECTING SIGNIFICANT MODIFICATIONS TO OBSERVABLE RELATED MARKET DARAOUR ASSUMPTIONS ABOU
pricing by market participants.

At June 30,2009, all of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities are accounted and reported at fair value using Level 1 inputs.

ALSOEFFECTIVE JuLy 1, 2008, THE CompaNy ADOPTED SFAS No. 159,The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities Including an
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115. THE STATEMENT ALLOWS ENTITIES TO VALUE MANY FINANCIENNSTRUMENTS AND CERTAIN OTHER ITEMS AT FAIR VALUE. SFAS 1
provides GUIDANCE OVER THE ELECTION OF THE FAIR VALUE OPTION, INCLUDING THE TIMING OF THEECTION AND SPECIFIC ITEMS ELIGIBLE FOR THE FAIR VALUKCCOUNTING. [i
THE FAIR VALUE OPTION IS ELECTED THEN UNREALIZED GAIM®/D LOSSES ARE REPORTED IN EARNINGS AT EACH SUBSEQUENT REPORTI®ATE. THE COMPANY ELECTED NOT T
measure any additional financial INSTRUMENTS OR OTHER ITEMS AT FAIR VALUE AS OF JULY 1, 2008 IN ACCORDANCE WBHAS 159. ACCORDINGLY, THE ADOPTION OF SFAS
159 DID NOT IMPACT OUR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. THE COMPANY DID ELECT TO FAWMALUE ITS ARS RIGHTS THAT WERE RECEIVED IN OCTOBER 2008 A
exercised in January 2009 in accordance with SFAS 159 (see Note 3).

Accounts Receivable

ACCOUNTSRECEIVABLE ARE STATED AT THE AMOUNT THAT MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY EXPECTS Q@LLECT FROM OUTSTANDING BALANCES. MANAGEMENT PROVIDES

probable UNCOLLECTIBLE AMOUNTS THROUGH AN ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTECZOUNTS. ADDITIONS TO THE ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS ARE BASKIMANAGEMENT’S
JUDGMENT, CONSIDERING HISTORICAL WRITE-OFFS, COLLECTIONS ANDRRENT CREDIT CONDITIONS. BALANCES WHICH REMAIN OUTSTANDING AFVERNAGEMENT HAS USED
REASONABLE COLLECTION EFFORTS ARE WRITTEN OFF THROUGHARGE TO THE ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS AND A CREDIT TO THE APPLIGCRIRINtS
receivable. Payments received subsequent to the time that an account is written off are considered bad debt recoveries.

Inventory

Inventory 1S REPORTED AT THE LOWER OF COST OR MARKET. COST OF RAW MATERIADE TERMINED USING THE WEIGHTED AVERAGE METHOD. COST OF WORK IN PROCEs&nd
finished goods is computed using standard cost, which approximates actual cost, on a first-in, first-out basis.

Fixed Assets
Fixed assets are capitalized and carried at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Normal maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. When
ASSETS ARE SOLD OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF, THE COST AXDCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ARE REMOVED FROM THE ACCOUNTS AND ANY RESULTING GAINLORS IS RECOGNIZED IN

operations.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Production equipment 3 to 7 years
Office equipment 2 to 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 2 to 5 years

Leasehold improvements and capital lease assets are amortized over the shorter of the life of the lease or the estimated useful life of the asset.
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Management oF THE COMPANY PERIODICALLY REVIEWS THE NET CARRYING VALUE OF ALL OFHQWIPMENT ON AN ASSET BY ASSET BASIS. THESE REVIEWS CONSIDER THE NE
realizable value of each asset to determine whether an impairment in value has occurred, and the need for any asset impairment write-down.

ALTHOUGHMANAGEMENT HAS MADE ITS BEST ESTIMATE OF THE FACTORS THAT AFFECT THE CARRYINGE BASED ON CURRENT CONDITIONS, IT IS REASONABLY POSSIBLE TH
CHANGES COULDOCCUR WHICH COULD ADVERSELY AFFECT MANAGEMENT'S ESTIMATE OF NET CASH FLGBX®ECTED TO BE GENERATED FROM ITS ASSETS, AND NECESSITATE ASi
impairment write-downs.

Deferred Financing Costs

Financing COSTS RELATED TO THE ACQUISITION OF DEBT ARE DEFERRED AND AMORTIZED OVERTERM OF THE RELATED DEBT USING THE EFFECTIVE INTEREST METHDeferred
FINANCING COSTSINCLUDE THE FAIR VALUE OF COMMON SHARES ISSUED TO CERTAIN SHAREHOLDERS FOR TIURRANTEE OF CERTAIN COMPANY DEBT (SEE NOTE 10) 1
accordance with Accounting PriNciPLES BoArD (APB) OpintoN No. 21, Interest on Receivables and Payables aND EMERGING IssUEs Task Force (EITF) Issue No
95-13, Classification of Debt Issue Costs in the Statement of Cash Flows. The value of the shares issued WAS THE ESTIMATED MARKET PRICE OF THE SHARES AS OF T
DATE OFISSUANCE. AMORTIZATION OF DEFERRED FINANCING COSTS, TOTALING $37,03%D $30,504 FOrR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 anD 2008, RESPECTIVELY,
included in financing expense on the statements of operations.

Licenses

Amortization OF LICENSES IS COMPUTED USING THE STRAIGHT-LINE METHOD OVER THE ESTIMATHDCONOMIC USEFUL LIVES OF THE ASSETS. IN FISCAL YEAR 2006, THE CoMPA?
ENTERED INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH IBT, SA, A BELGIAN comMPaNY (IBT) TO USE IBPROPRIETARY “INK JET” PRODUCTION PROCESS AND ITS PROPRIETARY POLYMER SEE
TECHNOLOGY FOR USE IN BRACHYTHERAPY PROCEDURES USING CESIUM-13{Cs-131). THE COMPANY PAID LICENSE FEES OF $225,000 AND $275,000 DURING FISCAL YEAR
2008 aND 2006, RESPECTIVELY. DURING FISCAL YEAROQ9, THE COMPANY DETERMINED THAT THE ENTIRE REMAINING VALUE OF THE IBT LICENB®RS IMPAIRED AND RECORDED
an impairment charge of $425,434 (see Note 7).

AMORTIZATION OF LICENSES WAS $30,067 AND $43,452 FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 AND 2008ESPECTIVELY. BASED ON THE LICENSES RECORDED AT JUNE 3
2009, AND ASSUMING NO SUBSEQUENT IMPAIRMENT OF THE UNDERLYING ASSETS, THE ANNUARMORTIZATION EXPENSE FOR EACH FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30 IS EXPECTED 1
be as follows: $11,867 for 2010, $0 for all years thereafter.

Other Assets

OTHERASSETS, WHICH INCLUDE DEFERRED CHARGES AND PATENTS, ARE STATED AT COST, RESUMULATED AMORTIZATION. AMORTIZATION OF PATENTS IS COMPUTED USINGthe
STRAIGHT-LINE METHOD OVER THE ESTIMATED ECONOMIC USEFUL LIVES OF THESETS. THE COMPANY PERIODICALLY REVIEWS THE CARRYING VALUES GRATENTS AND ANY
impairments are recognized when the expected future operating cash flows to be derived from such assets are less than their carrying value.

Based on THE PATENTS AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS RECORDED IN OTHER ASSETS AT JUNE2ZI9, AND ASSUMING NO SUBSEQUENT IMPAIRMENT OF THE UNDERLYING ASSETS
THE ANNUAIAMORTIZATION EXPENSE FOR EACH FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30 IS EXPECTED TO BE AOLLOWS: $16,861 ror 2010, $15,139 ror 2011, $15,139 For 20]

$15,139 for2013,$15,139 for2014, and $157,768 thereafter.

Asset Retirement Obligation

THE FAIRVALUE OF THE FUTURE RETIREMENT COSTS OF THE COMPANY’S LEASED ASSETS ARE RECORBED LIABILITY ON A DISCOUNTED BASIS WHEN THEY ARE INCURRED AND
equivalent AMOUNT IS CAPITALIZED TO PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT. THE INITIAL RECORDEDBLIGATION IS DISCOUNTED USING THE COMPANY’S CREDIT-ADJUSTED RISK FREE-RA
and IS REVIEWED PERIODICALLY FOR CHANGES IN THE ESTIMATED FUTURE COSTS UNDERLYINGE OBLIGATION. THE COMPANY AMORTIZES THE INITIAL AMOUNT CAPITALIZEI1O
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND RECOGNIZES ACCRETION EXPENSE IN CONNECTION WITHTHE DISCOUNTED LIABILITY OVER THE ESTIMATED REMAINING USEFUL LIFE OF THE LEA
assets.
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IN FiscALYEAR 2006, THE COMPANY ESTABLISHED AN INITIAL ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION $63,040 WHICH REPRESENTED THE DISCOUNTED COST OF CLEANUP THAT 1
Company ANTICIPATED IT WOULD HAVE TO INCUR AT THE END OF ITS EQUIPMENT AND PROPERTIYEASES IN ITS OLD PRODUCTION FACILITY. THIS AMOUNT WAS DETERMINEbased
ON DISCUSSIONS WITH QUALIFIED PRODUCTION PERSONNEL AND ON HISTORICAEVIDENCE. DURING FISCAL YEAR 2007, THE COMPANY REEVALUATED ITSBLIGATIONS BASED ON
DISCUSSIONS WITH THE WASHINGTON DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH ANDETERMINED THAT THE INITIAL ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION SHOULD BE INCREASED ABY ADDITIONA
$56,120. DURING THE SECOND QUARTER OF FISCAL YEAR 200i8if COMPANY REMOVED ALL RADIOACTIVE RESIDUALS AND TENANT IMPROVEMENTS FROM ISD PRODUCTION
facility and returned the facility to the lessor. The Company had an asset retirement obligation of $135,120 accrued for this facility but total costs incurred to
DECOMMISSION THE FACILITY WERE $274,163 RESULTING INAN ADDITIONAL EXPENSE OF $139,043 THAT IS INCLUDED IN COST OF PRODUCB®LD. THE ADDITIONAL EXPENSI
WAS MAINLY DUE TO UNANTICIPATED CONSTRUCTION COSTS TO RETURN THE FACILITY TO ITS PREVIOUS STATE. (TBMPANY ORIGINALLY BELIEVED THAT THE LESSOR WOULD RET;
many of the leasehold improvements in the building, but the lessor instead required their removal.

IN SEPTEMBER 2007, ANOTHER ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION OF $473,096 WAS ESTABLISHRPPRESENTING THE DISCOUNTED COST OF THE COMPANY’S ESTIMATE OF TI
OBLIGATIONS TOREMOVE ANY RESIDUAL RADIOACTIVE MATERIALS AND ALL LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS AT FNIE OF THE LEASE TERM AT ITS NEW PRODUCTION FACILITY. T
ESTIMATE WAS DEVELOPED BY QUALIFIED PRODUCTION PERSONNEL AND THE GENERAL CONTRACTORTBE NEW FACILITY. THE COMPANY HAS REVIEWED THE ESTIMATE AGAI
based on its experience with decommissioning its old facility and believes that the original estimate continues to be applicable.

During the years ended June 30,2009 and 2008, the asset retirement obligations changed as follows:

2009 2008
Beginning balance $ 506,005 $ 131,142
New obligation - 473,096
Settlement of existing obligation - (135,120)
Accretion of discount 47,466 36,887
Ending balance $ 553471 % 506,005

Because THE COMPANY DOES NOT EXPECT TO INCUR ANY EXPENSES RELATED TO ITS ASSRETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS IN FISCAL YEAR 2010, THE ENTIRE BALANCE AS OF JUNE
2009 is classified as a noncurrent liability.

Financial Instruments
The COMPANY DISCLOSES THE FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, BOTH ASSETS ANDABILITIES, RECOGNIZED AND NOT RECOGNIZED IN THE BALANCE SHEET, FOR WHICH I
PRACTICABLE TO ESTIMATE THE FAIR VALUE. THE FAIR VALUE OF A FINANAMSTRUMENT IS THE AMOUNT AT WHICH THE INSTRUMENT COULD BE EXCHANGED IN A CURR

transaction between willing parties, other than a forced liquidation sale.

THE CARRYING AMOUNTS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, INCLUDING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENSBORT-TERM INVESTMENTS, ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, NO1
payable, and capital lease obligations, approximated their fair values at June 30,2009 and 2008.

Revenue Recognition

THE CoMPANY APPLIES THE PROVISIONS OF SEC STAFF AccOUNTING BULLETIN (SAB)No. 104, Revenue Recognition. SAB No. 104 PROVIDES GUIDANCE ON THE
recognition, PRESENTATION AND DISCLOSURE OF REVENUE IN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. SABo. 104 OUTLINES THE BASIC CRITERIA THAT MUST BE MET TO RECOGNIZE REVE}
AND PROVIDES GUIDANCE FOR THE DISCLOSURE OF REVENUE RECOGNITIGROLICIES. THE COMPANY RECOGNIZES REVENUE RELATED TO PRODUCT SALEWHEN (I) PERSUASIVE
evidence of an arrangement exists, (ii) shipment has occurred, (iii) the fee is fixed or determinable, and (iv) collectability is reasonably assured.
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Revenue FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 AND 2008 WAS DERIVED SOLELY FROM SADESTHE PROXCELAN Cs-131 BRACHYTHERAPY SEED, WHICH IS USED IN T
TREATMENT OEANCER. THE COMPANY RECOGNIZES REVENUE ONCE THE PRODUCT HAS BEENSHIPPED TO THE CUSTOMER. PREPAYMENTS, IF ANY, RECEIVED FROM CUSTOMER
PRIOR TO THE TIME THAT PRODUCTS ARE SHIPPED ARE RECORDED AS DEFERRED REVENUETHESE CASES, WHEN THE RELATED PRODUCTS ARE SHIPPED, THE AMOUNT RECORDEL
deferred revenue is then recognized as revenue. The Company accrues for sales returns and other allowances at the time of SHIPMENT. ALTHOUGH THE COMPANY
does not have an extensive operating HISTORY UPON WHICH TO DEVELOP SALES RETURNS ESTIMATES, WE HAVE USED TEKPERTISE OF OUR MANAGEMENT TEAM, PARTICULARI
those with extensive industry experience and knowledge, to develop a proper methodology.

Shipping and Handling Costs

SHIPPING COSTS INCLUDE CHARGES ASSOCIATED WITH DELIVERY OF GOODS FROM THE COMPANYFACILITIES TO ITS CUSTOMERS AND ARE REFLECTED IN COST OF PROL
sales. Shipping costs paid to the Company by our customers are classified as product sales.

Stock-Based Compensation

The COMPANY MEASURES AND RECOGNIZES EXPENSE FOR ALL SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS AT FAIRALUE. THE COMPANY USES THE BLACK-SCHOLES OPTION VALUATION MODEL 1T
ESTIMATE FAIR VALUE FOR ALL STOCK OPTIONS ON THE DATE OF GRANT. STORK OPTIONS THAT VEST OVER TIME, THE COMPANY RECOGNIZES COMPENSATION COST ON Atraight-
line basis over the requisite service period for the entire award.

Research and Development Costs

RESEARCHAND DEVELOPMENT COSTS, INCLUDING SALARIES, RESEARCH MATERIALS, ADMINISTRATBRPENSES AND CONTRACTOR FEES, ARE CHARGED TO OPERATIONS
incurred. The cost of equipment used in research and development ACTIVITIES WHICH HAS ALTERNATIVE USES IS CAPITALIZED AS PART OF FIXED ASSETS ANDT TREATED ¢
AN EXPENSE IN THE PERIOD ACQUIRED. DEPRECIATION OFCAPITALIZED EQUIPMENT USED TO PERFORM RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT IS CLASSIFIED ARESEARCH AN
development expense in the year recognized.

Advertising and Marketing Costs

ADVERTISING COSTS ARE EXPENSED AS INCURRED EXCEPT FOR THE COST OF TRADESHOWS AND RELMMRKETING MATERIALS WHICH ARE DEFERRED UNTIL THE TRADES
OCCURS. ADVERTISING AND MARKETING COSTS EXPENSED (INCLUDINGTRADESHOWS) WERE $376,319 anD $598,663 FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 AR608,
respectively. Marketing costs of $5,800 were included in prepaid expenses at June 30, 2009.

Legal Contingencies

IN THEORDINARY COURSE OF BUSINESS, THE COMPANY IS INVOLVED IN LEGAL PROCEEDINGSNVOLVING CONTRACTUAL AND EMPLOYMENT RELATIONSHIPS, PRODUCT LIABIL
claims, PATENT RIGHTS, ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS, AND A VARIETY OF OTNBRTERS. THE COMPANY IS ALSO SUBJECT TO VARIOUS LOCAL, STATE, ANBDERAL ENVIRONMENTZ
REGULATIONS AND LAWS DUE TO THE ISOTOPES USED TO PRODUQEIE COMPANY’S PRODUCT. AS PART OF NORMAL OPERATIONS, AMOUNTS AREXPENDED TO ENSURE THAT TH
COMPANY IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THESE LAWS AND REGULATIONS. WHILE THERE HAVE BEEN NO REPORTABLE INCIDENTS ORMPLIANCE ISSUES, THE COMPANY BELIEVES THAT
IF IT RELOCATES ITS CURRENRODUCTION FACILITIES THEN CERTAIN DECOMMISSIONING EXPENSES WILL BE INCURRED ANDHAS RECORDED AN ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION

these expenses.

The COMPANY RECORDS CONTINGENT LIABILITIES RESULTING FROM ASSERTED AND UNASSERKHIAIMS AGAINST IT, WHEN IT IS PROBABLE THAT A LIABILITY HAS BEEN INCURRED A
THE AMOUNT OF THE LOSS IS REASONABLY ESTIMABLE. ESTIMATING PROBABIIOSSES REQUIRES ANALYSIS OF MULTIPLE FACTORS, IN SOME CASES INCLUDING JUDGMENTSBOUT THI
POTENTIAL ACTIONS OF THIRD-PARTY CLAIMANTS ANDURTS. THEREFORE, ACTUAL LOSSES IN ANY FUTURE PERIOD ARE INHERENNCERTAIN. CURRENTLY, THE COMPANY DOES NC
BELIEVE ANY PROBABLE LEGAIPROCEEDINGS OR CLAIMS WILL HAVE A MATERIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON ITS FINANCPOBITION OR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS. HOWEVER, IF ACTUAL
ESTIMATED PROBABLE FUTURE LOSSES EXCEED THE COMPANY’S RECORDED LIABILITY FOR SUCH CLAINS,WOULD RECORD ADDITIONAL CHARGES AS OTHER EXPENSE DURING

period in which the actual loss or change in estimate occurred.
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Income Taxes

Income TAXES ARE ACCOUNTED FOR UNDER THE LIABILITY METHOD. UNDER MESHOD, THE COMPANY PROVIDES DEFERRED INCOME TAXES FOR TEMPORARY DIFFERENCHHhat
WILL RESULT IN TAXABLE OR DEDUCTIBLE AMOUNTS IN FUTURE YEARS BASED ONRHPBRTING OF CERTAIN COSTS IN DIFFERENT PERIODS FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENT ANDOME TAX
PURPOSES. THIS METHOD ALSO REQUIRES THE RECOGNITION OFUTURE TAX BENEFITS SUCH AS NET OPERATING LOSS CARRYFORWARDS, TO THE EXTENRHMAEATION OF SUC.
BENEFITS IS MORE LIKELY THAN NOT. DEFERRED TASSSETS AND LIABILITIES ARE MEASURED USING ENACTED TAX RATES EXPECTED TO APPLYTAXABLE INCOME IN THE YEARS It
WHICH THOSE TEMPORARY DIFFERENCES ARE EXPECTED TRE RECOVERED OR SETTLED. THE EFFECT ON DEFERRED TAX ASSETS IAMBILITIES OF A CHANGE IN TAX RATES
recognized in operations in the period that includes the enactment of the change.

On Jury 1, 2007, THE COMPANY ADOPTED FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD INTERPRETATINO. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes (FIN No.
48). FIN No. 48 CLARIFIESTHE ACCOUNTING FOR UNCERTAINTY IN INCOME TAXES RECOGNIZED IN ACCORDANCE WISFAS No. 109 Accounting for Income Taxes,
PRESCRIBING A RECOGNITION THRESHOLD AND MEASUREMENATTRIBUTE FOR THE RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT OF A TAX POSITION TAKENEWRECTED TO BE TAKEN IN A TA:
RETURN. IN THE COURSE OF IBSSESSMENT, MANAGEMENT HAS DETERMINED THAT THE COMPANY, ITS SUBSIDIARY, AND ITBREDECESSORS ARE SUBJECT TO EXAMINATION OF THE
income tax filings in the United States and state jurisdictions for the 2005 through 2008 tax YEARS. IN THE EVENT THAT THE COMPANY IS ASSESSED PENALTIES AND
interest, penalties will be charged to other operating expense and interest will be charged to interest expense.

The CompaNy ADOPTED FIN No. 48 USING THE MODIFIED PROSPECTIVE TRANSITION METHOD, WHICH REQUIRES THE APPLICATION OF THE ACCOUNTING STANDARD AS OF JULY
2007. THERE WAS NO IMPACT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FARIE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 AS A RESULT OF THE ADOPTION OF FIN NE8. IN ACCORDANCI
WITH THE MODIFIED PROSPECTIVE TRANSITION METHOD,THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR PRIOR PERIODS HAVE NOT BEEN RESTATED TO REFLEND,DO NOT INCLUDE, THE IMPACT O
FIN No. 48.

Income (Loss) Per Common Share

Basic EARNINGS PER SHARE IS CALCULATED BY DIVIDING NET INCOME (LOSS) AVAILABLE T®MMON SHAREHOLDERS BY THE WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF COMMON SHARE
OUTSTANDING,AND DOES NOT INCLUDE THE IMPACT OF ANY POTENTIALLY DILUTIVE COMMON STOCKQUIVALENTS. COMMON STOCK EQUIVALENTS, INCLUDING WARRANTS Al
OPTIONS TO PURCHASE THE COMPANY'S COMMON STOCK, ARE EXCLUDED FROM THE CALCULATIONS WHEMIEIR EFFECT IS ANTIDILUTIVE. AT JUNE 30, 2009 anDp 2008, T
CALCULATION OF DILUTED WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES DOES NOT INCLUDE PREFERRED STO@MMON STOCK WARRANTS OR OPTIONS THAT ARE POTENTIALLY CONVERTIBLE
common stock as those would be antidilutive due to the Company’s net loss position.

Securities that could be dilutive in the future as of June 30,2009 and 2008 are as follows:

2009 2008
Preferred stock 59,065 59,065
Common stock warrants 3,216,644 3,245,082
Common stock options 2,708,166 2,803,393
Total potential dilutive securities 5,983,875 6,107,540
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Subsequent Events

Effective ApriL 1, 2009, THE CompaNY ADOPTED SFAS No. 165, Subsequent Events. THIS STATEMENT ESTABLISHES THE ACCOUNTING FOR, ANDISCLOSURE OF, MATERIA
EVENTS THAT OCCUR AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE, BEFDRE THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE ISSUED. IN GENERAL, THESE EVEWISL BE RECOGNIZED IF THE CONDITIO!
EXISTED AT THE DATE OF THE BALANCE SHEEAND WILL NOT BE RECOGNIZED IF THE CONDITION DID NOT EXIST AT THE BALANCE SHEFATE. DISCLOSURE IS REQUIRED F(
NONRECOGNIZED EVENTS IF REQUIRED T®EEP THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FROM BEING MISLEADING. THE GUIDANCE INTHIS STATEMENT IS VERY SIMILAR TO CURRENT GUIDAN
PROVIDED IN ACCOUNTING LITERATURE AND, THEREFORE, WILL NOT RESULT IN SIGNIFICANT CHANGEBRAKTICE. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS HAVE BEEN EVALUATED THROUGH THE D.
our financial statements were issued—the filing time and date of our 2009 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Use of Estimates

The PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLEFEENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA REQUIRES MANAGEMENT
the COMPANY TO MAKE ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS THAT AFFECT THE AMOUNTS REPORTED IRHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOMPANYING NOTES. ACCORDINGLY, ACTU
results could differ from those estimates and affect the amounts reported in the financial statements.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In DEcEMBER 2007, THE FASB 1ssUED STATEMENT No. 160,Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements — an amendment of ARB No. 51
(SFAS 160). THE STATEMENT REQUIRES NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS OR MINORINYERESTS TO BE TREATED AS A SEPARATE COMPONENT OF EQUITY, NOT AS A LIABILITOtheer
ITEM OUTSIDE OF PERMANENT EQUITY. UPON A LOSS OF CONTROL, THRTEREST SOLD, AS WELL AS ANY INTEREST RETAINED, IS REQUIRED TO BE MEASURHBIRTVALUE, WITH AN
GAIN OR LOSS RECOGNIZED IN EARNINGS. BASED ONSFAS 160, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES WILL NOT CHANGE FOR SUBSEQUENT PURCHASE SXRLES TRANSACTIONS WI'
NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS AS LONG AS CONTROMASNTAINED. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE FAIR VALUE OF CONSIDERATION PAIDR RECEIVED AND THE CARRYING VALUE
NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS ARE TO BECOGNIZED AS AN ADJUSTMENT TO THE PARENT INTEREST’S EQUITY. SFAS 160EFFECTIVE FOR FISCAL YEARS BEGINNING ON OR AF
DECEMBER 15, 2008 AND EARLIER ADOPTION IS PROHIBITED. THE ADOPTION OF THIS STATEMENT IS NOEXPECTED TO HAVE A MATERIAL EFFECT ON THE COMPANY’S FINANCL
statements.

IN May 2008, FASB 1ssuep SFAS No. 162, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. SFAS 162 IDENTIFIES THE SOURCES OFaccounting
PRINCIPLES AND THE FRAMEWORK FOR SELECTING THE PRINCIPLES TO BE USHN THE PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NONGOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES THAT prasented
IN CONFORMITY WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES IN THEINITED STATES. IT wAS EFFECTIVE NOVEMBER 15, 2008, FOLLOWING TISEC’S APPROVAL OF THI
PusLic ComMPANY ACCOUNTING OVERSIGHT BOARD AMENDMENTS TO AUSEcTION 411, The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity With Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles. The adoption of this statement did not have a material effect on the Company’s financial statements.

THe FASB 1ssuep SFAS No. 168, The FASB Standards Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles—a replacement of
FASB Statement 162, IN LATEJUNE 2009. THE FASB AccoUNTING STANDARDS CODIFICATION WILIBBECOME THE SOURCE OF AUTHORITATIVE U.S. GENERALLY ACCEPT
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES (GAAP) AND WILL SUPERSEDE ALL THEN-EXISTING NON-SEC ACCOUNTING AMBPORTING STANDARDS ON THE EFFECTIVE DATE, SEPTEMBER |
2009. THE CODIFICATION WILL NOT CHANGE GAAP, BUT CONSOLIDATES IT INT® LOGICAL AND CONSISTENT STRUCTURE. THE COMPANY WILL BE REQUIREDREYISE OUF
references to GAAP in our financial statements beginning with the first quarter of fiscal year 2010.
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3. Short-Term Investments
The Company’s short-term investments consisted of the following at June 30,2009 and 2008:

2009 2008
Certificates of deposit $ 1,679,820 $ -
Municipal debt securities — 3,726,000
$ 1,679,820 $ 3,726,000

BEGINNING IN FEBRUARY 2008, THE UNCERTAINTIES IN THE CREDIT MARKETS PREVENTED THE COMPANROM LIQUIDATING ITS ARS (CONSISTING OF VARIOUS STUDENT LO:
PORTFOLIOS). THE SECURITIES CONTINUED TO PAY INTEREST ACCORDING TRMEIR STATED TERMS AND WERE ALL AAA/AAA RATED INVESTMENTS. THROSE&PTEMBER 2008, THE
Company classified these securities as available-for-sale AND RECORDED THEM AT FAIR MARKET VALUE. THE COMPANY RECOGNIZED BECLINE IN THE FAIR VALUE OF THES
securities (which was caused by the market uncertainties) as other than temporary and recorded the loss in the statement of operations.

In OctoBER 2008, THE COMPANY ACCEPTED AN OFFER FROM UBS TO PROVIDE THE COMPANY WITKERTAIN RIGHTS PERTAINING TO OUR ARS. THE RIGHTS WERE A PUT OPTIO
ALLOWING THE COMPANY TO SELL ITS ARS TO UBS AT PAR VALUE AT ANY TIME FROMNUARY 2, 2009 TO JANUARY 4,2011. THE RIGHTS DID NOT MEET TIEFINITION OF A
DERIVATIVE UNDER SFAS No. 133,4ccounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, AS THERE IS NO NET SETTLEMENIETHOD. THE RIGHTS ALSO DID NO*
MEET THE DEFINITION OF A SECURITYUNDER SFAS No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities. THE COMPANY ELECTED TO MEASUR
the Rights under the fair value option of SFAS 159 on the date they were received (see Note 2) and classified them as short-term investments.

AvLso INOcToBER 2008, THE COMPANY RECLASSIFIED ITS ARS FROM AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE TRADING AND RECORDED ALL CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE TO THESE SECURITIES IN
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS. THE COMPANY FELT THIS RECLASSIFICATION WASPPROPRIATE GIVEN THAT IT ACCEPTED THE OFFER OF THE RIGHTS, IT DID NOT INTENDH@LD THESI

investments to maturity, and there was no longer an active market to permit their sale in the normal course of business.

On JANUARY 2, 2009, THE COMPANY EXERCISED ITS PUT OPTION WITH UBS TO REDEEM ITS ARS\T PAR VALUE. THE ENTIRE $4 MILLION OF CASH WAS DEPOSITED INTO TI
Company’s account on January 5,2009.

4. Inventory

Inventory consisted of the following at June 30,2009 and 2008:

2009 2008
Raw materials $ 609,932 §$ 696,958
Work in process 155,827 191,684
Finished goods 23,487 11,322

$ 789,246 $ 899,964

The cost OF MATERIALS AND PRODUCTION COSTS CONTAINED IN INVENTORY THAT ARE NOT USEABUE TO THE PASSAGE OF TIME, AND RESULTING LOSS OF BIO-EFFECTIVENESS, 2
written off to cost of product sales at the time it is determined that the product is not useable.

In June 2007, THE COMPANY PURCHASED $469,758 OF ENRICHED BARIUM THAT WILL BE USED INFUTURE PRODUCTION OF OUR ISOTOPE. THE ENRICHED BARIUM IS HELD AT .
off-site storage location in Richland, Washington and is included in raw materials at June 30, 2009 and 2008.

F-14

Source: IsoRay, Inc., 10-K, September 23, 2009 Powered by Momingstar® Document Research™

The information contained herein may not be copied, adapted or distributed and is not warranted to be accurate, complete or timely. The user assumes all risks for any damages or losses arising from any use of this information,
except to the extent such damages or losses cannot be limited or excluded by applicable law. Past financial performance is no guarantee of future results.



5. Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses consisted of the following at June 30,2009 and 2008:

2009 2008
Prepaid contract work $ - 8 60,107
Prepaid insurance 30,625 38,059
Prepaid rent 24,402 24,199
Other prepaid expenses 61,900 106,960
Other current assets 34,150 37,676

$ 151,077 $ 267,001

6. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets consisted of the following at June 30,2009 and 2008:

2009 2008
Production equipment $ 3,089,793 § 2,786,748
Office equipment 169,890 153,215
Furniture and fixtures 148,265 148,265
Leasehold improvements (a) 4,643,965 4,622,136
Capital lease assets (b) - 222911
Construction in progress 3,359 64,219

8,055,272 7,997,494
Less accumulated depreciation (3,163,788) (1,956,853)

$ 4891484 $§ 6,040,641

(a) Balance includes asset retirement addition of $473,096 as of June 30,2009 and 2008.

(b)  TuE COMPANY’S CAPITAL LEASES WERE PROPERLY TERMINATED DURING FISCAL YER009. THE COMPANY NOW HAS OWNERSHIP OF THESE ASSETS ANT
CONTINUES TO USE THEM IN ITS FACILITIES. THEREFORE, THE COMPANRECLASSIFIED THESE ASSETS TO PRODUCTION EQUIPMENT DURING FISCAL YE
2009. Accumulated amortization of capital lease assets totaled $0 and $166,328 at June 30,2009 and 2008, respectively.

Depreciation and amortization expense related to fixed assets totaled $1,206,935 and $1,103,940 for 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The COMPANY RECORDED AN IMPAIRMENT CHARGE OF $85,000 IN FISCAL YEAR 2008 FOR A HQUELL THAT IS NOT CURRENTLY IN USE. THIS IMPAIRMENT CHARGE IS INCLUDHR
cost of product sales on the Consolidated Statement of Operations. The Company estimated its fair market value based on values for similar assets.

7. Impairment of IBt License

In DEcEMBER 2008, THE COMPANY REEVALUATED ITS LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH INTERNATIONBRACHYTHERAPY SA (IBT) IN CONNECTION WITH AN OVERALL REVIEW OF
PRESENT COSTSTRUCTURE AND PROJECTED MARKET AND MANUFACTURING STRATEGIES (SEE NOTE |8FGRRHER DETAILS ON THE IBT LICENSE AGREEMENT). MANAGEM
DETERMINED THROUGH THIS REVIEW THAT IT DOES NOT CURRENTLY INTEND TO UTILIZE THE IBT LIGENSART OF ITS MARKET STRATEGY DUE TO THE COST OF REVAMPING
manufacturing PROCESS TO INCORPORATE THE TECHNOLOGY AND AS THERE CAN BE NO ASSURANCE THABICIANS WOULD ACCEPT THIS NEW TECHNOLOGY WITHOUT EXTENSI\
EDUCATION ANDMARKETING COSTS. HOWEVER, THE COMPANY DOES NOT INTEND TO CANCEL THECENSE AGREEMENT AT THIS TIME; THEREFORE, THE LICENSE WAS REVIEWEL
TERMS OFAN “ABANDONED ASSET” FOR PURPOSES OF SFAS No. 144dccounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. As THERE ARE Nanticipated
FUTURE REVENUES FROM THE LICENSE AND THE COMPANY CANNOT SELLTRRNSFER THE LICENSE, IT WAS DETERMINED THAT THE ENTIRE VALUE WRSIRED. THEREFORE, THE
Company recorded an impairment charge of $425,434 in December 2008 that is included in cost of product sales for the year ended June 30,2009.
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8. Restricted Cash

The Washington Department of Health, effective October 2007, has required the Company to provide collateral for the decommissioning ofits facility. To
satisfy this requirement, the Company funded two certificates of deposits (CDs) totaling $172,500 in separate banks. The CDs both have original maturities
of three months but are classified as long-term as the Company does not anticipate decommissioning the facility until the end of the current lease plus the
lease option periods. Interest earned on the CDs is rolled-over at the maturity of each CD and becomes part of the restricted cash balance. Interest earned and
added to restricted cash during the fiscal year ended June 30,2009 and 2008 was $2,763 and $3,352, respectively. These funds will be used to settle a
portion of the Company’s remaining asset retirement obligations (Note 2).

9. Other Assets

Other assets, net of accumulated amortization, consisted of the following at June 30,2009 and 2008:

2009 2008
Deferred charges $ 40,496 $ 322,319
Patents and trademarks, net of accumulated amortization of $25,244 and $19,094 233,463 22,721

$ 273959 § 345,040

DEFERREDCHARGES CONSIST OF PREPAID LEGAL FEES FOR PATENTS WHICH HAVE NOT YET BEEMSTAINED, AND PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS ON FIXED ASSETS ANC
contracts. Amortization of patents and trademarks was $6,150 and $2,631 for the years ended June 30,2009 and 2008, respectively.

During FIscAL YEAR 2009, THE COMPANY PERFORMED A REVIEW OF ITS PREPAID LEGAL FEES FBRTENTS AND TRADEMARKS THAT HAVE NOT BEEN OBTAINED AND ARE CLASSII
Wlthll’l OTHER ASSETS ON THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET. THE FOCUS OF RENIEW WAS PATENT AND TRADEMARK APPLICATIONS THAT THE COMPANY HAD BEEN PURSUIN@’I
FOREIGN COUNTRIES. THE COMPANY DECIDED TO LIMIT ITS FOREIGNAPPLICATIONS TO CANADA, EUROPE, AND RUSSIA, AS WELL AS THE CONTINUED PROTECTION THE US
PATENTS AND TRADEMARKS. THIS RESULTED IN THE WRITE-OFF85,818 OF OTHER PATENT AND TRADEMARK APPLICATION FEES RELATING TO OTEMBNTRIES DURING FISCAL YE/
2009 that is included in research and development expenses.
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10. Notes Payable

Notes payable consisted of the following at June 30,2009 and 2008:

2009 2008
Benton-Franklin Economic Development District (BFEDD) note payable ® $ 115,898 $ 145,745
Hanford Area Economic Investment Fund Committee (HAEIFC) note payable ® 221,562 263,639
337,460 409,384

Less amounts due within one year (161,437) (64,486)

Amounts due after one year $ 176,023 $ 344,898

(a) The NOTE PAYABLE TO BFEDD, WHICH IS COLLATERALIZED BY SUBSTANTIALLY ALL OF CIOBMPANY’S ASSETS, AND GUARANTEED BY CERTAIN SHAREHOLDERS, W
EXECUTEDPURSUANT TO A DEVELOPMENT LOAN AGREEMENT. THE NOTE CONTAINSERTAIN RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS RELATING TO: WORKING CAPITAL; LEVE!
LONG-TERM DEBT TO EQUITY; INCURRENCE OF ADDITIONAL INDEBTEDNESS; PAYMENJF COMPENSATION TO OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS; AND PAYMENT (
DIVIDENDS. THE NOTE IS PAYABLE IN MONTHLY INSTALLMENTSINCLUDING INTEREST AT 8.0% PER ANNUM WITH A FINAL BALLOON PAYMENT DUE IQctober
2009. At June 30, 2009, THE COMPANY WAS NOT IN COMPLIANCE WITH CERTAIN OF THE COVENANTS AND THE ENTIRE BALANCE HAS BEENASSIFIED AS /
current liability.

(b) In JunE 2006, THE COMPANY ENTERED INTO A NOTE PAYABLE WITH HAEIFC, WHICH ISCOLLATERALIZED BY RECEIVABLES, INVENTORY, EQUIPMENT, AND CERT/

LIFEINSURANCE POLICIES. THE LOAN ORIGINALLY HAD A TOTAL FACILITY $dE400,000 WHICH WAS REDUCED IN SEPTEMBER 2007 TO THE AMOUNT OF TH
COMPANY’S INITIAL DRAW OF $418,670. THE NOTE CONTAINS CERTAINRESTRICTIVE COVENANTS RELATING TO: FINANCIAL RATIOS; PAYMENTCOMPENSATION TO
OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS; AND PAYMENT OBIVIDENDS. THE NOTE ACCRUES INTEREST AT 9% AND IS PAYABLE INMMONTHLY INSTALLMENTS WITH THE FIN.
INSTALLMENT DUE IN JuLy 2016. At JuNi30, 2009, THE COMPANY WAS NOT IN COMPLIANCE WITH CERTAIN OF THECOVENANTS. THE COMPANY HAS OBTAINED
a waiver from HAEIFC, relating to these covenants, through June 30,2010.

Principal maturities on notes payable as of June 30,2009 are as follows:

Year ending June 30,

2010 $ 161,437

2011 49,445

2012 54,059

2013 59,154

2014 13,365

Thereafter —
S 337460
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11. Share-Based Compensation

THE FOLLOWING TABLE PRESENTS THE SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION EXPENSE RECOGNIZED IXCCORDANCE WITH SFAS 123R DURING THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 ar
2008:

Year ended June 30,
2009 2008
Cost of product sales $ 17,619 $ 109,578
Research and development 23,450 43,885
Sales and marketing expenses 148,407 238,230
General and administrative expenses 164,220 205,361
Total share-based compensation $ 353,696 $ 597,054

THE TOTAIVALUE OF THE STOCK OPTIONS AWARDS IS EXPENSED RATABLY OVER THE SERVICE PERIOD GHE EMPLOYEES RECEIVING THE AWARDS. As ofF JUNE 30, 2009, To1:
UNRECOGNIZED COMPENSATION COST RELATED TO STOCK-BASED OPTIONS AND AWARDS WAR223,295 AND THE RELATED WEIGHTED-AVERAGE PERIOD OVER WHICH IT IS EXPECT
to be recognized is approximately 0.96 years.

THE COMPANY CURRENTLY PROVIDES SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION UNDER THREE EQUITY INCENTIVELANS APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: THE AMENDED AM
RESTATED 2005 StoCcKOPTION PLAN (THE OPTION PLAN), THE AMENDED AND RESTATED 2005 EmMPLOYEE STOCKPTION PLAN (THE EMPLOYEE PLAN), AND THE 200
Director Stock Option Plan (the Director Plan). The Option Plan allows the Board of Directors to GRANT OPTIONS TO PURCHASE UP TO 1,800,000 SHARES OF COMMO
STOCK TO DIRECTORS)FFICERS, KEY EMPLOYEES AND SERVICE PROVIDERS OF THE COMPANY. THEEMPLOYEE PLAN ALLOWS THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO GRANT OPTION
PURCHASE UP T0 2,000,000 SHARES OF COMMON STOCK TO OFFICERS AND KEY EMPLOYEES OF THEOMPANY. THE DIRECTOR PLAN ALLOWS THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO G
OPTIONS TO PURCHASE UP TO 1,000,000 SHARES OF COMMON STOCK TO DIRECTORS OF TI{EOMPANY. OPTIONS GRANTED UNDER ALL OF THE PLANS HAVE A TEN YEARXimum
TERM, AN EXERCISE PRICE EQUAL TO AT LEAST THE FAIR MARKET VALUE OF(IBMIPANY’S COMMON STOCK ON THE DATE OF THE GRANT, AND VARYING VESTING PERIODS ¢
DETERMINED BY THE BOARD. FOR STOCK OPTIONS WITH GRADED VESTING TERMHE COMPANY RECOGNIZES COMPENSATION COST ON A STRAIGHT-LINE BASIS OVER THEEqUisite
service period for the entire award.

On June 1,2007, THE COMPANY ISSUED AN OPTION GRANT TO EMPLOYEES ANDDIRECTORS. THE OPTIONS HAD AN EXERCISE PRICE OF $4.14 WHICH WAS THELOSING MARKE"
PRICE OF THE COMPANY’S STOCK ON THE GRANT DATE. TH®PTIONS ISSUED TO THE EMPLOYEES VEST OVER THREE YEARS WHILE THE OPTIONS GRANTED THE NON-EMPLOYEFE
directors were immediately vested.

The ComPaNY’s FORMER CEQO, WHO ALSO SERVED AS CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD, was GRANTES 0,000 OPTIONS, AND THE FORMER EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT OPERATIOM
(EVP-Operations), who also served as a director, was granted 100,000 options, and all non-employee directors were granted 50,000 options each. On July 25,
2007, THE BOARD DISCUSSED THE ISSUE OF DIRECTOR COMPENSATION AND EACHIRECTOR (INCLUDING THE EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS) ELECTED TO CANCEL 50,000 oF Tioitions
FROM THE JUNE 1, 2007 GRANT. AFTER THE CANCELLATION, FHRMER CEO AND FORMER EVP—OPERATIONS HAD 100,000 AND 50,000 OPTIONRESPECTIVELY, AND THE NON
EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS HAD NO OPTIONS FROM THE JUNE 12007 GRANT. THE TERMS OF THESE REMAINING OPTIONS FOR THE FORMER CEAD FORMER EVP—OPERATIONS WER
not changed as part of the cancellation.

IN AccorDANCE WITH SFAS 123R, ALL OF THE OPTIONS THAT WERE CANCELLED HAVE BBENOUNTED FOR AS CANCELLATION OF OPTIONS WITH NO CONSIDERATION.
ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION COST ASSOCIATED WITH THE FORMER CEQO’s ANBVP—OPERATIONS’ OPTIONS WILL BE RECOGNIZED AFTER THE CANCELLATION DATE OF JQi¥;
2007. CANCELLED OPTIONS THAT HAD BEEN GRANTED TO NON-EMPLOYEHRECTORS WERE IMMEDIATELY VESTED ON THE DATE OF GRANT; THEREFORE ALL RECATEpensation
cost was recognized in fiscal year 2007.

All of these subsequently cancelled options are included in the options outstanding as or JuLy 1, 2007 AND ARE INCLUDED IN THE OPTIONS CANCELLED IN FISCAL YI
2008 (see Note 12).
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A summary of stock option activity within the Company’s share-based compensation plans for the year ended June 30, 2009 is as follows:

Shares Price (a) Life (b) Value (c)
Outstanding at June 30,2009 2,708,166 $ 2.08 792 $ =
Vested and expected to vest at June 30,2009 2,615395 § 2.14 7.85 $ —
Vested and exercisable at June 30,2009 1,837,018 § 2.74 712 $ —

(a) Weighted average exercise price per share.
(b) Weighted average remaining contractual life.
(c) Aggregate intrinsic value. As of June 30,2009, all options outstanding have an exercise price greater than the closing market price of $0.25.

The AGGREGATE INTRINSIC VALUE OF OPTIONS EXERCISED DURING THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 3D0)09 AND 2008 was $0 anD $25,300, RESPECTIVELY. THE COMPANY’S CURREN
policy is to issue new shares to satisfy option exercises.

THE WEIGHTED AVERAGE FAIR VALUE OF STOCK OPTION AWARDS GRANTED AND THE K¥SBUMPTIONS USED IN THE BLACK-SCHOLES VALUATION MODEL TO CALCULATE THE
value are as follows for the year ended June 30,2009 and 2008:

Years ended June 30,
2009 2008

Weighted average fair value of options granted $ 021 § 0.70
Key assumptions used in determining fair value:

Weighted average risk-free interest rate 2.55% 3.17%

Weighted average life of the option (in years) 4.66 6.00

Weighted average historical stock price volatility 128.23% 141.67%

Expected dividend yield 0.00% 0.00%

The BLACK-SCHOLES OPTION VALUATION MODEL WAS DEVELOPED FOR USE IN ESTIMATING THEAIR VALUE OF TRADED OPTIONS WHICH HAVE NO VESTING RESTRICTIONS AND
FULLYTRANSFERABLE. IN ADDITION, OPTION VALUATION MODELS REQUIRE THE INPOF HIGHLY SUBJECTIVE ASSUMPTIONS, INCLUDING THE EXPECTED STOCK PRICE
VOLATILITY. ALTHOUGH THE COMPANY IS USING THE BLACK-SCHOLES OPTIONALUATION MODEL, MANAGEMENT BELIEVES THAT BECAUSE CHANGES IN THE SUBJECTIVEnput
ASSUMPTIONS CAN MATERIALLY AFFECT THE FAIR VALUE ESTIMATE, THIS VALUATMODEL DOES NOT NECESSARILY PROVIDE A RELIABLE SINGLE MEASURE OF THE FAIR VAIQREITS
STOCK OPTIONS. THE RISK-FREE INTEREST RATE IS BASED ON TRES. TREASURY SECURITY RATE WITH AN EQUIVALENT TERM IN EFFECT AS OF THE DAGRANT. THE EXPECTEI
option lives, volatility, and forfeiture assumptions are based on historical data of the Company.

12.  Shareholders’ Equity
The authorized capital structure of the Company consists of $.001 par value preferred stock and $.001 par value common stock.
Preferred Stock

Tue CoOMPANY'S ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION AUTHORIZE 6,000,000 sHAREs OF $0.001 PARALUE PREFERRED STOCK AVAILABLE FOR ISSUANCE WITH SUCH RIGHTS .
preferences, including liquidation, dividend, conversion, and voting rights, as described below.
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Series A

Series A PREFERRED SHARES ARE ENTITLED TO A 10% DIVIDEND ANNUALLY ON THE STATED PAR VRER/BHARE. THESE SHARES ARE CONVERTIBLE INTO SHARES OF COMM:
stock AT THE RATE OF ONE SHARE OF COMMON STOCK FOR EACH SHARE OF SERIES A PREFERKEDCK, AND ARE SUBJECT TO AUTOMATIC CONVERSION INTO COMMON STO(
UPON THE CLOSING OF AN UNDERWRITTEN PUBLIC OFFERING PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRASTANEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 COVERING THE OF
and sale of common STOCK IN WHICH THE GROSS PROCEEDS TO THE COMPANY ARE AT LEAST $4ILLION. SERIES A PREFERRED SHAREHOLDERS HAVE VOTING RIGHTS EQI
TOTHE VOTING RIGHTS OF COMMON STOCK, EXCEPT THAT THE VOTE OR WRITTEN CONSENT OFAAORITY OF THE OUTSTANDING PREFERRED SHARES IS REQUIRED FOR
CHANGES TO THECOMPANY’S ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION, BYLAWS OR CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATION, GRR ANY BANKRUPTCY, INSOLVENCY, DISSOLUTION (
LIQUIDATION OF THECOMPANY. UPON LIQUIDATION OF THE COMPANY, THE COMPANY’S ASSETS ARE FIRST DISTRIBUTED RATABLY TO THE SERIES A PREFER
shareholders. At June 30,2009, there were no Series A preferred shares outstanding.

Series B

Series B PREFERRED SHARES ARE ENTITLED TO A CUMULATIVE 15% DIVIDEND ANNUALLY ONSTAEED PAR VALUE PER SHARE. THESE SHARES ARE CONVERTIBLE INTO SH/
OF COMMON STOCK AT THE RATE OF ONE SHARE OF COMMON STOCK FOR EACH SHARE SHRIES B PREFERRED STOCK, AND ARE SUBJECT TO AUTOMATIC CONVERSION I
COMMON STOCK UPON THE CLOSING OF AN UNDERWRITTEN PUBLIC OFFERING PURSUANT TO BENECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1!
covering the OFFER AND SALE OF COMMON STOCK IN WHICH THE GROSS PROCEEDS TO THE COMPANY ARE AEAST $4 MILLION. SERIES B PREFERRED SHAREHOLDERS H.
VOTING RIGHTSEQUAL TO THE VOTING RIGHTS OF COMMON STOCK, EXCEPT THAT THE VOTE OR WRIKIENSENT OF A MAJORITY OF THE OUTSTANDING PREFERRED SHARE
REQUIRED FOR ANYHANGES TO THE COMPANY’S ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION, BYLAWS OR CERTIFICATE DESIGNATION, OR FOR ANY BANKRUPTCY, INSOLVENC'
DISSOLUTION OR LIQUIDATION OFHE COMPANY. UPON LIQUIDATION OF THE COMPANY, THE COMPANY’S ASSETS ARE FIRST DISTRIBUTED RATABLY TO THE SERIE
preferred shareholders, then to the Series B preferred shareholders.

On FeBrUARY 1, 2007, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS DECLARED A DIVIDEND ON THE SERIEBRBFERRED STOCK OF ALL OUTSTANDING AND CUMULATIVE DIVIDENDS THRO
December 31,2006. The total dividends of $38,458 were paid on February 15,2007. THE COMPANY DOES NOT ANTICIPATE PAYING ANY CASH DIVIDENDS ON
THE SERIES B PREFERRED STOCK IN THE FORESEEABLE FUTURE. AT JUNE2AM9, THERE WERE 59,065 SERIES B PREFERRED SHARES OUTSTANDING AND CUMULA®
dividends in arrears were $26,565.

IN ADDITION TO THE PREVIOUSLY OUTSTANDING SHARES OF COMMON STOCK AND SERIES BREFERRED STOCK, THE COMPANY HAD THE FOLLOWING TRANSACTIONS THAT AFFE
shareholders’ equity during the years ended June 30,2009 and 2008.

Cancellation of Common Shares

In March 2008, THE COMPANY CANCELLED 148,112 SHARES OF COMMON STOCK HELD BY ROGER GIRARDHE COMPANY’S FORMER CEO, DUE TO THE RELEASE OF MR. GIR:
from certain personal GUARANTEES OF COMPANY DEBT AND DUE TO MR. GIRARD’S RESIGNATION AS CHAIRMARESIDENT, AND CEO. THE SHARES WERE ORIGINALLY ISSUED
connection with Mr. Girard’s personal guarantee of Company debt or were contingent on his employment through August 2008.
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Warrants to Purchase Common Stock

In CONNECTION WITH THE VARIOUS COMMON STOCK OFFERINGS AND AT OTHER TIMES TEOMPANY HAS ISSUED WARRANTS FOR THE PURCHASE OF COMMON STOCK. TH®varrants
activity is summarized as follows:

2009 2008
Warrants Price (a) Warrants Price (a)
Beginning balance outstanding 3,245,082 $ 5.50 3,627,764 $ 5.31
Cancelled/expired (28,438) 0.70 (91,806) 4.18
Exercised — — (290,876) 348
Ending balance outstanding 3,216,644 $ 5.55 3,245,082 $ 5.50

(a) Weighted average exercise price per share.

ON AucusTt 20, 2008, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS EXTENDED THE EXPIRATION DATES OF WARRASSISED PURSUANT TO THE COMPANY’S PRIVATE PLACEMENT MEMORANDUMS
dated October 17,2005 aND FEBRUARY 1, 2006 FOR AN ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR PERIOD. THBOARD OF DIRECTORS HAD PREVIOUSLY RETROACTIVELY EXTENDED THESE WAR
on January 8, 2008 for a one-year period beyond their initial expiration dates of October 2007 to February 2008. Based on these extensions, the WARRANTS w1I
NOW EXPIRE BETWEEN OcTOBER 2009 AND FEBRUARY 2010. N@THER TERMS OR CONDITIONS OF THE WARRANTS WERE CHANGED. THE CHANGEXRIRATION DATES AFFECTE
OUTSTANDING WARRANTS TO PURCHASE 2,102,142 SHARES @FMMON STOCK. OF THESE OUTSTANDING WARRANTS, THERE WERE WARRANTBURCHASE 12,500 COMMON SHARES
HELD BY THE CHAIRMAN AND CEO OF THICOMPANY. PRIOR TO THE ORIGINAL EXTENSION, WARRANTS TO PURCHAKH 86,219 SHARES OF COMMON STOCK HAD PASSED THEI
original expiration dates.

The CHANGE IN EXPIRATION DATE WAS A MODIFICATION OF THE ORIGINAL WARRANT BASED QWARKET CONDITIONS AND WAS ACCOUNTED FOR AS A FINANCING TRANSACTION SIMI
to an EXTENSION OF TIME IN THE OFFERING OF SHARES IN A STOCKALE. THEREFORE THERE WAS NO EFFECT ON THE STATEMENT OF OPERATIONSH¥S COMPANY HAD PREVIOUSLY
determined that under SFAS 133 and EITF 00-19 these warrants were equity instruments rather than derivatives.

The following table summarizes additional information about the Company’s common warrants outstanding as of June 30, 2009:

Number of Warrants ~ Range of Exercise Prices  Expiration Date

53,000 $ 6.00 October2009
162,500 $ 6.00 November2009
909,469 $ 6.00 December2009
700,250 $ 6.00 January 2010
276,923 $ 6.00 to $6.50 February 2010

56,876 § 0.70 March 2010
826,100 § 5.00 March2011
206,526 $ 4.40 March 2012

25,000 ¢ 2.00 July2015

3,216,644
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Common Stock Options

A summary of the Company’s stock option activity and related information for the years ended June 30,2009 and 2008 is as follows:

Beginning balance outstanding
Granted (b)

Cancelled

Exercised

Ending balance outstanding
Exercisable at end of year

(a) Weighted average exercise price per share.

2009 2008

Shares Price (a) Shares Price (a)
2,803,393 $ 2.62 3,683,439 § 2.86
993,900 031 100,000 0.75
(1,089,127) 1.86 (970,046) 3.35
— — (10,000) 1.19
2,708,166 $ 2.08 2,803,393 $ 2.62
1,837,018 § 2.74 2,442,001 $ 242

(b) All options granted had exercise prices equal to or greater than the ending market price of the Company’s common stock on the grant date.

The following table summarizes additional information about the Company’s stock options outstanding as of June 30, 2009:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Range of Exercise Prices Shares Price (a) Life (b) Shares Price (a)

$ 0.26 898,900 $ 0.26 9.93 200,000 $ 0.26
$ 0.65 to $0.75 130,000 0.73 8.90 yrs 100,000 0.75
$ 1.00to $1.19 272,802 1.05 6.57 yrs 222,802 1.06
$ 1.96 to $2.00 342,118 2.00 535 yrs 342,118 2.00
$ 3.10 to $3.11 440,400 3.11 6.86 yrs 407,066 3.11
$ 3.50 to $3.85 150,000 3.70 7.00 yrs 133,333 3.73
$ 4.14 to $4.15 189,431 4.14 6.82 yrs 165,187 4.15
$ 4.40 63,265 4.40 7.37 yrs 45,262 440
$ 5.50 to $6.50 221,250 6.06 5.48 yrs 221,250 6.06
Total options 2,708,166 1,837,018

(@
(b)

Weighted average exercise price.

13.  Treasury Stock

Weighted average remaining contractual life.

IN JuNE 2008, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF ISORAY AUTHORIZED THE REPURCHASE OF UP1T@00,000 sHARES OF THE COMPANY’S COMMON STOCK. THE COMPANY

REPURCHASED 8,200 SHARES OF ITS COMMON STOCK FOR $4,735 DURING THE YEAR ENDHDNE 30, 2009 aAND 5,000 SHARES OF ITS COMMON STOCK FOR $3,655 DURING TE

year ended June 30, 2008.

14. Income Taxes

The Company recorded no income tax provision or benefit for the years ended June 30,2009 and 2008.

1. The COMPANY HAD A NET DEFERRED TAX ASSET OF APPROXIMATELY $11.3 AND $9.3 miLLION 4% JUNE 30, 2009 aAND 2008, RESPECTIVELY. THE DEFERRED TAX ASSET F
ARISEN PRINCIPALLY FROM NET OPERATING LOSS CARRYFORWARDS, SHARE-BASEIMPENSATION, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION, AND ACCRUEDCOMPENSATION. THE DEFERREL
TAX ASSET WAS CALCULATED BASED ON THE'RRENTLY ENACTED 34% STATUTORY INCOME TAX RATE.

SINCE MANAGEMENTTAIE COMPANY CANNOT DETERMINE IF IT IS MORE

LIKELY THAN NOT THAT THE COMPANY WIIREALIZE THE BENEFIT OF ITS NET DEFERRED TAX ASSET, A VALUATION ALLOWANCE EQ@UAHE FULL AMOUNT OF THE NET DEFERRED

asset at June 30,2009 and 2008 has been established.
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At JuNe30, 2009, THE COMPANY HAD TAX BASIS NET OPERATING LOSS CARRYFORWARDS @FPROXIMATELY $26.9 MILLION AVAILABLE TO OFFSET FUTURE REGULAR TAX.
income. These net operating loss carryforwards expire through 2029.

15. 401(k) and Profit Sharing Plan

THE CoMPANY HAS A 401(K) PLAN, WHICH COMMENCED IN FISCAL YEAR 2007, COVERING ALIELIGIBLE FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY. CONTRIBUTIONS TO TF
401(K) PLAN ARE MADE BY THE PARTICIPANTS TO THEIR INDIVIDUAL ACCOUNTS THROUGNYROLL WITHHOLDING. THE 401(K) PLAN ALSO ALLOWS THE COMPANY TO MA
contributions at the discretion of management. To date, the Company has not made any contributions to the 401 (k) plan.

16.  UralDial, LLC

ON JaNuARy 23, 2008, THE COMPANY, THROUGH ITS SUBSIDIARY ISORAY INTERNATIONAL LL&ECAME A THIRTY PERCENT (30%) OWNER IN A RUSSIAN LIMITED LIABILIT
company, URALDIAL, LLC (URALDIAL), A NEW COMPANY BASED IN YEKATERINBURRUSSIA. IN DECEMBER 2008, THE COMPANY ENTERED INTO AN AGREEMENT TGELL IT
THIRTY PERCENT (30%) INTEREST IN URALDIAL FOR A NOMIMMMOUNT. URALDIAL DID NOT HAVE ANY MATERIAL ASSETS OR LIABILITIESTIAT TIME OF THE COMPANY’S
disposition of its ownership interest.

ALso IN DECEMBER 2008, THE COMPANY FINALIZED A CONTRACT TO PURCHASE Cs-131 FROMRALDIAL. UNDER THE CONTRACT, THE COMPANY WILL PURCHASE Cs-131 F
URALDIAL RATHER THAN PURCHASING CS-131 DIRECTLY FROM ITS TWO EXISTING SUPPLISRRUSSIA. URALDIAL WILL PROVIDE Cs-131 FROM AT LEAST TWO Russifacilities
SUBJECT TO SCHEDULED MAINTENANCE SHUTDOWNS OF THE FACILITIES FRONME TO TIME. THE CONTRACT STABILIZES SUPPLY ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE MDNTHS BEGINNING ON
December 15,2008 and ending on December 31,2009.

The COMPANY HAS AN EXISTING DISTRIBUTION AGREEMENT WITH URALDIAL THAT ALLAYRALDIAL TO DISTRIBUTE PROXCELAN Cs-131 BRACHYTHERAPY SEEDRISSIA. THE
CoMPANY, THROUGH URALDIAL, HAS REGULATORY APPROVALSEDL Cs-131 SEEDS IN RuUssiaA. HOWEVER, THE ECONOMIC DOWNTURN IN RUssiAiAS SLOWED THE COMPANY’S
market penetration efforts.

17. Distribution Agreement

ON FeBrUARY 18, 2009, THE COMPANY ENTERED INTO AN EXCLUSIVE DISTRIBUTION AGREEMEMIITH BRACHYSCIENCES, A DIVISION OF BIOCOMPATIBLES INTERNATIONA
PLC. THE AGREEMENT ALLOWS BRACHYSCIENCES TO SELL THE COMPANYPROXCELAN Cs-131 BRACHYTHERAPY SEEDS THROUGHOUT THE UNISTATES. THE COMPANY DID
not have any sales under this agreement in fiscal year 2009.

18. Commitments and Contingencies

Royalty Agreement for Invention and Patent Application

A SHAREHOLDER OF THE COMPANY PREVIOUSLY ASSIGNED HIS RIGHTS, TITLE AND INTERESTAIN INVENTION TO IsoRAy ProbucTs LLC (A PREDECESSOR COMPANY) IN EXCHANG
for a ROYALTY EQUAL TO 1% OF THE GROSS PROFIT, AS DEFINED, FROM THE SALE OF “SER)RPORATING THE TECHNOLOGY. THE PATENT AND ASSOCIATED ROYALOBligations
were transferred to the Company in connection with the merger transaction.

The COMPANY MUST ALSO PAY A ROYALTY OF 2% OF GROSS SALES, AS DEFINED, FOR ANVB-ASSIGNMENTS OF THE AFORESAID PATENTED PROCESS TO ANY THIRBRTIES. THE

ROYALTY AGREEMENT WILL REMAIN IN FORCE UNTIL TESPIRATION OF THE PATENTS ON THE ASSIGNED TECHNOLOGY, UNLESS EARLIER TERMINATEDACCORDANCE WITH THE TERM
of'the underlying agreement.
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During fiscal years 2009 and 2008, the Company recorded royalty expenses of $20,063 and $21,219, respectively.

Patent and Know-How Royalty License Agreement

THE COMPANY IS THE HOLDER OF AN EXCLUSIVE LICENSE TO USE CERTAIN “KNOW-HOWBEVELOPED BY ONE OF THE FOUNDERS OF A PREDECESSOR TO THE COMPANY AM
licensed to THE CoMPANY BY THE LAWRENCE FAMILY TRUST, A COMPANY SHAREHOLDER. THEERMS OF THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT REQUIRE THE PAYMENT OF A ROYALTY BA!
ON THENET FACTORY SALES PRICE, AS DEFINED IN THE AGREEMENT, OF LICENSED PRODSATES. BECAUSE THE LICENSOR’S PATENT APPLICATION WAS ULTIMATEIabandoned,
ONLY A 1% “KNOW-HOW” ROYALTY BASED ON NET FACTORY SALES PRICE,DEFINED IN THE AGREEMENT, REMAINS APPLICABLE. TO DATE, MANAGEMENBELIEVES THAT THER
HAVE BEEN NO PRODUCT SALES INCORPORATING THE “KNOW-HOW”’ ANDHEREFORE NO ROYALTY IS DUE PURSUANT TO THE TERMS OF ABREEMENT. MANAGEMENT BELIEVES TH:
ultimately no royalties should be paid under this agreement as there is no intent to use this “know-how” in the future.

The LICENSOR OF THE “KNOW-HOW’> HAS DISPUTED MANAGEMENT’S CONTENTION THAT IT IS NOBING THIS “KNOW-HOW”. ON SEPTEMBER 25, 2007 AND AGAIN ON OCTOBEI
31,2007, THE COMPANY PARTICIPATED IN NONBINDING MEDIATION REGARDING THIS MATTER; HOWEVER, NO SETTLEMENT WAS REACHED WITH THE LAWRENCE Fam
TRUST. AFTER ADDITIONAL SETTLEMENT DISCUSSIONS, WHICH ENDED IN APRA00S, THE PARTIES FAILED TO REACH A SETTLEMENT. THE PARTIES MAXEMAND BINDING
arbitration at any time.

Operating Lease Agreements

The COMPANY LEASES OFFICE AND LABORATORY SPACE AND PRODUCTION AND OFFICE EQUIPMENTNDER NONCANCELABLE OPERATING LEASES. THE LEASE AGREEMENTS REQ!
monthly lease payments and expire on various dates through April 2016 (including renewal dates). The Company’s significant lease is described below.

ON May 2,2007, MEDICAL ENTERED INTO A LEASE FOR ITS NEW PRODUCTION FACILITY WITH ENENORTHWEST, THE OWNER OF THE APPLIED PROCESS ENGINEERIN
LABORATORY (THE APEILEASE). THE NEW LEASE ORIGINALLY PROVIDED THE COMPANY WITH 19,328QUARE FEET OF MANUFACTURING AND OFFICE SPACE AND THE COMPAN
HAS MOVED ALLMANUFACTURING OPERATIONS TO THIS NEW LEASED SPACE AS OF SEPTEMBER 2007 ANBWACATED ITS LEASED SPACE AT THE PEcoS-IsoRay RabpioisoTop
Laboratory (PIRL). THE APEL LEASE HAS A THREE YEAR TERM EXPIRING ON APRIL 3@010, PLUS OPTIONS TO RENEW FOR TWO ADDITIONAL THREE-YEAR TERMS, AND MON"
rent of approximately $26,700, subject to annual increases based on the Consumer Price Index, plus monthly janitorial expenses of approximately $700. Due
to the severe economic penalty associated with not exercising the two lease renewal options, the Company currently intends to exercise both of the three-year
RENEWAL OPTIONS AT THE APPROPRIATE TIME IN THEEASE. SUBSEQUENT TO THE INITIAL SIGNING OF THIS LEASE, THE COMPANRECONFIGURED ITS SPACE REQUIREMENTS AN
RETURNED SOME LAB SPACE TO ENERGWORTHWEST. THIS HAS REDUCED THE COMPANY’S RENT TO APPROXIMATEL$23,500 PER MONTH PLUS JANITORIAL EXPENSES O
approximately $460 per month.

Future MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES INCLUDING THE TWO THREE-YEARENEWALS OF THE APEL LEASE, WHICH THE COMPANY INTENDS TO EXERCISE, A
as follows:

Year ending June 30,

2010 $ 305,908

2011 302,235

2012 290,993

2013 288,467

2014 288,467

Thereafter 528,857
$ 2,004,927

F-24
Source: IsoRay, Inc., 10-K, September 23, 2009 Powered by Momingstar® Document Research™

The information contained herein may not be copied, adapted or distributed and is not warranted to be accurate, complete or timely. The user assumes all risks for any damages or losses arising from any use of this information,
except to the extent such damages or losses cannot be limited or excluded by applicable law. Past financial performance is no guarantee of future results.



Rental expense amounted to $325,496 and $354,202 for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

License Agreement with IBt

In FEBRUARY 2006, THE COMPANY SIGNED A LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH INTERNATIONBRACHYTHERAPY SA (IBT), A BELGIAN COMPANY, COVERING NORTH AMERICA AN
PROVIDING THE COMPANY WITH ACCESS TO IBT’S INK JET PRODUCTION PROCESS AND ITS PROPRIETARAOLYMER SEED TECHNOLOGY FOR USE IN BRACHYTHERAPY PROCEDUR
using Cs-131. Under the original agreement royalty payments were to be paid on net sales revenue incorporating the technology.

ON OctoBER 12, 2007, THE COMPANY ENTERED INTO AMENDMENT NoO. 1 (THE AMENDMENT) TOITS LICENSE AGREEMENT DATED FEBRUARY 2, 2006 witH IBT. Tt
COMPANY PAID LICENSE FEES OF $275,000 (UNDER THE ORIGINAL AGREEMENT) AND $225,000 (UNDHRIE AMENDMENT) DURING FISCAL YEARS 2006 AND 200¢
RESPECTIVELY. THE AMENDMENT ELIMINATES THE PREVIOUSLY REQUIRED ROYALTY PAYMENTS BASED ON NET SALHSEVENUE, AND THE PARTIES INTEND TO NEGOTIATE TERMS I
FUTURE PAYMENTS BY THECOMPANY FOR POLYMER SEED COMPONENTS TO BE PURCHASED AT IBT'S COST PLUS ATO-BE-DETERMINED PROFIT PERCENTAGE. NO AGREEMENT H.
BEEN REACHED ONTHESE TERMS AND THERE IS NO ASSURANCE THAT THE PARTIES WILL CONSUMMATE AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO SUCH TERMS. THE COMPANY DOES NC
currently intend to use this technology and recorded an impairment charge on the remaining book value of the license in fiscal year 2009.

19. Concentrations of Credit and Other Risks
Financial Instruments

The COMPANY’S FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS THAT ARE EXPOSED TO CONCENTRATIONS OF CRERISK CONSIST PRIMARILY OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, SHORT-TERM INVESTMEN
and accounts receivable.

THE COMPANY’S CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ARE MAINTAINED WITH HIGH-QUALITY FINANCIAINSTITUTIONS. THE ACCOUNTS ARE GUARANTEED BY THE FEDERAL DEP
InsuraNcE CorroraTiON (FDIC) up T$250,000. At June 30, 2009, CASHBALANCES UNINSURED BY THE FDIC TOTALED APPROXIMATELY $2.5 MILLION. AORTION OF
THIS AMOUNT (APPROXIMATELY $2.3 MILLION) IS HELD IN A MONEY MARKETACCOUNT THAT IS PROTECTED BY THE US TREASURY DEPARTMENT’S TEMPORARY GUARA’
Program for Money Market Funds.

SHORT-TERMNVESTMENTS ARE HELD BY A MAJOR, HIGH-QUALITY FINANCIANSTITUTION. GENERALLY, THESE SECURITIES ARE TRADED IN A HIGHIQUID MARKET AND MAY BE
REDEEMED UPON DEMAND AND BEAR MINIMAL RISK. MANAGEMENT REGULARLY MONITORS THE COMPOSITION AND MATURITIES GHESE INVESTMENTS AND THE COMPANY HAS
not experienced any material realized losses on its investments.

The Company’s accounts receivable result from credit sales to customers. The Company had two customers whose sales were greater THAN 10% FOR EACH OF Tt
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 AND 2008 RESPECTIVELY. THESE CUSTOMERS REPRESENTED A COMBINED 35.0% AND 34.3%0F THE COMPANY’S TOTAL REVENUES FOR THE YE:
ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 anND 2008, RESPECTIVELY. THESE SAME CUSTOMERS ACCOUNTED FOR A COMBINED 39.6% AN138.4% OF THE COMPANY’S NET ACCOUNTS RECEIVABL
balance at June 30,2009 and 2008, respectively.

The loss OF ANY OF THESE SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMERS WOULD HAVE A TEMPORARY ADVERSE EFFECTTOIE COMPANY’S REVENUES, WHICH WOULD CONTINUE UNTIL THE COMPANY
located new customers to replace them.

The Company routinely assesses the financial strength of its customers and provides an allowance for doubtful accounts as necessary.
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Inventories

Most COMPONENTS USED IN THE COMPANY’S PRODUCT ARE PURCHASED FROM OUTSIDESOURCES. CERTAIN COMPONENTS ARE PURCHASED FROM SINGLBUPPLIERS. THE FAILURE
OF ANY SUCH SUPPLIER TO MEET ITS COMMITMENT ON SCHEDULE COULD HAVE A MATERIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON THE COMPANY’S BUSINESSPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCI/
CONDITION. IF A SOLE-SOURCE SUPPLIEROR A SUPPLIER OF Cs-131 OR IRRADIATED BARIUM WERE TO GO OUT OF BUSINESS ORHERWISE BECOME UNABLE TO MEET ITS SUPPLY
COMMITMENTS, THE PROCESS OF LOCATINGAND QUALIFYING ALTERNATE SOURCES COULD REQUIRE UP TO SEVERAL MONTHS, DURVNGCH TIME THE COMPANY’S PRODUCTION
could be delayed. Such delays could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, operating results and financial condition.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on
its behalf' by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Dated: September 23,2009
ISORAY, INC., a Minnesota corporation

By /s/ Dwight Babcock
Dwight Babcock, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman

By /s/ Jonathan R. Hunt
Jonathan R. Hunt, Chief Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Dated: September 23,2009

/s/ Dwight Babcock
Dwight Babcock, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman

/s/ Jonathan R. Hunt
Jonathan R. Hunt, Chief Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer

/s/ Robert Kauffman
Robert Kauffman, Director and Vice-Chairman

/s/ Thomas LaVoy
Thomas LaVoy, Director

/s/ Albert Smith
Albert Smith, Director
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August 24, 2009

IsoRay, Inc.

350 Hills St.

Suite 106

Richland, WA 99354
Attention: Jonathan Hunt

Ref. Loan Covenant Waiver

Mr. Hunt;

This letter is to advise you that at its reqularly scheduled Board meeting on August 24,
2009, by unanimous vote the Hanford Area Economic Investment Fund Committee
approved the waiver of the loan covenant Fixed Charge Coverage, until June 30, 2010.

All other terms, conditions and covenants of IsoRay, Inc. loan to remain in full force and
affect,

If you have any questions please contact Stephen P. Sensney, Loan Consultant, at 1-
509-832-0080.

Sincerely,;
ephen P. Sensney

Loan Consultant

ORAL AGREEMENTS OR ORAL COMMITMENTS TO LOAN MONEY, EXTEND CREDIT, OR TO FORBEAR
FROM ENFORCING REPAYMENT OF A DEBT ARE NOT ENFORCEABLE UNDER WASHINGTON LAW.
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EXHIBIT 21
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
IsoRay Medical, Inc., a Delaware corporation

IsoRay International LLC, a Washington limited liability company
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tified Public Accountants. | Business Consultants

dm-t 7307 M. Division, Suite 222

decoria = maichel « teague Spokane, Washington 99208

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statements Nos. 333-127717 and 333-136728 on Form S-8 and Nos. 333-140246 and
333-141934 on Form S-3 of our report dated September 22, 2009, with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of IsoRay, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of June
30, 2009 and 2008, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended, which
report appears in the Form 10-K filing for IsoRay, Inc. to be filed on or about September 25, 2009.

/s/ DeCoria, Maichel & Teague, P.S.

DeCoria, Maichel & Teague, P.S.

Spokane, Washington

September 22,2009
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Exhibit31.1

CERTIFICATION
I, Dwight Babcock, Chief Executive Officer, certify that:
1. I'have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of IsoRay, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary

to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4 . The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a 15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(%)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such intemnal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5 . The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting

Date: September 23,2009

/s/ Dwight Babcock
Dwight Babcock
Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit31.2

CERTIFICATION
I, Jonathan R. Hunt, Chief Financial Officer, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of IsoRay, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary

to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4 . The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a 15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 23,2009

/s/ Jonathan R. Hunt
Jonathan R. Hunt
Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32
Section 1350 Certifications

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f2002, each of the undersigned officers of IsoRay, Inc.,
a Minnesota corporation (the Company), hereby certify that:

To my knowledge, the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the annual period ended June 30,2009 (the Report) fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: September 23,2009

/s/ Dwight Babcock
Dwight Babcock
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: September 23,2009

/s/ Jonathan R. Hunt
Jonathan R. Hunt
Chief Financial Officer
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